AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
February 8, 2016
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m., Board Room, District Office
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California
ROLL CALL Directors LaMar, Reinhart, Swan, Withers and President Matheis
NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file your
name with the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to five
minutes per speaker on each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one motion,
without discussion, unless a request is made for specific items to be removed from the Calendar
for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

1 A. Written:
B. Oral;
2 ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED

Recommendation: Determine the need to discuss and/or take immediate action

on item(s).
CONSENT CALENDAR Resolution No. 2016-4 Items 3-8
3 BOARD FD

MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for
Steven LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Douglas Reinhart, Peer Swan, and John
Withers as described.

4. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the January 25, 2016 Regular Board
meeting be approved as presented.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
February 8, 2016
Page 2

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued Items 3-8

5. ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO THE STRAND RANCH INTEGRATED BANKING
PROJECT FINAL AL IMPACT REPORT

Recommendation: That the Board approve Addendum No. 2 to the Strand
Ranch Integrated Banking Project Final Environmental Impact Report
including the determinations set forth in Addendum No. 2, approve the
modification to the project and authorize staff to file a Notice of Determination
with the Counties of Orange and Kern as well as the state clearinghouse.

6. 2016 INDEX TENDER NOTES REMARKETING

Recommendation: That the Board approve the 2016 Index Tender Notes

Remarketing Statements and adopt a resolution approving Remarketing Reso. No. 2016-
Statements relating to unscheduled mandatory tenders (Refunding Series

2011A-1 and Refunding Series 2011A-2).

7 RANCHO PARKWAY ZONE C RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE
CONSTRUCTION AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
construction contract with Paulus Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $413,125

for the Rancho Parkway Zone C Recycled Water Pipeline, project 6470.

8 ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMMING AND NETWORKING
CONSULTANT SERVICES VARIANCE APPROVAL

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute

Variance No. 2 to the On-call Programming and Network Services Agreement
with Outsource Technical in the amount of $260,000.

ACTION CALENDAR

9. DROUGHT OUTREACH PROGRAM UPDAT

Recommendation: That the Board approve an additional $500,000 in FY
2015-16 over-allocation funding for customer drought outreach programs.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
February 8, 2016
Page 3

ACTION CALENDAR - Continued

10 WATERWISE CONSULTING AGREEMENT ARTANCE NO. 1 FOR
TURNKEY TURF REMOVAL PROGRAM

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute
Variance No. 1 to the Non-Consultant Services Agreement between IRWD and
WaterWise Consulting, Inc. in the amount of $305,000.

11 FINANCIAL SYSTEM UPGRADE AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT
IMPLEMENTATION CONSULTANT SELECTION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with KPMG LLP for a not-to-exceed cost of
$2,544,000; approve a capital budget increase of $838,800 each for projects
4394 and 4395, for a total budget increase of $1,677,600; approve the
procurement of hardware for a not-to-exceed cost of $152,000; and authorize
the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with
Outsource Technical for a not-to-exceed cost of $450,000.

12
DELTA

Recommendation: That the Board adopt an “oppose” position on AB 1713
(Eggman, D-Stockton) and authorize IRWD to work with its industry partners
to communicate continued support for the 2009 Delta package and policies that
further the co-equal goals of water supply reliability and the Delta ecosystem.

OTHER BUSINESS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask
questions for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities.
The Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct
staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under the
General Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments.

13.  A. General Manager’s Report
B. Directors’ Comments

C. Adjourn



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting

February 8, 2016
Page 4
* * & * * * *® * * * * * * * * * * * ok * * * * * ok * * * *

Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all
or a majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject
to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the
District’s office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to
members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the
District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one
hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District
Office. The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-
related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949)
453-5300 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be
obtained in alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the
scheduled meeting.




CONSENT CALENDAR

SUMMARY

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Pursuant to Resolution 2006-29 adopted on August 28, 2006, approval of attendance of the
following events and meetings are required by the Board of Directors.

Steven LaMar

2/05/16
2/18/16
2/18/16
2/22-25/16

1/14/16
2/04/16
2/09/16
2/10-12/16
2/18/16
2/18/16
2/22-25/16
2/29/16

2/10-12/16

Peer Swan

2/08/16
2/10-12/16
2/16/16
2/21-25/16

John Withers

1/20/16
2/09/16
2/18/16

Board Mtgs Events.doc

Calif. Environmental Dialogue-Long View Committee Meeting, Sacramento, CA
Orange County Forum

OCBC Annual Meeting & Installation of Board of Directors

ACWA Washington D.C. Conference

ACWA CA Water 2.0 Briefing Meeting, Sacramento, CA

SOC Watershed Management Area Executive Committee Meeting

Irvine State of the City Address by Mayor Steven Choi

Urban Water Institute Spring Water Conference, Palm Springs, CA
Orange County Forum

OCBC Annual Meeting & Installation of Board of Directors

ACWA Washington D.C. Conference

Monthly Meeting with General Manager Paul Cook re: District Activities

Urban Water Institute Spring Water Conference, Palm Springs, CA

Newport Bay Watershed Executive Committee Meeting

Urban Water Institute Spring Water Conference, Palm Springs, CA
WACO Planning Committee Meeting

CASA Washington D.C. Conference

Orange County Water Association Meeting
Irvine State of the City Address by Mayor Steven Choi
OCBC Annual Meeting & Installation of Board of Directors



Consent Calendar: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors’ Attendance at Meetings and Events
February 8, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RATIFY/APPROVE THE MEETINGS AND EVENTS FOR STEVEN
LAMAR, MARY AILEEN MATHEIS, DOUGLAS REINHART, PEER SWAN, AND JOHN
WITHERS AS DESCRIBED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None



February 8, 2016

Prepared and pw

Submitted by: L. Bonkowski

Approved by: P. COOV Ll

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

SUMMARY:
Provided are the minutes of the January 25, 2016 Regular Board Meeting for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25, 2016 REGULAR BOARD MEETING BE
APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — January 25, 2016 Minutes

ns-Minutes of Board Meeting



EXHIBIT “A”

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - JANUARY 25, 2016

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was
called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President Matheis on January 25, 2016 in the District office, 15600
Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: Reinhart, I.aMar, Swan, Matheis and Withers
Directors Absent: None.

Also Present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Finance and Administration Clary,
Executive Director of Water Policy Weghorst, Executive Director of Operations Sheilds, Assistant
Director of Maintenance Drake, Director of Treasury and Risk Management Jacobson, Director of
Public Affairs Beeman, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Human Resources
Roney, Legal Counsel Arneson, Secretary Bonkowski, Government Relations Officer Compton,
Mr. Bruce Newell, Mr. Jim Reed, Mr. Rich Mori, Mr. Ed Casey, Mr. Ted Flannigan and other
members of the public and staff.

WRITTEN AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None.
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE: None.

WORKSHOP

ENERGY STORAGE OPPORTUNITY

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Executive Director of Operations Sheilds provided an overview
of a potential battery energy storage system program with energy storage system developer
Advanced Microgrid Solutions (AMS). He introduced Mr. Ted Flanigan of EcoMotion, the
District’s energy consultant, to the Board who said he would be working with staff to develop the
best possible solutions to the District.

Mr. Sheilds reviewed the objective of developing seven megawatts of energy storage at 13 District
sites. He said that AMS would assume all responsibility for project design, development,
permitting, financing, maintenance, operations, and all legal and contractual obligations to SCE.
He further said that IRWD would in turn provide site and billing data access, with energy
incentives being paid to AMS and that any savings greater than the minimum guarantee would be
paid to IRWD. The contract term would be 10 years. He further reviewed the next steps which
include working with legal counsel to develop and then execute a non-disclosure agreement and a
non-binding Memorandum of Understanding that would be followed by the preparation of an
energy storage services agreement with AMS for Board submittal in March or April 2016.
Following discussion, Director Swan asked that staff review the rationale at a future meeting for
each of the proposed sites for battery storage.



CONSENT CALENDAR

Director Swan said relative to item No. 9, he would like staff to provide him with a copy of the
agreement and fee formula. There being no further discussion, on MOTION by Reinhart,
seconded and unanimously carried, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 4 THROUGH 11 WERE
APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

4,

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the January 11, 2016 Regular Board Meeting be
approved as presented.

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND
EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Douglas Reinhart, Peer Swan, and John Withers as
described.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT STRATEGIC MEASURES
Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the report.
DECEMBER 2015 TREASURY REPORTS

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment Summary
Report, the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for December 2015, and Disclosure
Report of Reimbursements to Board members and staff; approve the December 2015
summary of payroll ACH payments in the total amount of $1,569,894 and approve the
December 2015 Accounts Payable Disbursement Summary of warrants 363367 through
364168, Workers” Compensation distributions, wire transfers, payroll withholding
distributions and voided checks in the total amount of $33,933,726.

PIEZOMETER AUTOMATION FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the Piezometer Automation,
project 30572 (6298); authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion; and
authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after the date of recording the Notice of
Completion.

ATER DISTRICT

Recommendation: That the Board approve a budget increase in the amount of $132,600,
from $439,400 to $572,000, for the Orange County Water District annexation fee for
2015/16, project 1363.



10 F
CANYON PUMP STATIONS

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the acquisition of pump station sites for
Eastwood and Hidden Canyon Developments from Irvine Community Development
Company LLC and the Irvine Land Company LLC; authorize the General Manager to
execute the Conveyance Agreements and related deeds for the acquisitions; and subject to
non-substantive changes, authorize the General Manager to execute the agreement with
the City of Irvine with regard to the City of Irvine’s storm drain easement within the
proposed Eastwood Pump Station site; and adopt the following resolution by title:

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -3

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING
ACQUISITION OF LAND AND EASEMENTS FOR
EASTWOOD AND HIDDEN CANYON PUMP STATIONS

RECESS AND CLOSED SESSION

At 6:20 p.m., General Manager Cook asked that the meeting be recessed to hold a Closed
Session. There being no objections, President Matheis announced that a Closed Session would
be held as follows: Conference with Real Property Negotiator relative to Government Code
Section 54956.8; Property: OCSD Service Area 7 Sewer Infrastructure; Agency Negotiator:
Paul Cook, General Manager; Purpose of Negotiations: Proposed Acquisition of Property —
Price and Terms. The Board meeting was recessed at 6:22 p.m.

Following the Closed Session, the meeting was reconvened with Directors Matheis, Reinhart,
Swan, Withers, and LaMar present. No action was reported.

ACTION CALENDAR
OCSD SERVICE AREA 7 LOCAL SEWER FACILITIES TRANSFER AGREEMENT

Two agencies, Irvine Ranch Water District and East Orange County Water District (EOCWD),
have submitted applications to Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission (OC
LAFCO) to assume the local sewer service from OCSD. Any transfer of ownership of the local
sewers will require that OC LAFCO approve the requested reorganization. In light of the
pending OC LAFCO decision, IRWD and OCSD have negotiated a Local Sewer Facilities
Transfer Agreement to transfer ownership of local sewers in Service Area 7 and the appropriate
reserve balance to IRWD should OC LAFCO approve IRWD’s application (the Transfer
Agreement).

On MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried, SUBJECT TO NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, THE BOARD APPROVED THE PROPOSED SERVICE AREA
7 LOCAL SEWER FACILITIES TRANSFER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ORANGE
COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AND IRWD, AND AUTHORIZED THE PRESIDENT
TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT.

A-3



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
General Manager Cook reported on a burglary next door at the post office where the mailbox was
vandalized. He noted a past incident when this occurred in December, and staff issued Stop

Payments on vender checks which were reissued.

Mr. Cook reported on the shared service program with El Toro Water District for sewage flows,
and that he and General Manager Bob Hill submitted a letter to LAFCO reporting on its success.

Mr. Cook reported on the biosolids tour held last Friday with Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California along with OCWD staff.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

Director LaMar reported that he along with Director Matheis attended the Southern California
Water Committee meeting. He also said he attended a MWDOC Water Policy dinner.

Director Withers reported that he will be attending an upcoming LAFCO Executive Committee
meeting.

Director Swan reported on his attendance at an OCWD Board meeting, a WACO Planning
meeting, a CASA conference where branding was discussed, a San Joaquin Wildlife Sanctuary
Board meeting along with Director Matheis, and a MWDOC Water Policy dinner.

Director Reinhart reported on his attendance at a MWDOC Administration and Finance
Committee meeting, and a meeting he and Director Matheis had with Moulton Niguel Water
District relative to acquisitions and consolidations.

Director Matheis reported on her attendance at a Clean Tech Connect Water Energy Innovation
forum, a Irvine Chamber Business Outlook meeting, a Shadetree Partnership Board meeting, a
MWDOC Water Policy dinner, and a San Joaquin Wildlife Sanctuary Board meeting.
ADJOURNMENT

President Matheis adjourned the meeting.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 8th day of February, 2016.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone
A-4



February 8, 2016
Prepared by: J. Corey/ K. Welch
Submitted by: F. Sanchez / P. Weghorst

Approved by: Paul Co (T
CONSENT CALENDAR

ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO THE STRAND RANCH
INTEGRATED BANKING PROJECT
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

SUMMARY:

A minor modification is proposed to the project description for the Strand Ranch Integrated
Banking Project which would increase the limit on instantaneous rate of recovery of water.
Environmental review has been completed for the proposed modification. Staff recommends the
Board approve the proposed modification, approve Addendum No. 2 to the Final Environmental
Impact Report (FEIR) and authorize staff to file a Notice of Determination with the counties of
Orange and Kern as well as the state clearinghouse.

BACKGROUND:

In 2008, IRWD prepared and certified an FEIR for the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project.
The project, as described in the FEIR, involved construction and operation of groundwater
recharge basins and production wells at IRWD’s Strand Ranch property in Kern County. The
project includes a limit on groundwater extraction of 17,500 acre-feet (AF) per year from any
combination of up to nine wells onsite at Strand Ranch and up to three offsite wells (project
wells). The project wells would be designed to pump groundwater at a rate of approximately 5
cubic feet per second (cfs). The description of project operations states that project wells would
be limited to a combined instantaneous rate of 36 cfs to 40 cfs. Staff proposes to modify the
project description to remove the limit on the instantaneous recovery rate while maintaining the
overall recovery limit of 17,500 AF per year. The proposed modification would only affect the
operating criteria for groundwater wells. It would provide flexibility for the simultaneous
operation of all project wells, and would not result in any new significant impacts. The modeling
and technical analysis provided in the FEIR is sufficient and supports the proposed modification.

Addendum No. 2:

Environmental review has been completed for the proposed modification to the project as
described above and Addendum No. 2 to the FEIR has been prepared. There are no substantial
changes to the project that would require major revisions to the FEIR due to new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of impacts identified in the FEIR.
A copy of Addendum No. 2 is attached as Exhibit “A”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

jac Addendum 2 - Strand Ranch EIR.docx



Consent Calendar: Addendum No. 2 to the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project Final
Environmental Impact Report

February 8, 2016

Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Section 15164 of the State of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines provides
for the preparation of an addendum to a previously certified EIR by a lead agency or a
responsible agency if some changes or additions to the project are necessary but none of the
conditions described in CEQA calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Based
on the information and analysis conducted in the proposed Addendum No. 2, the conclusion
section of the Addendum sets forth the proposed determinations by the District that none of such
conditions have occurred. The proposed modification would not change the regulatory
framework, impact discussion, mitigation measures or conclusions as described in the FEIR.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Banking Committee on February 1, 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO THE STRAND RANCH
INTEGRATED BANKING PROJECT FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
INCLUDING THE DETERMINATIONS SET FORTH IN ADDENDUM NO. 2, APPROVE
THE MODIFICATION TO THE PROJECT AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO FILE A NOTICE
OF DETERMINATION WITH THE COUNTIES OF ORANGE AND KERN AS WELL AS
THE STATE CLEARINGHOUSE.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Addendum No. 2 to the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project Final
Environmental Impact Report



Exhibit "A"

Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project
Final EIR

1 ntroduct on

This document is Addendum No. 2 to the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared by
Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District (Rosedale) and Irvine Ranch Water District IRWD)
for the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project. The Final EIR evaluated the potential
environmental effects of the Project, which proposed construction of groundwater banking
facilities at Strand Ranch, including recharge basins, conveyance channels, and recovery wells.
The Final EIR was certified on May 27, 2008 by Rosedale’s Board of Directors, which acted as
the Lead Agency pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CEQA
Guidelines (Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Section 15300 et. seq.) §15090). The Final
EIR was approved on May 27, 2008 by IRWD’s Board of Directors, which acted as the
Responsible Agency. A Notice of Completion for the Final EIR was filed with the county clerks
of both Kern County and Orange County.

IRWD is proposing to make changes to the project description for the Strand Ranch Integrated
Banking Project. Under CEQA, an addendum may be prepared when minor modifications are
proposed for a project that has already been approved and when no additional significant
environmental impacts would result (CEQA Guidelines, §15164, 15162, 15163). This Addendum
No. 2 evaluates whether any new significant impacts would result from implementation of the
proposed modification.

2 Purpose of Addendum

Under CEQA, the lead agency or a responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a
previously-certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary to the prior EIR, but none of
the conditions calling for preparation of a subsequent or supplemental EIR have occurred (CEQA
Guidelines §15164). Once an EIR has been certified, a subsequent EIR is only required when the
lead agency or responsible agency determines that one of the following conditions has been met:

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project, or substantial changes occur with
respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken, which require major
revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects
(CEQA Guidelines §15162(a)(1), (2));

IRWD Strand Ranch integrated Banking Project 1 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 3 1 April 2015



(2) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was
certified as complete, shows any of the following:

a. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the
previous EIR;

b. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than
shown in the previous EIR;

¢. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in
fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of
the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or
alternative; or

d. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those
analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the
mitigation measure or alternative (CEQA Guidelines §15162(a)(3)).

If one or more of the conditions described above for a subsequent EIR exist, but only minor
additions or changes would be necessary to make the previous EIR adequately apply to the
project in the changed situation, then the lead agency may prepare a supplement to an EIR, rather
than a subsequent EIR (CEQA Guidelines §15163(a)).

CEQA recommends that a brief explanation of the decision to prepare an addendum rather than a
subsequent or supplemental EIR be included in the record (CEQA Guidelines §15164(e)). This
Addendum has been prepared because the proposed modifications to the Strand Ranch Integrated
Banking Project do not meet the conditions for a subsequent or supplemental EIR. This
Addendum explains why the proposed modifications would not result in new significant
environmental effects or result in a substantial increase in the severity of previously-identified
significant effects. There is no new information that would show that the proposed modifications
would have new effects or more severe effects on the environment. The proposed modifications
would not have any adverse environmental effects and would not change the conclusions of the
previously-certified Final EIR.

An addendum does not need to be circulated for public review, but rather can be attached to the
final EIR (CEQA Guidelines §15164(c)). Prior to initiating the modified Project, the IRWD
Board of Directors will consider this Addendum together with the Final EIR and make a decision
regarding the modified Project (CEQA Guidelines §15164(d)).

3. ntegrated Banking Project Overview

Rosedale as the CEQA Lead Agency, in consultation with IRWD as a Responsible Agency,
prepared and certified the Final EIR for the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project in 2008.
The purpose of the Project was twofold: to augment the recharge and extraction capacity of
Rosedale’s Groundwater Storage, Banking, Exchange, Extraction and Conjunctive Use Program
(Conjunctive Use Program), and to provide water supply reliability and redundancy to IRWD

IRWD Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project 2 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No. 2 3 2 April 2015



customers. Rosedale and IRWD proposed to develop groundwater banking facilities on the Strand
Ranch for use by both districts. Facilities would be constructed to recharge and recover up to
17,500 acre feet per year (afy) for IRWD. When not in use by IRWD, the facilities could also be
used by Rosedale to serve its existing commitments.

Strand Ranch is located in western Kern County, California. Strand Ranch is owned by IRWD
and consists of approximately 611 acres of land six miles west of the City of Bakersfield. The
Project integrates Strand Ranch into Rosedale’s existing Conjunctive Use Program. In accordance
with the Project as described in the Final EIR, groundwater banking facilities, including recharge
basins, conveyance channels, pipelines and seven recovery wells have been developed on Strand
Ranch. In addition, the Project includes up to three additional offsite wells within the Rosedale
service area, as shown in Figure 2-4 of the Final EIR; these wells, although not yet built, will
provide operational flexibility to achieve the extraction goals of the Project..

The Project provides the flexibility to pump from any combination of the onsite Strand Ranch
wells and three offsite wells. Recovery operations from the onsite and offsite wells are limited to
a combined rate of 36 cubic feet per second (cfs) with the following exception: Rosedale has the
ability to increase the combined rate of recovery to 40 cfs as required to meet mitigation
requirements (Final EIR, Page 2-17). As an example, this could occur in response to a request
from a neighboring property to limit recovery operations on Strand Ranch to a certain period of
time.

4. Proposed odifications to Project Descr pt on

Recovery Facilities

IRWD is proposing to modify the Project to eliminate the restriction of a combined recovery rate
of 36 cfs from both onsite and offsite wells. The modification would not change the annual
extraction limit of 17,500 afy for IRWD. The modification would allow simultaneous operation
of all wells onsite at Strand Ranch and the three offsite wells. This modification will not result in
any new potentially significant impacts, and thus this Addendum is being prepared.

5. Analysis of Potent al nvironmenta mpacts
Assoc ated w th the Proposed odif cat ons

The proposed modification would not alter the construction or location of any project facilities.
Therefore, the proposed modifications would not change the environmental setting, regulatory
framework, impact discussion, mitigation measures, or significant conclusions for the following
resource areas as currently described in the Final EIR: Aesthetics; Agricultural Resources; Air
Quality; Biological Resources; Cultural Resources; Geology, Soils and Mineral Resources;
Hazards and Hazardous Materials; Land Use, Planning and Recreation; Noise; Transportation and
Traffic; and Utilities and Public Services. The proposed modification would only affect the
operating criteria for groundwater wells. Thus, the analysis for this Addendum is focused on
potential environmental impacts to Hydrology, Groundwater Resources and Water Quality,
specifically impacts to groundwater resources associated with operation of recovery facilities.

IRWD Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project 3 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 3 3 April 2015



Hydrology, Groundwater Resources, and Water Quality

Recovery Facilities

The Final EIR analyzes the potential for Project operations to affect groundwater levels at
neighboring wells during periods of recovery (Impact 3.8-1). Under Impact 3.8-1, the Final EIR
describes the results of groundwater modeling conducted for the Project to assess the potential for
operation of the Strand Ranch wells to affect neighboring groundwater extraction wells. The
groundwater modeling report includes both a 7-well pumping scenario for wells on Strand Ranch
and a 3-well pumping scenario for offsite wells. The modeling assumes individual well capacities
of 5 cfs.

The 7-well pumping scenario assumes that pumping occurs continuously over a 250-day period,
which is required to achieve the maximum annual production of 17,500 acre-feet. The 7-well
scenario concludes that temporary drawdown of between 3 to 29 feet would occur at land sections
with neighboring Kern Water Bank Authority (KWBA) wells; the highest drawdown potential
would occur at two KWBA wells immediately adjacent to the Strand Ranch property.

The 3-well pumping scenario concludes that temporary drawdown of less than one foot would
result at neighboring KWBA wells. As a result the Final EIR concludes that, given the average
depth of the KWBA wells (900 feet) and the historic groundwater fluctuations in the region (up to
140 feet), the Project’s potential to lower water surface elevations by up to 29 feet would not
significantly impact the function of neighboring wells.

The proposed modification would allow simultaneous pumping of all onsite Strand Ranch wells
and the three offsite wells, eliminating the combined recovery restriction of 36 cfs. This proposed
modification is already modeled as part of the Strand Ranch Well Placement and Drawdown
Analysis provided in Appendix F of the Final EIR. The analysis includes simultaneous pumping
of all wells, represented by both the 7-well pumping scenario and the 3-well pumping scenario.
Based on the analysis, Chapter 3.8 of the Final EIR states that:

“Under a scenario of both sets of wells pumping simultaneously, the effect at the KWBA
wells due to pumping from the seven Strand Ranch wells and three Rosedale wells would
still be within the one to 29 feet range. This small range of impact on water surface
elevations on adjacent wells would not result in a loss of the KWBA to perform recharge
and recovery options.” (Final EIR, page 3.8-1)

The analysis conducted in the Final EIR therefore supports the proposed modification by IRWD
and does not present any new impacts to resources in the project area. Simultaneous pumping of
onsite and offsite wells would not result in additional drawdown and would not have additional
impacts to neighboring wells.

In addition, as stated in the Final EIR, the temporary impacts to neighboring wells would be
subject to the existing commitments and conditions of Rosedale’s Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with adjoining entities. The MOU provides guidelines for operation and

IRWD Strand Ranch Integraied Banking Project 4 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 ! 4 April 2015



monitoring of Rosedale’s groundwater banking programs. The MOUs allow for Rosedale to
operate its Conjunctive Use Program to achieve maximum water storage and withdrawal benefits,
while also avoiding, eliminating, or mitigating adverse impacts to the groundwater basin and to
the operation of other groundwater banking programs in the Kern Fan area. Potential mitigation
measures are identified in the MOU; and groundwater recovery operations at Strand Ranch would
adhere to the requirements of Rosedale’s current MOU.

Since certification of the Final EIR, Rosedale has developed the Long Term Project Recovery
Operations Plan Regarding Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District Projects (Long Term
Operations Plan), which implements the provisions of the MOU and is provided in Appendix A.
The Project will be operated in accordance with the Long Term Operations Plan, the purpose of
which is to designate specific measures to be employed to “prevent, eliminate or mitigate
significant adverse impacts” resulting from project operations. A general description of the
primary components of the Long Term Operations Plan is as follows:

A. Establish a Protocol for Monitoring and Reporting Groundwater Conditions:

o Conduct monitoring of groundwater conditions during years that recovery is expected
from a Rosedale project, in addition to the monitoring conducted by the Kern Fan
Monitoring Committee; report current groundwater levels monthly to the Rosedale
Board of Directors; and make reports available to the public on Rosedale’s website.

o Regularly update Rosedale’s Groundwater Model to actual conditions; use the Model
to predict future groundwater conditions; report modeling results to the Rosedale
Board of Directors; and make modeling results available to the public on Rosedale’s
web site.

o Recovery in any calendar year shall not commence until the Model has been run for
projected operations.

B. Implement Proactive Measures

o Rosedale’s Groundwater Model will be used to predict the contribution of Rosedale’s
projects to groundwater level declines in the area. The Model will be used to simulate
and compare the No-Project Condition to the Project Condition. The No-Project
Condition is the water level that would have been at any particular well location
absent the Rosedale project.

o The Model will be periodically run and updated as recovery plans become known or
change in any given year.

o The Model will be used to identify a negative project impact (NPI) based on the
comparison of No-Project Conditions and Project Conditions, and to identify the
wells at risk of impact during recovery operations.

IRWD Sirand Ranch Integrated Banking Project 5 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 ! 5 April 2015



C. Establish Triggers and Mitigation Actions

e}

e}

Mitigation measures will be implemented when a NPI is triggered in years when
average water levels at specified wells! are more than 140 feet from the surface as
measured on March 31 each year. It is expected that water levels will not decline to
an extent resulting in a NPI when water levels are less than 140 feet from the surface.

A NPI is triggered when the Model results predict that groundwater levels under
Project Conditions are 30 feet deeper than No-Project Conditions at a nearby existing
and operative well, and the well has (or is expected to) experience mechanical failure
or other operational problems due to declining water levels. Given historical
fluctuations in groundwater levels in the area when other nearby groundwater
banking projects are recovering, it is expected that additional declines attributable to
the proposed project beyond historic low groundwater levels could result in
operational problems at some existing wells.

The following measures would be implemented when a NPI is
triggered for an operational agricultural well:

When the Model predicts a NPI outside the current operating range of the
pump but within the potential operating range of the well, then Rosedale will
provide compensation to lower the well pump to meet the landowner’s needs.

When the Model predicts a NPT outside the current and potential operating
range of the well, then Rosedale will supply an equivalent water supply to
the affected landowner from an alternate source at no greater cost; provide
other acceptable mitigation to the landowner; or reduce or adjust pumping as
necessary to prevent, avoid, or eliminate the NPL

The following measures would be implemented when a NPI is
triggered for a domestic well:

When the Model predicts a NPT such that production ceases or is likely to
cease, then Rosedale will provide compensation to implement one of the
following: lower the domestic submersible pump bowl setting sufficient to
restore and maintain service; provide a one-time permanent connection to the
nearest water service provider; or drill and equip a new domestic well. If
necessary, Rosedale will provide interim in-home water supplies until one of
these actions is completed.

The Long Term Operations Plan is new information that was not known and could not have been
known at the time the previous EIR was certified. However, this new information does not result
in new significant environmental effects or more severe significant environmental effects. Rather
this new information implements the commitments in the MOU and provides additional

specificity in the form of triggers and mitigation actions for Project-related effects to neighboring

wells.

Wells 298/25E-27N1&2, 29S/25E-25M1&2, 29S/26E-31H1&2, and 29S5/25E-35G01 are the wells that will be used
to monitor groundwater levels. These wells have been determined to be best suited for detecting fluctuations in
groundwater levels due to project operations.

IRWD Sirand Ranch Integrated Banking Project 6 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 ! 6 April 2015



Cumulative Impacts

The Final EIR concluded that the Project would have no long-term cumulative impacts to
groundwater resources (Chapter 4.0). The proposed modifications would not change the
conclusions of the Final EIR. There would be no cumulatively considerable impacts to
groundwater associated with the proposed modifications based on the technical analysis provided
in the Strand Ranch Well Placement and Drawdown Analysis, Appendix F in the Final EIR.

7. Conc us ons
Section 15164(a) of the Guidelines states the following:

“The lead agency or a responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously
certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions
described in Section 15162 calling for preparation of a Subsequent EIR have occurred.”

The proposed modifications to the original Project would not result in new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant
effects. Furthermore, new information associated with the proposed modifications does not
indicate that the Project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the certified
EIR; that significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in
the certified EIR; that mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible
would in fact be feasible; or that mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably
different from those analyzed in the certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more
significant effects on the environment. Accordingly, an addendum was prepared as opposed to a
negative declaration or a subsequent environmental impact report. Rosedale and IRWD are
issuing this Addendum in accordance with the State CEQA Guidelines (Section 15164).

IRWD Strand Ranch Inlegrated Banking Project 7 ESA / D209086
Final EIR Addendum No 2 ! 7 April 2015



February 8, 2016
Prepared by: J. Davis / T. Fournier
Submitted by: R. Jacobson / C. Clary

Approved by: Paul Coo ¢~ T

CONSENT CALENDAR
2016 INDEX TENDER NOTES REMARKETING
SUMMARY:

The District’s Index Tender Note debt issues (2011 A-1 and 2011 A-2), which were originally
issued in April 2011, are within their annual remarketing period. Staff, the District’s
underwriters (Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley), and legal counsel have prepared the
required Remarketing Statements, attached as Exhibits “A” and “B”, respectively.

Legal counsel has prepared a resolution for adoption by the Board approving the Remarketing
Statements, attached as Exhibit “C”.

BACKGROUND:

The District currently has $53,100,000 of Index Tender Notes (ITNs), that are remarketed by
Goldman Sachs (2011 A-1) and $35,400,000 of ITNs that are remarketed by Morgan Stanley
(2011 A-2). The ITNs are remarketed annually based on a spread to the SIFMA tax-exempt
variable rate index. The last annual interest rate reset for the ITNs was in February 2015 at the
SIFMA weekly index with a spread of three basis points, resulting in an all-in rate for 2015 of
0.19%, which was a 0.01% increase from calendar year 2014. The all-in rate includes the net
interest rate (the index and spread) and annual remarketing fees of approximately 0.13%. The
interest rate spread, if any, to the SIFMA index will be determined on February 17, 2016.

Staff and legal counsel have prepared the Remarketing Statements reflecting the District’s most
recent financial information, updated disclosure information and other pertinent updates for the
2011 A-1 and 2011 A-2 issues, which are attached for the Board’s review as Exhibits “A” and
“B”, respectively.

Legal counsel has prepared a resolution for adoption by the Board approving the Remarketing
Statements, attached as Exhibit “C”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The current outstanding principal amount for the 2011 A-1 and A-2 ITN bond issues is $88.5
million. The ITNs are priced at a spread to the SIFMA tax-exempt.variable rate index, which
will occur on February 17, 2016.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on February 2, 2016

1j - F & P ITN-2016 Remarketing-2-2016.docx



Consent Calendar: 2016 Index Tender Notes Remarketing
February 8, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE 2016 INDEX TENDER NOTES REMARKETING
STATEMENTS, AND ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT APPROVING
REMARKETING STATEMENTS RELATING TO
UNSCHEDULED MANDATORY TENDERS
(REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-1 AND REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-2)

LIST OF EXHIBITS:
Exhibit “A” — Remarketing Statement for Series 2011A-1

Exhibit “B” — Remarketing Statement for Series 2011A-2
Exhibit “C” — Resolution Approving Remarketing Statements



Exhibit "A"
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 1/28/16

REOFFERING - NOT A NEW ISSUE - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATINGS: See the caption “RATINGS”

On April 15, 2011, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP and Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Co-Bond Counsel to the District, delivered their
respective opinions in connection with the issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Such opinions stated that, based on an analysis of existing laws,
regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain
covenants, interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds was excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and was exempt from State of California personal income taxes. Further, the opinions of Co-Bond Counsel stated that interest
on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds was not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although
Co-Bond Counsel observed that such interest was included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable
income. Co-Bond Counsel expressed no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or
receipt of interest on, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Co-Bond Counsel have not taken and do not intend to take any action to update such opinions or to
determine if interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is presently excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes or exempt from State of
California personal income taxes. See the caption “TAX MATTERS” herein.

[IRWD LOGO]

$53,100,000
BONDS OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-1
CUSIP': 4636324Q09

Date of Initial Delivery: April 15,2011  Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date: March 17, 2017 Due: October 1, 2037
Price: 100% Call Protection Date: September 17, 2016

This Remarketing Statement replaces the Remarketing Statement dated February 11, 2015, as supplemented on February 18, 2015, in its entirety.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 2011, by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee, relating to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, as amended, the District has exercised its option to effect an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender of
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on February 19, 2016.

Upon the purchase of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to such Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds: (i) will be remarketed in the
Index Mode for a Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016 with the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date on March 17, 2017; and (ii) will bear interest at
an Index Tender Rate (which is equal to the sum of: (a) the SIFMA Average Index Rate calculated for each Index Rate Accrual Period; and (b) the applicable
Index Spread for such Tender Period). Promptly after the Remarketing Agent determines the Index Spread for the Tender Period commencing on February 19,
20186, the District will publish it by supplementing this Remarketing Statement and posting the supplement on the EMMA system.

The Purchase Price of the tendered Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be paid on February 19, 2016 from moneys held by the Trustee, consisting of immediately
available funds on deposit in the Remarketing Proceeds Account, as more fully described herein.

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds were issued by the Irvine Ranch Water District and constitute the consolidated, several general obligations of
Improvement District Nos. 113, 125, 213 and 225, which are geographical subdivisions of the District through which the District funds capital
improvements. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are payable from the following sources: (i) Assessment Proceeds of each Improvement District, consisting
of ad valorem assessments on taxable land, In Lieu Charges and proceeds from the sale of property for the enforcement of delinquent assessments
collected from within each Improvement District and applied by the District to pay such Improvement District’s Included Amount of the principal,
Purchase Price and Redemption Price of, and interest on, all Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds; (ii) Net Revenues of the District, consisting of water,
sewer and reclaimed water rates and charges imposed by the District remaining after payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses; and (iii) certain
monies and investment earnings in certain funds and accounts created under the Indenture. See the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1
BONDS—Pledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues.” The obligation of the District to pay the principal, Purchase Price upon the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender and Redemption Price of, and interest on, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from Net Revenues is payable on a parity with certain Parity
Obligations described under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Limitations on Parity and Superior Obligations—
Obligations on a Parity with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.”

See the caption “INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225” and Appendix A under the caption “THE
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225” for a discussion of the consolidation of Improvement District Nos. 105 and
250, the Assessment Proceeds of which were pledged to payment of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds at the time of their initial issuance, into Improvement
District Nos. 125 and 225, respectively.

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Indenture for the purposes of: (i) providing a portion of the funds to refund the
then-outstanding Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District, Consolidated Refunding Series 2008B; and (ii) paying costs of issuance with respect to the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds were issued in fully registered form and are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York. Purchasers of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will not receive physical certificates representing their beneficial ownership
in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds purchased. The principal, Purchase Price and Redemption Price of, and interest on, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are payable
by the Trustee to Cede & Co. and such principal, Purchase Price, Redemption Price and interest payments are to be disbursed to the beneficial owners
of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds through their nominees.

While the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are in the Index Mode, interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be payable on the first Business Day of each
month. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be subject to a Scheduled Mandatory Tender on March 17, 2017. The failure of the District to pay the Purchase
Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds upon any Scheduled Mandatory Tender would constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture. See the caption

T CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services (CGS) is managed on behalf of the American Bankers
Association by S&P Capital 1Q. Copyright© 2016 CUSIP Global Services. All rights reserved. CUSIP® data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services.
This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CGS database. CUSIP® numbers are provided for
convenience of reference only. Neither the District nor the Remarketing Agent takes any responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers.

A-1



“THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Scheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase.” The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are also
subject to mandatory tender on an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date at the option of the District as described herein. The failure of the District to
pay the Purchase Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds upon such Unscheduled Mandatory Tender would not constitute an Event of Default under the
Indenture. See the caption “THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase.” While
in the Index Mode, individual purchases of Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be made in principal amounts of $100,000 and integral multiples of $5,000 in
excess thereof.

This Remarketing Statement describes the Series 2011A-1 Bonds while in the Index Mode and for the Tender Period commencing on
February 19, 2016 and ending on the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date set forth above. There are significant differences in the terms of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds while they bear interest in a Mode other than an Index Mode. This Remarketing Statement is not intended to provide
information with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds bearing interest in a Mode other than the Index Mode or in another Tender Period.
Owners and prospective owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing Statement for information in connection
with any Change in Mode or any other Tender Period, but should look solely to the offering document to be used in connection with any such
Change in Mode or other Tender Period.

Concurrently with the reoffering of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the District anticipates reoffering its Series 2011A-2 Bonds. Owners or
prospective owners of the Series 2011A-2 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing Statement for information relating to the Series 2011A-2
Bonds but should look instead to the most current Remarketing Statement prepared by the District for the Series 2011A-2 Bonds.

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to maturity as more fully described under the caption “THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds.”

THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OTHER THAN THE DISTRICT AND THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS AS PROVIDED IN
THE INDENTURE. NO FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT OR THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN THE FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE
TRUST ESTATE, ARE LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL, REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF, OR INTEREST
ON, THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE WITH RESPECT TO THE TRUST ESTATE, NEITHER
THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE DISTRICT IS LIABLE FOR OR PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE
PRINCIPAL, REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF, OR INTEREST ON, THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

This cover page contains certain information for general reference only. It is not intended to be a summary of the security or terms of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds. Investors are advised to read the entire Remarketing Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed
investment decision. Capitalized terms have the meanings given such terms in this Remarketing Statement.

Certain legal matters in connection with the reoffering of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be passed upon by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as
Co-Bond Counsel to the District, by Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, as Co-Bond Counsel to the District and general counsel to the District, and
for the Remarketing Agent by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are available through the
facilities of The Depository Trust Company. Goldman, Sachs & Co. is serving as Remarketing Agent and will remarket the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on
February 19, 2016 following their mandatory tender.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Series 2011A-1 Bonds Remarketing Agent

Dated: February _, 2016



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District or the
Remarketing Agent to give any information or to make any representation other than as set forth herein
and, if given or made, such other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the District or the Remarketing Agent. This Remarketing Statement does not constitute
an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such an offer,
solicitation or sale.

This Remarketing Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Statements contained in this Remarketing Statement which involve estimates,
forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such
and are not to be construed as representations of facts.

The Remarketing Agent has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Remarketing
Statement:

The Remarketing Agent has reviewed the information in this Remarketing
Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors
under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of
this transaction, but the Remarketing Agent does not guarantee the accuracy
or completeness of such information.

The information set forth in this Remarketing Statement has been obtained from official sources and
other sources which are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness and is
not to be construed as a representation by the Remarketing Agent. The information and expressions of opinion
herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Remarketing Statement nor any
sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the
affairs of the District since the date hereof.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE REMARKETING AGENT MAY OVERALLOT
OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE
OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

CERTAIN STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS REMARKETING STATEMENT
REFLECT NOT HISTORICAL FACTS BUT FORECASTS AND “FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS.” NO ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT THE FUTURE RESULTS DISCUSSED
HEREIN WILL BE ACHIEVED, AND ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM
THE FORECASTS DESCRIBED HEREIN. IN THIS RESPECT, THE WORDS “ESTIMATE,”
“PROJECT,” “ANTICIPATE,” “EXPECT,” “INTEND,” “BELIEVE” AND SIMILAR
EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. ALL
PROJECTIONS, FORECASTS, ASSUMPTIONS, EXPRESSIONS OF OPINIONS, ESTIMATES AND
OTHER FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED IN THEIR
ENTIRETY BY THE CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS SET FORTH IN THIS REMARKETING
STATEMENT. THE PROJECTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS REMARKETING STATEMENT WILL
NOT BE UPDATED AS PART OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT.
THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.

The District maintains a website. However, the information presented there is not part of this
Remarketing Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision with respect to the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds.



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Orange County, California

Board of Directors

Mary Aileen Matheis, President
Douglas J. Reinhart, Vice President
Steven E. LaMar
Peer A. Swan
John B. Withers

Management
Paul A. Cook, General Manager
Cheryl Clary, Executive Director of Finance and Administration
Robert Jacobson, Treasurer
Leslie Bonkowski, Secretary

District General Counsel

Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone
Newport Beach, California

Co-Bond Counsel

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone
Los Angeles, California Newport Beach, California

Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
Los Angeles, California



[REGIONAL MAP]



[MAP OF WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS]



[MAP OF SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS]

A-7



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTION ...ttt stttk b et e st e b e e b e e b 2R e e b e e b e s b e e e b e e b e e b e e e R e e b e eb e et e e eseebesbeseeneeneabenas 1
U0 0L RSP UPRRPPR 1
B =T 1] T SRS 2
The SErieS 20L1A-1 BONAS ....ccuveieiieieetieiesieste et ste et e e te s et et e stesse e e e tesaeesaeseeeesseeseeseeaesseaneeneesaessennean 2
IMPIOVEMENT DISIIICES. ... eiuiitiite ettt ettt b et e st e e beesb e st e s beebeessesbesbeessebesbeensensentesreeneas 3
Security for the Series 2011A-1 BONGS.......vcviiiieieeiese et eee et esee e stesteeneeseesaesseeseeseeneeseessens 4
Professionals Involved in the REMArKELING.........ccviiiiiiieie i 6
SUMMANiES NOt DEFINITIVE ..ottt et esbeereeseeneesreene e 6
Aditional INFOrMAtION ........ooiiiiiii ettt a e st e e be b et e s reete e e e sresreens 7
THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS. ... .ottt sttt b bbbtk b bbbt s b e et b e e b e sb e eseebe b neas 7
LC =T LT | SRS 7
PAYMENT OF INTEIEST ... ettt et e et e et e et e e beebe e beesbeesseesaeasseesbeasaeaseeaneeas 8
Determination of Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds
LT a0 e 1 oo SR 8
Mandatory Tender FOr PUFCNASE. ........c.cviiiiiie ettt sttt sttt te e sreera e sreereens 9
Purchase 0f Series 2011A-1 BONUS......ccccueiiiieiieie ettt eaestesteareeneesneeneenees 10
Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory
=T LT SRS OO SRUPERTPSRRTR 11
Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory
=] =T PSSR 13
(08 TaTo LT T Y oo SRS 15
Mandatory Purchase of Series 2011A-1 BONGS ......ccccveveiiierieiesiesesieeienie e sreeee e see e sseeeeseessesseeneessennens 15
LT e LYot =T o = o oo S 16
Refinancing and REIAtE RISKS .........ccciciiiiiiiic et aeens 16
Redemption of Series 2011A-1 BONAS........c.coeiiiiiiieicie ettt sttt sttt s a e reeaeenes 17
Selection of Series 2011A-1 Bonds for REAEMPLION ......cvviiiieieerecie e 18
o A Torcl ) 1R (=T (=T T oL o SRS 18
Allocation of Credits for Purchased or Redeemed Series 2011A-1 BONAS..........ccccceevieieveieieeieiece e 18
BOOK-ENTIY ONIY SYSTEBIM ..ottt sttt sttt et et e e s et esteeteeseeneesaeaseeneensenneeneas 19
SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS .......oiiiiiiiiiteiietite et 19
GBNEIAL ...ttt ettt b e bt a e b e heete At ete e he R e e Rt e beeteeReerb e beete et e nteebeenberesreereenrenns 19
Pledge of Assessment ProCeeds aNd REVENUES ...........ceeueieierieieriesiesieeie e sieseeseesaeseesseeseeseessesseeseeseesseenes 21
Allocation of Monies Under the INAENTUIE ...........ooviieie i 22
EXISting Parity ODIIGALIONS ..........coiiiiiciie sttt et e teete et e sbeene et e teeneenes 24
Limitations on Parity and SUPerior OBligations.........c.cceiiiiiieeie i 25
Investment of Monies in Funds and Accounts Under the INdenture..........ccocveeevvveveeiene s 26
THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT ..ottt s 26
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ... ..ottt sttt sttt ettt seebesbe st e s e e besbeseeneeneeneesees 27
LITTGATION L.ttt bbb bbb bbbt b bbb bt h bbbt e st e bt et b en e b nnes 27
RATINGS ...ttt ettt b et e bt bt b e e e R e e bt e b e e b oAb e E £ e b e A b e e e R £ e b e e b e e eR e e R e e bt ebenb e s b e seebesbe s eneaneabaes 27
TAX MATTERS. ...ttt ettt st et s e Rt st e et e e st e be st et e st e be et et e s e eb e ebe s e st eseabesteneeneenentens 28
(@ g0 10T L@ o] 0] L] LSS 28
No Updated Co-Bond Counsel OPINIONS..........ciiiiiierieiein e sttt sresneeneas 28
GENETAl CONSIABIALIONS .......cuviiviite ettt ettt ettt e st e e ae et e sbe s b e e aa e b e besbeese et e sbesbesbeensesesteereenes 28
REMARKETING AGENT ...ttt bbbtk btk b bbbt b bbb 29
i



APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS ... 30

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ..ot 30
MISCELLANEQOUS ...ttt ettt ettt r et r e nn et re s S-1
APPENDIX A IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT ...t A-1
APPENDIX B AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS......coiiiiii s B-1
APPENDIX C SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE..........ccccccooiviiiinne. C-1
APPENDIX D CO-BOND COUNSEL OPINIONS........ccoiiiiiitieee et D-1
APPENDIX E BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM .....iiiiiiiiiiiiic s E-1
APPENDIX F FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE ... F-1
i



REMARKETING STATEMENT

$53,100,000
BONDS OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-1

INTRODUCTION

This Remarketing Statement replaces the Remarketing Statement dated February 11, 2015, as
supplemented on February 18, 2015, in its entirety.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 2011 (the “Original
Indenture”), by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee
(the “Trustee™), as amended by the First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of February 1, 2014 (the
“First Supplemental Indenture” and, together with the Original Indenture, the “Indenture’), by and between
the District and the Trustee, relating to the Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District Refunding Series 2011A-1
(the ““Series 2011A-1 Bonds™), the Irvine Ranch Water District (the “District™) has exercised its option to
effect an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on February 19, 2016.

Upon the purchase of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to such Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds: (i) will be remarketed in the Index Mode for a Tender Period commencing on February
19, 2016 with the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date of March 17, 2017; and (ii) will bear interest at an Index
Tender Rate (which is equal to the sum of: (a) the SIFMA Average Index Rate calculated for each Index Rate
Accrual Period; and (b) the applicable Index Spread for such Tender Period), all as more fully described
herein.

Promptly after the Remarketing Agent determines the Index Spread for the Tender Period
commencing on February 19, 2016, the District will publish it by supplementing this Remarketing Statement
and posting the supplement with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its Electronic Municipal
Market Access System (“EMMA”).

The Purchase Price of the tendered Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be paid on February 19, 2016 from
moneys held by the Trustee, consisting of immediately available funds on deposit in the Remarketing Proceeds
Account, as more fully described herein.

This Introduction is subject in all respects to the more complete information contained and referenced
elsewhere in this Remarketing Statement. The remarketing of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to potential investors
is made only by means of the entire Remarketing Statement.

Purpose

The purpose of this Remarketing Statement, which includes the cover page and appendices hereto, is
to set forth certain information concerning the District and Improvement District Nos. 113, 125, 213 and 225
(collectively, the “Improvement Districts” or individually, an “Improvement District”) which are geographical
subdivisions of the District through which the District funds capital improvements, in connection with the
remarketing of $53,100,000 aggregate principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, which Series 2011A-1
Bonds constitute the consolidated several general obligations of Improvement District Nos. 113, 125, 213 and
225. In addition, the District has pledged Revenues to the repayment of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See the
caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—PIledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues.”

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Indenture for the purposes of: (i) providing a
portion of the funds to refund the then-outstanding Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District, Consolidated



Refunding Series 2008B; and (ii) paying costs of issuance with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings ascribed to them in Appendix C—
“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.”

This Remarketing Statement describes the Series 2011A-1 Bonds only while in the Index Mode
and for the Tender Period commencing February 19, 2016. There are significant differences in the
terms of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds while they bear interest in a Mode other than an Index Mode. This
Remarketing Statement is not intended to provide information with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
bearing interest in a Mode other than the Index Mode or in another Tender Period. Owners and
prospective owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing Statement for
information in connection with any Change in Mode or any other Tender Period, but should look solely
to the offering document to be used in connection with any such Change in Mode or other Tender
Period.

Concurrently with the reoffering of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the District anticipates reoffering
its Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District Refunding Series 2011A-2 (the “Series 2011A-2 Bonds”).
Owners or prospective owners of the Series 2011A-2 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing
Statement for information relating to the Series 2011A-2 Bonds but should look instead to the most
current Remarketing Statement prepared by the District for the Series 2011A-2 Bonds.

Although the District has the right under the Indenture to enter into a Liquidity Facility in
connection with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the District has not elected to enter into a Liquidity Facility
in connection with the remarketing of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for the Tender Period commencing
February 19, 2016. This Remarketing Statement is not intended to provide information with respect to
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds supported by a Liquidity Facility. Owners and prospective owners of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing Statement for information in connection with
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds supported by a Liquidity Facility, but should look solely to the offering
document to be used in connection with any future entry of the District into a Liquidity Facility with
respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

The District

The District is a California water district, formed in 1961 under the authority of the California Water
District Law, constituting Division 13 of the California Water Code (the “Act”). Currently there are seven
water improvement districts and ten sewer improvement districts formed pursuant to the Act, which are
geographical subdivisions of the District through which the District funds capital improvements. See
Appendix A—“IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT.”

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are being remarketed in an Index Mode for a Tender Period commencing
on February 19, 2016 with the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date of March 17, 2017 and will bear interest at
an Index Tender Rate (which is equal to the sum of: (a) the SIFMA Average Index Rate calculated for each
Index Rate Accrual Period; and (b) the applicable Index Spread for such Tender Period, all as more fully
described under the caption “THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS”). While in the Index Mode, interest on the
2011A-1 Bonds will be payable on the first Business Day of each month. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be
subject to a Scheduled Mandatory Tender on March 17, 2017. The failure of the District to pay the Purchase
Price of a Series 2011A-1 Bond upon any Scheduled Mandatory Tender would constitute an Event of Default
under the Indenture. See the caption “THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Remarketing and Purchase of Series
2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender—Consequences of a Scheduled Mandatory
Tender Failure.” The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are also subject to mandatory tender on an Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender Date established at the option of the District as described herein. See the caption “THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase.”



While in the Index Mode, individual purchases of Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be made in principal amounts of
$100,000 and integral multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof.

Improvement Districts

Set forth below are brief descriptions of the Improvement Districts for which the Series 2011A-1
Bonds constitute the consolidated, several general obligations. For more complete information with respect to
the Improvement Districts, see Appendix A—“IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT” under the caption
“THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS.”

Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225. At the time of their initial issuance on April 15, 2011, the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds constituted the consolidated, several general obligations of Improvement District Nos.
105, 113, 213 and 250. Pursuant to the Indenture, the District covenanted to fix and collect ad valorem
assessments on taxable land within such improvement districts in amounts sufficient to pay principal of and
interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See the caption “—Security for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds—
Assessment Proceeds.”

Beginning in 2011, the District undertook a long-term review of its capital funding plan. As a result
of such review, the Board of Directors of the District determined that it was in the District’s best interest to
consolidate certain improvement districts to support differing capital infrastructure needs within developed and
undeveloped areas of the District. Accordingly, by resolutions adopted on October 14, 2013, October 28, 2013
and November 11, 2013, the Board of Directors of the District undertook the following actions:

. Certain lands were annexed into Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250 in accordance with
Section 36428 et seq. of the Act. The annexed lands were declared to be liable for debt service on the
outstanding bonds of Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250, including each such Improvement District’s
Included Amount (as such term is defined under the caption “—Security for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds—
General”) of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

. Certain lands generally constituting large permanent open space parcels were detached from
Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250 in accordance with Section 36442 et seq. of the Act. The detached
lands were declared to be relieved of liability for debt service on the outstanding bonds of Improvement
District Nos. 105 and 250, including each such Improvement District’s Included Amount of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds to the extent permitted by law.

. Improvement District No. 105 and ten other water improvement districts were consolidated
into a new improvement district, Improvement District No. 125, in accordance with Section 36454 et seq. of
the Act. Pursuant to Section 36454.1 of the Act, Improvement District No. 105’s Included Amount of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds was assumed by and became the liability of Improvement District No. 125.

. Improvement District No. 250 and nine other sewer improvement districts were consolidated
into a new improvement district, Improvement District No. 225, in accordance with Section 36454 et seq. of
the Act. Pursuant to Section 36454.1 of the Act, Improvement District No. 250°s Included Amount of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds was assumed by and became the liability of Improvement District No. 225.

As a result of the foregoing actions:

. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds currently constitute the consolidated, several general obligations
of Improvement District Nos. 113, 125, 213 and 225. Pursuant to the Act, Improvement District Nos. 125 and
225 are authorized to levy and collect the assessments and charges necessary to satisfy the obligations of their
predecessor improvement districts, including the assessments and charges necessary to satisfy payment of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds for Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250, respectively.



. As of December 31, 2015: (i) Improvement District No. 125 had $322,089,600 aggregate
principal amount of authorized but unissued ad valorem assessment bonds and $184,154,205 aggregate
principal amount of outstanding ad valorem assessment bonds, including the Series 2011A-1 Bonds; and (ii)
Improvement District No. 225 had $406,895,000 aggregate principal amount of authorized but unissued ad
valorem assessment bonds and $231,726,235 aggregate principal amount of outstanding ad valorem
assessment bonds, including the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See Table 3 under the caption “THE IRVINE
RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Outstanding Indebtedness—Improvement District Indebtedness” in Appendix
A

Improvement District No. 125 (water) covers approximately 35,438 acres of the District, including
several contiguous and non-contiguous areas in the central and coastal parts of the District. Improvement
District No. 225 (sewer) covers approximately 32,862 acres of the District, including several contiguous and
non-contiguous areas in the central part of the District. Currently, the majority of the land within Improvement
District Nos. 125 and 225 consists of developed residential property. However, the District expects certain
areas within Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 to be subject to infill development and redevelopment in
the future. The District expects such additional development in Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 to
continue through at least 2020. The Fiscal Year 2016 assessed value of the land in Improvement District No.
125 is $32,752,414,757, while the Fiscal Year 2014 assessed value of the land in Improvement District No.
105 before its consolidation into Improvement District No. 125 was $7,099,866,552. The Fiscal Year 2016
assessed value of the land in Improvement District No. 225 is $27,557,606,802, while the Fiscal Year 2014
assessed value of the land in Improvement District No. 250 before its consolidation into Improvement District
No. 225 was $6,776,400,622.

See Table 3 under the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Outstanding
Indebtedness—Improvement District Indebtedness” in Appendix A for a description of the ad valorem
assessment bonds, including the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, attributable to Improvement District Nos. 125 and
225, respectively.

Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213. Improvement District No. 113 (water) and Improvement
District No. 213 (sewer) are coterminous and are located in portions of the Cities of Tustin and Irvine.
Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213 are comprised of approximately 1,629 acres of the land formerly
known as Marine Corps Air Station Tustin. The boundaries of Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213 are
Harvard Avenue on the southeast, Barranca Parkway on the southwest, Red Hill Avenue on the northwest and
Edinger Avenue on the northeast. The former helicopter base, now known as Tustin Legacy, is currently being
redeveloped with residential, commercial, institutional and recreational uses. The District expects
development in Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213 to continue through at least 2020. The District
expects that the total existing and future development will consist of 4,800 dwelling units and 12,100,000
square feet of commercial, institutional and recreational uses. The Fiscal Year 2016 assessed value of the land
in coterminous Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213 is $827,524,085.

Security for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds

General. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds constitute the consolidated, several general obligations of the
Improvement Districts payable from the following sources, each as further described under the caption
“SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS”: (i) Assessment Proceeds collected from within each
Improvement District and applied by the District to pay such Improvement District’s Included Amount (as
defined below) of the principal, Purchase Price and Redemption Price of, and interest on, all Outstanding
Series 2011A-1 Bonds; (ii) Net Revenues of the District; and (iii) certain monies and investment earnings in
certain funds and accounts created under the Indenture.

The principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds allocated to an Improvement District is referred to
as such Improvement District’s “Included Amount” and an Improvement District’s Included Amount divided



by the total principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is referred to as such Improvement District’s
“Included Percentage.”

Assessment Proceeds. The District has covenanted in the Indenture that, to the extent necessary to
provide Assessment Proceeds sufficient to pay when due, together with the other funds available for such
payment, the principal of and interest on the Included Amount for each respective Improvement District, the
District will: (a) fix and collect, or cause the fixing and collection of, ad valorem assessments on taxable land
within the applicable Improvement District; (b) pursue any remedy available to collect, or cause the collection
of, delinquent ad valorem assessments and apply amounts realized from the sale of any property for the
enforcement of delinquent ad valorem assessments to the payment of principal of and interest on the Included
Amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds of the applicable Improvement District; or (c) in its discretion, impose
and collect, or cause the imposition and collection of, In Lieu Charges (which constitute charges for water or
sewer service, as applicable, in the applicable Improvement District in lieu of ad valorem assessments). See
the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—General—Covenant to Collect Assessment
Proceeds.”

As among the Improvement Districts, Assessment Proceeds collected in any Improvement District
will not be available to pay any other Improvement District’s share of debt service of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds. Each Improvement District’s Included Amount and Included Percentage will be as set forth below:

SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS

Improvement District No. Included Amount Included Percentage
113 $ 2,655,000 5.00%
125 24,797,700 46.70
213 3,345,300 6.30
225 22,302,000 42.00
Total $ 53,100,000 100.00%

The Included Amount for each Improvement District with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and
any other outstanding or future District general obligation bonds issued for such Improvement District are
equally secured by the ad valorem assessments and any charges for water or sewer service, as applicable,
imposed and collected in lieu of ad valorem assessments, collected within such Improvement District. The ad
valorem assessments are levied only on land and are based on the land value of parcels in the Improvement
District without regard to the value of any improvements thereon. See Appendix A—“IRVINE RANCH
WATER DISTRICT” under the captions “THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS—Improvement District
Nos. 125 and 225” and “THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS—Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213.”

During the term of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the Included Amounts and Included Percentages for
any Improvement District may be adjusted as a result of the purchase or redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds
allocated to one or more Improvement Districts, pursuant to calculations made by the District and delivered to
the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, without need for any amendment of or supplement to the Indenture.

Net Revenues. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are also payable from the Net Revenues of the District and
are secured by a pledge of the Revenues of the District, subject to the application of the Revenues as provided
in the Indenture. Net Revenues for any period consist of the Revenues of the District less the Operation and
Maintenance Expenses of the District for such period, as such terms are defined under the caption
“SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—PIledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues—Net
Revenues.”

Net Revenues collected within any improvement district of the District, including the Improvement
Districts, are available to make debt service payments on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.



The obligation of the District to pay the principal, Redemption Price and Purchase Price (other than
the Purchase Price due on an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender) of, and interest on, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
from Net Revenues is payable on a parity with the District’s obligations under certain Parity Obligations. See
the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—EXxisting Parity Obligations.” The District
may enter into additional Parity Obligations in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. See the caption
“SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—Limitations on Parity and Superior Obligations—
Obligations on a Parity with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.”

The District has covenanted in the Indenture, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to fix, prescribe
and collect Revenues which, together with any ad valorem assessments available to pay Debt Service on Parity
Obligations which are not applied as a credit against Debt Service, will be at least sufficient to yield during
each Fiscal Year Net Revenues which are at least equal to 125% of Aggregate Debt Service payable during
such Fiscal Year. The District may make adjustments from time to time in such rates and charges and may
make such classifications thereof as it deems necessary, but will not reduce the rates and charges then in effect
unless the Net Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will at all times be sufficient to meet the
requirements of the rate covenant with respect to all outstanding Parity Obligations. See the caption
“SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—General—Revenue Rate Covenant.”

Limited Obligations. = THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN
OBLIGATION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA OTHER THAN THE DISTRICT AND THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE. NO FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT OR THE IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN THE FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE TRUST ESTATE, ARE LIABLE
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL, REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF,
OR INTEREST ON, THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE
WITH RESPECT TO THE TRUST ESTATE, NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE
TAXING POWER OF THE DISTRICT IS LIABLE FOR OR PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF
THE PRINCIPAL, REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF, OR INTEREST ON, THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

Professionals Involved in the Remarketing

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. serves as Trustee under the Indenture. Certain
legal matters in connection with the reoffering of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be passed upon by Orrick,
Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as Co-Bond Counsel to the District, by Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, as
Co-Bond Counsel to the District and general counsel to the District (“General Counsel”), and for Goldman,
Sachs & Co. (the “Remarketing Agent”) by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation.

Summaries Not Definitive

The summaries and references to all documents, statutes, reports and other instruments referred to
herein do not purport to be complete, comprehensive or definitive, and each such summary or reference is
qualified in its entirety by reference to each such document, statute, report or instrument. The capitalization of
any word not conventionally capitalized or otherwise defined herein indicates that such word is defined in the
Indenture and, as used herein, has the meaning given to it in the Indenture. Unless otherwise indicated, all
financial and statistical information herein has been provided by the District.

All references to and summaries of the Indenture, documents, statutes, reports and other instruments
referred to herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full Indenture, and each such document,
statute, report or instrument, respectively. Forward looking statements in this Remarketing Statement are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results may vary from forecasts or projections contained herein
because events and circumstances do not occur as expected, and such variances may be material. The



projections contained in this Remarketing Statement will not be updated as part of the District’s continuing
disclosure obligations for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

Additional Information

Copies of the Indenture and audited financial statements of the District are available for inspection at
the offices of the District in Irvine, California, and will be available from the Trustee upon request and
payment of costs. Additional information regarding this Remarketing Statement may be obtained by
contacting the District, at the following address:

Treasurer

Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, California 92618
(949) 453-5300

THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS

This Remarketing Statement describes the Series 2011A-1 Bonds while in the Index Mode and
for the Tender Period described herein only. There are significant differences in the terms of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds while they bear interest in a Mode other than an Index Mode. This Remarketing
Statement is not intended to provide information with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds bearing
interest in a Mode other than the Index Mode or in another Tender Period. Owners and prospective
owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds should not rely on this Remarketing Statement for information in
connection with any Change in Mode or any other Tender Period, but should look solely to the offering
document to be used in connection with any such Change in Mode or other Tender Period.

General

The Series 2011A-1 Bonds mature on October 1, 2037. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are being
remarketed in an Index Mode for a Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016 with the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date set forth on the front cover page hereof and will bear interest at an Index Tender Rate
(which is equal to the sum of: (a) the SIFMA Average Index Rate calculated for each Index Rate Accrual
Period; and (b) the applicable Index Spread for such Tender Period). Notice of the Index Spread for the
Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016 will be given as described under the caption “—
Determination of Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index
Mode—Index Spread; Adjustment of Index Spread.” All Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be in the
same Mode. Any Mode, other than a Fixed Rate Mode, may be changed to any other Mode at the times and in
the manner provided in the Indenture.

While in the Index Mode, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be subject to all of the terms of the Indenture
relating to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds in the Index Mode, including provisions that require the Owners to
tender their Series 2011A-1 Bonds for purchase on the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date and on other dates
as described in this Remarketing Statement, and provisions that permit the District to effect an Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender (which Unscheduled Mandatory Tender is subject to rescission and successful remarketing
as described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Rescission™). See the captions “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase” and “—
Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds.”

While in the Index Mode, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are not subject to tender for purchase at the
option of the Owners.



The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are in the form of fully registered bonds and are registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as
securities depository for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. While the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are in the Index Mode,
individual purchases of Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be made in principal amounts of $100,000 and integral
multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof. See the caption “—Book-Entry Only System” and Appendix E hereto.

Payment of Interest

Interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds in an Index Mode will be calculated on the basis of a
365/366-day year for the actual number of days elapsed. Interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds in an Index
Mode and for the Tender Period commencing February 19, 2016 is payable on the first Business Day of each
calendar month, commencing March 1, 2016, and on each Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory
Tender Date and Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date on which all outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds are
purchased (each, an “Interest Payment Date™).

During the Index Mode, payment will be made on each Interest Payment Date for unpaid interest
accrued from and including each Interest Accrual Date, which is the first day of each Tender Period and each
Interest Payment Date thereafter. The amount of interest payable on each such Interest Payment Date will be
determined in accordance with the provisions described under the caption “—Determination of Index Tender
Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index Mode—Duration of Tender Period”)
and, thereafter, the first Business Day of each month during such Tender Period (each, an “Interest Accrual
Date™) to but excluding such Interest Payment Date. Notwithstanding any provision of the Indenture, at no
time may the rate of interest on any Series 2011A-1 Bond exceed the Maximum Rate.

Determination of Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in
Index Mode

Determination of SIFMA Average Index Rate and Index Tender Rate. During each Tender Period,
no later than 11:00 a.m.” on the Business Day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date while the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds bear interest in the Index Mode, the Trustee will deliver written notice to the District
and the Remarketing Agent specifying the SIFMA Average Index Rate and the Index Tender Rate for, and the
aggregate amount of interest that accrued during, the Index Rate Accrual Period ending on the day preceding
such Interest Payment Date together with a detailed calculation of the foregoing. All percentages resulting
from the calculation of the SIFMA Average Index Rate will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest
ten-thousandth of a percentage point with five hundred thousandths of a percentage point rounded upward, and
all dollar amounts used in or resulting from such calculation of interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds while
bearing interest in an Index Mode will be rounded to the nearest cent (with one-half cent being rounded
upward).

Index Spread; Adjustment of Index Spread. Promptly after the Remarketing Agent determines the
Index Spread for the Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016, the District will publish it by
supplementing this Remarketing Statement and posting the supplement with EMMA. With respect to
subsequent Tender Periods, the Index Spread will be determined by the Remarketing Agent and adjusted as
described under the captions “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with
Scheduled Mandatory Tender” and “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection
with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender.” During each Tender Period, the Index Spread with respect to such
Tender Period will apply to all Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

Duration of Tender Period. A Tender Period will commence on February 19, 2016 and will have a
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date of March 17, 2017. Thereafter, each Tender Period will commence on the
first to occur of: (i) the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date of the immediately preceding Tender Period; (ii) an

* Unless otherwise expressly stated, all times referred to in this Remarketing Statement are New York City time.



Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date in connection with any Unscheduled Mandatory Tender if all Series
2011A-1 Bonds are actually purchased as described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series
2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds;”
and (iii) the effective date of a Change in Mode to an Index Mode. Each Tender Period will terminate on the
first to occur of: (a) the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date; (b) an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date in
connection with any Unscheduled Mandatory Tender if all Series 2011A-1 Bonds are actually purchased as
described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds;” (c) the first date on which the Series
2011A-1 Bonds bear interest in a Mode other than the Index Mode; or (d) the date on which all Series 2011A-1
Bonds are redeemed in accordance with the terms of the Indenture or all principal and accrued interest on all
Series 2011A-1 Bonds are otherwise paid in full.

Mandatory Tender for Purchase

Scheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase. Unless the Series 2011A-1 Bonds subject to a Tender
Period have been purchased (including in connection with a Change in Mode or an Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender) or redeemed prior to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for such Tender Period, the Owners of all
of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will tender for purchase, and the District will purchase, all of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds on the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for such Tender Period. The Trustee will give notice of each
Scheduled Mandatory Tender to the Owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds as provided in the Indenture not less
than seven days prior to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date. With respect to the Tender Period
commencing on February 19, 2016, the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date is March 17, 2017 and, with
respect to each subsequent Tender Period, the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date will be determined as
described under the caption “—Determination of Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for
Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index Mode—Duration of Tender Period.” Failure of the District to pay the
Purchase Price for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date constitutes an Event of
Default under the Indenture. See the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in
Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender—Consequences of a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Failure”
below.

Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase. While the Series 2011A-1 Bonds bear interest in an
Index Mode, at its option, the District may require, during each Tender Period, the Owners of all (but not less
than all) of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to tender their Series 2011A-1 Bonds to the District for purchase, from
the source of funds described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in
Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds” on any Business Day
from and after the Call Protection Date for such Tender Period. The Call Protection Date for the Tender
Period commencing February 19, 2016 is set forth on the front cover page hereof. To exercise such option, the
District will deliver to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office and the Remarketing Agent, no later than 10
days before the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the written notice of Unscheduled Mandatory Tender
described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Effect of a Successful Remarketing.” The Trustee will give notice of each
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender to the Owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds as provided in the Indenture not
less than seven days prior to the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date. Except as provided under the captions
“—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender—Rescission” and “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Failure to Meet Conditions,” the Trustee will pay to the Owners of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from the proceeds of the
remarketing of such Series 2011A-1 Bonds as described under the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of
Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1
Bonds.” If all outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds are purchased, the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date is
also an Interest Payment Date for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and the District will pay the unpaid accrued
interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on such date. The failure to pay the purchase price of Series 2011A-1
Bonds in connection with an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender does not constitute an Event of Default under the



Indenture and the purchase of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds subject to mandatory tender will be cancelled and the
Index Mode Tender Period will continue. See the caption “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1
Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Failure to Meet Conditions.”

Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds

The Remarketing Agent has agreed to use its best efforts to remarket the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
pursuant to the Indenture at the minimum interest rate available in the marketplace to permit the Remarketing
Agent to remarket the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on the Purchase Date, Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, as applicable, at the principal amount
thereof; provided that the remarketing of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds in connection with a Scheduled Mandatory
Tender or an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender will be as provided under the captions “—Remarketing and
Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender” and “—Remarketing
and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender,” respectively.
Series 2011A-1 Bonds subject to purchase on a Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date
or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date will be purchased from the Owners thereof at the Purchase Price
which will be payable solely from the following sources in the order listed, except that the Purchase Price in
connection with an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender is payable solely from the source described in clause (i)
below:

(M Immediately available funds on deposit in the Remarketing Proceeds Account; and
(i) Immediately available funds on deposit in the District Purchase Account.

See Appendix C under the caption “DEFINITIONS” for a description of the Remarketing Proceeds
Account and District Purchase Account.

At or before 3:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding each Mandatory Purchase Date,
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the Remarketing Agent: (i) unless
otherwise provided in a Representation Letter, is to deliver to the Trustee instructions for registration of Series
2011A-1 Bonds remarketed in accordance with the Indenture; and (ii) is to give Electronic Notice to the
Trustee and the District, specifying the aggregate principal amount of Series 2011A-1 Bonds not remarketed, if
any. If the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are registered in the name of a Bond Depository or its nominee, and if the
amount of such remarketing proceeds is sufficient to pay the Purchase Price of all Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be
purchased on the Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender Date, as applicable, the Remarketing Agent may apply such remarketing proceeds to the appropriate
accounts of such Bond Depository to effect payment of the Purchase Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in
accordance with the procedures established by such Bond Depository.

If the amount of proceeds from the remarketing delivered to the Trustee indicates that Series 2011A-1
Bonds are required to be purchased from moneys provided by the District, the Trustee will give Electronic
Notice to the District at or prior to 11:30 a.m. on such date specifying the information set forth in the
Indenture. Upon receipt of such notice, on each Mandatory Purchase Date and Scheduled Mandatory Tender
Date, the District is to deposit with the Trustee in the District Purchase Account, by 2:00 p.m. on such date,
immediately available funds in an amount together with the remarketing proceeds, to enable the Trustee to pay
the Purchase Price of the tendered Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Unless otherwise provided in a Representation
Letter, on each Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date and, if all Series 2011A-1 Bonds
are purchased, each Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, all Series 2011A-1 Bonds which have been
remarketed will be registered as directed by the Remarketing Agent.

The Trustee will pay from the funds specified in the Indenture, the Purchase Price for each tendered
Series 2011A-1 Bond at or prior to 3:00 p.m. on the Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender
Date or, if all Series 2011A-1 Bonds are purchased, the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, as the case may



be; provided that the Purchase Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in connection with an Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender will be payable only from amounts in the Remarketing Proceeds Account. The Purchase Price of any
Series 2011A-1 Bond so tendered is payable only upon surrender of such Series 2011A-1 Bond to the Trustee
at its Corporate Trust Office for delivery of such Series 2011A-1 Bond, except that payment of the Purchase
Price of any Series 2011A-1 Bond tendered for purchase or otherwise purchased pursuant to a Representation
Letter will be made in immediately available funds and in such manner as the Bond Depository and the Trustee
agree.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in the Indenture, all tenders for purchase in
connection with an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender are payable only from immediately available funds on
deposit in the Remarketing Proceeds Account.

Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender

Remarketing of Series 2011A-1 Bonds. During each Tender Period in the Index Mode, upon
establishing the Index Spread for the next succeeding Tender Period (as described below under the caption “—
Determination of Index Spread”), the Remarketing Agent will offer for sale and use its best efforts to sell in
accordance with the Remarketing Agreement all Series 2011A-1 Bonds at a price equal to the principal amount
thereof, such that the Index Spread for the next Tender Period will be adjusted as described below under the
caption “—Determination of Index Spread.” The Remarketing Agent will sell any Series 2011A-1 Bonds
tendered pursuant to a Scheduled Mandatory Tender at the principal amount thereof; provided that if the
District delivers a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel, the District has the right to direct the Remarketing
Agent to sell any Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered pursuant to a Scheduled Mandatory Tender at a discount or
at a premium.

Determination of Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date. Unless the Series 2011A-1 Bonds subject to a
Tender Period have been purchased (including in connection with a Change in Mode or an Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender) or redeemed prior to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for such Tender Period, the
District, by direction to the other Notice Parties by Electronic Notice or telecopy not later than 10 days before
the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for each Tender Period, is to determine the Scheduled Mandatory
Tender Date for all Series 2011A-1 Bonds for the Tender Period immediately following the purchase of Series
2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to a Scheduled Mandatory Tender as provided in the Indenture. Such Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date may be any Business Day during the next Tender Period except that the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date will not be a date that is earlier than three months after the commencement of the
Tender Period. If the District is required to deliver a written direction as provided above but fails to do so,
then the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for the Tender Period immediately following the purchase of
Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be the date that is one year after the commencement of the Tender Period (unless
such date is not a Business Day, in which case the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date will be the first Business
Day following such date).

Establishment of Call Protection Date. With respect to any Tender Period commencing on a
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date that the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are purchased pursuant to a Scheduled
Mandatory Tender, the Call Protection Date will be the Tender Period Standard Date; provided that if the
District delivers to the Trustee a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel and specifies such Call Protection Date
in the direction as to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the District may determine that the Call
Protection Date for such Tender Period will be any Business Day during the Tender Period. The Call
Protection Date with respect to the Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016 is September 17, 2016.

Determination of Index Spread. Unless the Series 2011A-1 Bonds subject to a Tender Period have
been purchased (including in connection with a Change in Mode or an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender) or
redeemed prior to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for such Tender Period, no later than 5:00 p.m. on the
day that is two Business Days before the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for such Tender Period, the
Remarketing Agent is to determine the Index Spread with respect to the Tender Period immediately following

11
A-20



such Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date. The Index Spread determined by the Remarketing Agent is to be
equal to the minimum fixed spread to SIFMA which, if borne by the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, would enable the
Remarketing Agent to sell all Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered or deemed tendered pursuant to the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender on the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date at a price equal to the principal amount thereof.
With respect to all Series 2011A-1 Bonds sold with an Index Tender Rate based on an Index Spread
determined by the Remarketing Agent pursuant to the Indenture, the determination of the Index Spread so
determined by the Remarketing Agent will be conclusive and binding on the Notice Parties and the Owners of
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Series 2011A-1 Bonds required to be purchased as described
under caption “—Remarketing of Series 2011A-1 Bonds” will be purchased from the Owners thereof, on the
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date at the Purchase Price from the sources and in the order of priority described
under the caption “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Scheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase.”

The District is irrevocably obligated to pay the Purchase Price of all Series 2011A-1 Bonds on each
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date.

Consequences of a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Failure. Upon the occurrence of a Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Failure on any Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the following will occur:

(M The Trustee will promptly return all Series 2011A-1 Bonds to the Owners thereof
together with notice of such failure and the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent will promptly return all
remarketing proceeds to the persons providing such moneys without interest;

(i) The Tender Period then in effect will terminate on such Scheduled Mandatory
Tender Date and the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will bear interest at the last Index Tender Rate for the Tender
Period so terminated from the applicable Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date to the earliest to occur of the
purchase of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds by or on behalf of the District or the payment of the principal of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds; and

(iii) An Event of Default under the Indenture will occur.

Effect of a Successful Remarketing. If moneys on deposit with the Trustee are sufficient to pay the
Purchase Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be purchased as described under caption “—Remarketing of Series
2011A-1 Bonds” on a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the following will occur:

Q) The Tender Period in effect immediately before such purchase will terminate on the
Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date and a new Tender Period will commence on such date; and

(i) The Index Spread with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for the new Tender
Period will be the Index Spread determined as described above under the caption “—Determination of Index
Spread.”

Notification of Scheduled Mandatory Tender Failure. On the date of a Scheduled Mandatory
Tender Failure, the Trustee will deliver a notice by mail to: (i) the District; (ii) the respective Owners of any
Series 2011A-1 Bonds at their addresses appearing on the Bond Register; (iii) the Remarketing Agent; and (iv)
one or more Information Services, which will state: (A) that a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Failure occurred;
(B) the Trustee will return all Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered on the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date to the
Owners thereof; and (C) an Event of Default has occurred under the Indenture.

12
A-21



Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender

Remarketing of Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Upon receipt of notice of an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender
from the District as described under the caption “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender for Purchase,” the Remarketing Agent will offer for sale and use its best efforts to sell in accordance
with the Remarketing Agreement all Series 2011A-1 Bonds at a price equal to the principal amount thereof,
such that the Index Spread for the next Tender Period will be adjusted as described below under the caption
“—Determination of Index Spread.” The Remarketing Agent will sell any Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered
pursuant to an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender at the principal amount thereof; provided that if the District
delivers a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel, the District has the right to direct the Remarketing Agent to
sell any Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered pursuant to an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender at a discount or at a
premium.

Determination of Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date. The District, by direction to the other Notice
Parties by Electronic Notice or telecopy not later than ten days before each Unscheduled Mandatory Tender
Date, will determine the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date for the Tender Period immediately following the
purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, as provided in the
Indenture. Such Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date may be any Business Day, except that the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date may not be a date that is earlier than three months after the commencement of the
Tender Period.

Establishment of Call Protection Date. With respect to any Tender Period commencing on an
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date that all Series 2011A-1 Bonds are purchased pursuant to an Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender, the Call Protection Date will be the Tender Period Standard Date; provided that if the
District delivers to the Trustee a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel and specifies such Call Protection Date
in the direction as to the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the District may determine that the Call
Protection Date for such Tender Period will be any Business Day during such Tender Period. The Call
Protection Date with respect to the Tender Period commencing on February 19, 2016 is September 17, 2016.

Determination of Index Spread. No later than 5:00 p.m. on the day that is two Business Days before
each Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, the Remarketing Agent will determine the Index Spread with
respect to the Tender Period immediately following such Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date. The
Remarketing Agent will determine the Index Spread which will be equal to the minimum spread to SIFMA
which, if borne by the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell all Series 2011A-1
Bonds tendered pursuant to the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender on the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date
at a price equal to the principal amount thereof. With respect to all Series 2011A-1 Bonds sold with an Index
Tender Rate based on an Index Spread determined by the Remarketing Agent pursuant to the Indenture, the
determination of the Index Spread so determined by the Remarketing Agent will be conclusive and binding on
the Notice Parties and the Owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Subject to the provisions described under the caption “—
Rescission” and “—Failure to Meet Conditions,” the District will cause Series 2011A-1 Bonds required to be
purchased in an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender to be purchased on each Unscheduled Mandatory Tender
Date from the Owners thereof at the Purchase Price from the source indicated under the caption “—Purchase
of Series 2011A-1 Bonds.”

Consequences of an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Failure or a Rescission. If the District
rescinds any Unscheduled Mandatory Tender as described under the caption “—Rescission” or if any of the
conditions of any Unscheduled Mandatory Tender are not satisfied as described under the captions *
Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase” and “—~Failure to Meet
Conditions,” then the District will not have any obligation to purchase any Series 2011A-1 Bonds and no
purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds will occur. In such event, the following will occur:

13
A-22



() The Trustee will return all Series 2011A-1 Bonds to the Owners thereof together
with notice of the basis for such return and the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent will return all remarketing
proceeds to the persons providing such moneys without interest;

(i) The Series 2011A-1 Bonds will continue to bear interest at the Index Tender Rate in
effect during such Tender Period without change or modification and the Tender Period then in effect will
continue until terminated in accordance with the provisions set forth under the caption “—Determination of
Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index Mode—Duration of
Tender Period”; and

(iii) No Event of Default under the Indenture will have occurred.

Rescission. The District has the option to deliver to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office and the
Remarketing Agent, on or prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding the Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender Date for an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, a notice to the effect that the District elects to
rescind such Unscheduled Mandatory Tender. If the District so rescinds an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender,
then no purchase will occur, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will continue to bear interest at the Index Tender Rate
in effect during the Tender Period then in effect without change or modification and the Tender Period then in
effect will continue until terminated as described under the caption “—Determination of Index Tender Rates
and Index Rate Accrual Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index Mode—Duration of Tender Period.”

Failure to Meet Conditions. Any Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, if not rescinded, will be
conditioned upon: (a) amounts sufficient to pay the Purchase Price of such mandatory tender being on deposit
from remarketing proceeds, as described under the caption “—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” with the
Trustee on the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date; and (b) in connection with any change in the Call
Protection Date for the next succeeding Tender Period from the Tender Period Standard Date, the delivery by
the District of the Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel described under the caption “—Remarketing and
Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Establishment of
Call Protection Date.” If on an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date the conditions described in the
immediately preceding sentence are not satisfied, then no purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds will occur, the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds will continue to bear interest at the Index Tender Rate in effect during the Tender
Period then in effect without change or modification and the Tender Period then in effect will continue until
terminated as described under the caption “—Determination of Index Tender Rates and Index Rate Accrual
Periods for Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Index Mode—Duration of Tender Period.”

Failure by the District to pay or cause to be paid the Purchase Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds tendered
under the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender provisions of the Indenture for any reason does not constitute an
Event of Default by the District under the Indenture. No such failure affects the District’s right to require
Owners of Series 2011A-1 Bonds to tender their Series 2011A-1 Bonds as described under the caption “—
Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase” during the remainder of the
Tender Period then in effect or during any subsequent Tender Period.

Effect of a Successful Remarketing. If moneys on deposit with the Trustee are sufficient to pay the
Purchase Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be purchased as described under the caption “—Mandatory Tender
for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase” and all other conditions are satisfied, the
following will occur:

(M The Tender Period in effect immediately before such tender will terminate on such
Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date and a new Tender Period will commence on such date; and

(i) The Index Spread with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for the new Tender
Period will be the Index Spread determined as described above under the caption “—Determination of Index
Spread.”

14
A-23



Changes in Mode

Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the District may effect a Change in Mode with respect to
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds by delivering to the Trustee, with copies to the other Notice Parties, a Notice of
Change in Mode stating: (A) the election to change the Mode to which the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are then
subject (the “Current Mode™) to a different Mode (the “New Mode”), the type of which will be specified; (B)
the date on which the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are required to be purchased pursuant to the provisions described
below under the caption “—Mandatory Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” which will be the date as of
which the New Mode takes effect and a Business Day immediately following the end of an Adjustment Period
or the last day of a Tender Period, or a Business Day on which the Series 2011A-1 Bonds would be subject to
redemption at the option of the District; and (C) a form of notice of mandatory tender for purchase satisfying
the requirements described below under the caption “—Mandatory Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds.” In no
event will a Change in Mode occur prior to the Call Protection Date set forth on the front cover page hereof.

Not less than seven days prior to a proposed Change in Mode, and in reliance upon a Notice of
Change in Mode, the Trustee will give written notice, in the form prepared by the District and delivered to the
Trustee pursuant to the immediately preceding paragraph, to the Owners of the mandatory tender for purchase
of all Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds as described below under the caption “—Mandatory Purchase of
Series 2011A-1 Bonds” in connection with the Change in Mode.

The New Mode will take effect only if the following conditions are satisfied: (i) by 9:00 a.m. on the
date of the proposed Change in Mode: (A) if a Liquidity Facility is to be in effect during the New Mode, the
interest portion of the Liquidity Facility is in an amount equal to or greater than the Liquidity Facility Interest
Amount for the applicable Mode; and (B) if the New Mode is the Fixed Rate Mode, the Trustee and the
Remarketing Agent have received a Fixed Rate Terms Certificate; and (ii) the Trustee has received sufficient
remarketing proceeds of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds in the New Mode to pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds
subject to mandatory tender for purchase in connection with the Change in Mode. If such conditions are
satisfied, then the New Mode will take effect on the date of the proposed Change in Mode. If such conditions
are not satisfied, then: (a) all Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be purchased on the Mandatory Purchase
Date described below under the caption “—Mandatory Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds;” (b) all
Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds will continue to be subject to the Index Mode; (c) the Tender Period for all
Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds will extend from and including the date on which the New Mode was to
take effect to and including the date which is three months after such date (and if such date is not a Business
Day, the next day which is followed by a Business Day); (d) the interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for the
Index Rate Accrual Period will be the last Index Tender Rate in effect during the immediately preceding
Tender Period; and (e) the Trustee will, within five Business Days after the date of the proposed Change in
Mode, send notice to the Notice Parties stating that the conditions to the Change in Mode have not all been
satisfied and informing them of the consequences thereof, as described in the Indenture.

Mandatory Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds

Except as otherwise provided under the captions “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1
Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Rescission” and “—Remarketing and Purchase
of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—Failure to Meet Conditions”
with respect to an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, each Series 2011A-1 Bond which is subject to mandatory
tender for purchase on a Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender Date as a result of a Change in Mode or as otherwise provided in the Indenture will be
purchased on such date at the applicable Purchase Price but solely from the sources of payment described
under the captions “—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1
Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds” or “—
Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory Tender—
Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” as applicable. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture and unless
otherwise provided in a Representation Letter, all Series 2011A-1 Bonds required to be purchased on a

15
A-24



Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date will be
tendered for purchase by delivery to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office on or prior to the Mandatory
Purchase Date, Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, as applicable, and,
except as otherwise provided under the caption “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender for Purchase” with respect to an Unscheduled Mandatory Tender, will be purchased, but solely from
the sources of payment described under the captions “—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” “—Remarketing
and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series
2011A-1 Bonds” or “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled
Mandatory Tender—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” as applicable.

Undelivered Bonds

Any Series 2011A-1 Bond which is subject to mandatory tender for purchase in accordance with the
provisions described under the caption “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase” which is not tendered for purchase
as required by the Indenture, will constitute an Undelivered Bond and will nonetheless be deemed to have been
so tendered and, upon provision for payment of the Purchase Price thereof from the applicable funds specified
under the caption “—Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds,” will be deemed to have been purchased on the
Mandatory Purchase Date, the Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date or the Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date,
as applicable, after which no interest will accrue on such Series 2011A-1 Bond for the benefit of the Owner
required to tender such Series 2011A-1 Bond from and after such Mandatory Purchase Date, Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date or Unscheduled Mandatory Tender Date, as applicable, and such Owner will have no
rights under the Indenture as the Owner of such Series 2011A-1 Bond except the right to receive the Purchase
Price thereof from the funds available therefor, as described under the caption “—Purchase of Series 2011A-1
Bonds.”

Refinancing and Related Risks

No assurance can be given that the District will have sufficient remarketing proceeds or funds on hand
on March 17, 2017 or any other Scheduled Mandatory Tender Date to pay the Purchase Price of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds upon the mandatory tender thereof on such date. The District has not currently provided for
any Liquidity Facility to support the payment of the Purchase Price upon mandatory tender of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds. In the event that the District does not have sufficient funds to pay the Purchase Price of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds on such date from remarketing proceeds or other funds on hand, the District’s ability to
pay such Purchase Price is dependent on the District’s ability: (i) to issue and sell refunding obligations to
refund Series 2011A-1 Bonds prior to such date; or (ii) to provide for the conversion of such Series 2011A-1
Bonds to another Mode on or prior to such date and to receive sufficient remarketing proceeds upon such
conversion to provide for payment of the Purchase Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds upon the mandatory
tender thereof.

A variety of events could prevent access to the municipal securities market, prohibit the District from
issuing such refunding obligations or remarketing such Series 2011A-1 Bonds or make the issuance of
refunding obligations or the remarketing of such Series 2011A-1 Bonds prohibitively expensive. No assurance
can be given that the District will be able to effect such a refinancing or remarketing on sufficiently favorable
terms. Failure of the District to provide sufficient funds to pay the Purchase Price on the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender Date constitutes an Event of Default under the Indenture. See the caption “THE SERIES
2011A-1 BONDS—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled
Mandatory Tender—Consequences of a Scheduled Mandatory Tender Failure.”

The Series 2011A-2 Bonds are also subject to risks described in the preceding two paragraphs.

16
A-25



Redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds in the Index Mode are subject to redemption at the
option of the District in whole or in part, in Authorized Denominations, during any Tender Period, on any
Business Day on or after the Call Protection Date for such Tender Period, at a Redemption Price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds being redeemed plus unpaid accrued interest, if
any, to such Redemption Date, without premium. See the captions “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series
2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Scheduled Mandatory Tender—Establishment of Call Protection Date”
and “—Remarketing and Purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in Connection with Unscheduled Mandatory
Tender—Establishment of Call Protection Date.” The Call Protection Date for the Tender Period commencing
on February 19, 2016 is September 17, 2016.

Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in part on
October 1, 2016 and on each October 1 thereafter, upon notice as described under the caption “—Notice of
Redemption,” at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be
redeemed, without premium, in the years and principal amounts as follows:

SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS DUE OCTOBER 1, 2037

Mandatory Redemption Dates Principal Amount of Series
(October 1) 2011A-1 Bonds to be Redeemed
2016 $1,560,000
2017 1,620,000
2018 1,680,000
2019 1,740,000
2020 1,800,000
2021 1,920,000
2022 1,980,000
2023 2,040,000
2024 2,100,000
2025 2,220,000
2026 2,280,000
2027 2,400,000
2028 2,460,000
2029 2,580,000
2030 2,700,000
2031 2,820,000
2032 2,880,000
2033 3,000,000
2034 3,120,000
2035 3,240,000
2036 3,420,000
2037 (maturity) 3,540,000

Upon any purchase and cancellation of Series 2011A-1 Bonds by the District or any redemption of
Series 2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of the Indenture described under the
caption “—Optional Redemption,” an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of Series 2011A-1
Bonds so purchased or redeemed will be credited toward a part or all of any one or more yearly mandatory
redemptions required by the Indenture, as directed in writing by the District, provided that such direction is
received by the Trustee at least 45 days before the date of such mandatory redemption. Any such direction
will state the years in which and the amounts by which such mandatory redemptions are to be reduced. The
portion of any such mandatory redemption remaining after the deduction of any such amounts credited toward
the same (or the original amount of any such mandatory redemption if no such amounts have been credited
toward the same) constitutes the unsatisfied balance of such mandatory redemption for the purpose of the
calculation of payments due on October 1 in any future year.

17
A-26



Selection of Series 2011A-1 Bonds for Redemption

If not otherwise provided in the Indenture, whenever less than all Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds
of a maturity are to be redeemed on any one date, the Trustee will select the Series 2011A-1 Bonds of such
maturity to be redeemed from the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds of such maturity by lot, or in such other
manner as the Trustee deems fair.

Notice of Redemption

Notice of redemption will be given by Mail by the Trustee to the Remarketing Agent and the Owners
of any Series 2011A-1 Bonds designated for redemption in whole or in part no less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the Redemption Date. So long as DTC, or its nominee Cede & Co., is the registered owner of
all the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, notices of redemption will be given to DTC. See the caption “—Book-Entry
Only System” below.

Each notice of redemption will state the Redemption Date, the redemption place and the Redemption
Price, the maturity dates of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be redeemed and designate the numbers of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds to be redeemed if less than all of the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds of a maturity are to
be redeemed, will (in the case of any Series 2011A-1 Bond called for redemption in part only) state the portion
of the principal amount thereof which is to be redeemed, and state that, if the Trustee holds sufficient available
funds to pay the Redemption Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be redeemed on the Redemption Date, the
interest thereon or portions thereof designated for redemption will cease to accrue from and after such
Redemption Date and that on such Redemption Date there will become due and payable on the Series 2011A-1
Bonds or portions thereof designated for redemption the Redemption Price thereof. The failure of any Owner
to receive such notice will not affect the validity of the redemption of any Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

With respect to any notice of any optional redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds, unless at the time
such notice is given the Trustee holds sufficient available funds to pay the Redemption Price of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds to be redeemed, such notice will state that such redemption is conditional upon receipt by the
Trustee, on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, of moneys that, together with other available
amounts held by the Trustee, are sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be
redeemed, and that if such moneys have not been so received said notice will be of no force and effect and the
District will not be required to redeem such Series 2011A-1 Bonds. In the event that a notice of redemption of
Series 2011A-1 Bonds contains such a condition and such moneys are not so received, the redemption of such
Series 2011A-1 Bonds as described in the conditional notice of redemption will not be made and the Trustee
will, within a reasonable time after the date on which such redemption was to occur, give notice to the persons
who received such notice of redemption and in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that
such moneys were not so received and that there will be no redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds pursuant to
such notice of redemption.

Any notice of redemption mailed as provided in the Indenture will be conclusively presumed to have
been given, whether or not actually received by any Owner.

See the caption “—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Unscheduled Mandatory Tender for Purchase”
for information with respect to notice of Unscheduled Mandatory Tenders.

Allocation of Credits for Purchased or Redeemed Series 2011A-1 Bonds

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the principal amount of any Series 2011A-1 Bonds
purchased and cancelled by the District, or redeemed by the District, will be credited proportionally to all
Improvement Districts and the Included Amount for each Improvement District will be reduced by such
Improvement District’s Included Percentage (calculated immediately before such purchase or redemption) of
the purchased or redeemed Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

18
A-27



In the event that Series 2011A-1 Bonds are purchased for cancellation or redeemed with funds
provided by one or more Improvement Districts other than funds provided proportionately with all other
Improvement Districts, the principal amount of any Series 2011A-1 Bonds purchased and cancelled by the
District, or redeemed by the District, will be credited proportionally to all such contributing Improvement
Districts and the Included Amount for each such Improvement District will be reduced by such Improvement
District’s proportional contribution to the purchase price of such purchased Series 2011A-1 Bonds and the
Redemption Price of such redeemed Series 2011A-1 Bonds and the Included Percentage (calculated
immediately before such purchase or redemption) of the purchased or redeemed Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

Immediately following each purchase of Series 2011A-1 Bonds by the District for cancellation and
each redemption of Series 2011A-1 Bonds and the allocation of credits in connection with such purchase and
redemption in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, as applicable, the Included Percentages for all
Improvement Districts will be recomputed for all purposes after such redemption in the following manner:

Improvement District’s Included
Amount after purchase or redemption
Included Percentage,

Total Amount of Outstanding - as adjusted
Series 2011A-1 Bonds after purchase or
redemption

Book-Entry Only System

One fully-registered Series 2011A-1 Bond has been issued in the outstanding principal amount of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. and have been
deposited with DTC. So long as DTC, or its nominee Cede & Co., is the registered owner of all the Series
2011A-1 Bonds, all payments of principal, Purchase Price and Redemption Price of and interest on the Series
2011A-1 Bonds will be made directly to DTC. Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants will
be the responsibility of DTC. Disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds will be the responsibility of the DTC Participants as more fully described herein. See Appendix E—
“BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository) for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. In that event, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will
be printed and delivered and will be governed by the provisions of the Indenture with respect to payment of
principal, Purchase Price, Redemption Price and interest and rights of exchange and transfer.

The District cannot and does not give any assurances that DTC Participants or others will distribute
payments with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds received by DTC or its nominee as the registered Owner,
or any redemption or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that
DTC will service and act in the manner described in this Remarketing Statement. See Appendix E hereto for
additional information concerning DTC.

SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS
General

Sources of Payment. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds constitute the consolidated, several general
obligations of the Improvement Districts payable from: (i) Assessment Proceeds collected from within each
Improvement District and applied by the District to pay such Improvement District’s Included Amount of the
principal, Purchase Price and Redemption Price of, and interest on, Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds; (ii)
Net Revenues of the District; and (iii) certain monies and investment earnings in certain funds and accounts
created under the Indenture. See the caption “—Pledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues.” The District

19
A-28



currently expects to pay a portion of scheduled debt service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from a combination
of Assessment Proceeds and Net Revenues and, to the extent that remarketing proceeds are insufficient, to pay
the Purchase Price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from Net Revenues.

Authority for Issuance. Elections were held in Improvement District Nos. 105, 113, 213 and 250 at
which the qualified voters within each such improvement district authorized the District to incur an
indebtedness and issue general obligation bonds for each respective improvement district. See Appendix A—
“IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT” for a discussion of the bond authorization, amount of outstanding
bonds and remaining bond authorization for each of the Improvement Districts. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds
are authorized for issuance pursuant to the Act and all laws of the State amendatory thereof or supplemental
thereto.

Covenant to Collect Assessment Proceeds. The District has covenanted in the Indenture that, to the
extent necessary to provide Assessment Proceeds sufficient to pay when due, together with the other funds
available for such payment, the principal of and interest on the Included Amount for each respective
Improvement District, the District will: (a) fix and collect, or cause the fixing and collection of, ad valorem
assessments on taxable land within the applicable Improvement District; (b) pursue any remedy available to
collect, or cause the collection of, delinquent ad valorem assessments and apply amounts realized from the sale
of any property for the enforcement of delinquent ad valorem assessments to the payment of principal of and
interest on the Included Amount of Series 2011A-1 Bonds of the applicable Improvement District; or (c) in its
discretion, impose and collect, or cause the imposition and collection of In Lieu Charges for water or sewer
service, as applicable, in the applicable Improvement District in lieu of ad valorem assessments.

Revenue Rate Covenant. The District has also covenanted in the Indenture, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, to fix, prescribe and collect Revenues which, together with any ad valorem assessments
available to pay Debt Service on Parity Obligations which are not applied as a credit against Debt Service, will
be at least sufficient to yield during each Fiscal Year Net Revenues which are at least equal to 125% of
Aggregate Debt Service payable during such Fiscal Year. The District may make adjustments from time to
time in such rates and charges and may make such classification thereof as it deems necessary, but will not
reduce the rates and charges then in effect unless the Net Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will at
all times be sufficient to meet the foregoing requirements.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Instalilment Sale Agreement, dated as of February 1,
2010 (the “2010 Installment Sale Agreement”), by and between the District and the Irvine Ranch Water
District Water Service Corporation remains in effect, the District will need to comply with the requirements set
therein regarding the rate covenant, which are identical to those set forth in the prior paragraph except that the
Assessment Proceeds (and any assessment proceeds related to other Parity Obligations) which are applied as a
credit to Debt Service above are included as revenues for purposes of such calculation and the definition of
Aggregate Debt Service in the 2010 Installment Sale Agreement does not provide an offset for debt service
paid from Assessment Proceeds (and any assessment proceeds related to other Parity Obligations) associated
with Revenue Enhancement Agreements. In addition, certain of the Prior Reimbursement Agreements
described under the caption “—Existing Parity Obligations” related to outstanding ad valorem assessment
bonds of the District, and certain swap agreements entered into by the District, have covenants related to the
setting of rates and charges with which the District is contractually obligated to comply.

Additional Covenants. See Appendix C—“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE
INDENTURE” under the caption “CERTAIN COVENANTS” for a summary of additional covenants of the
District under the Indenture.

20
A-29



Pledge of Trust Estate. Pursuant to the Indenture, the District has pledged the Trust Estate thereunder
to secure the payment of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds issued thereunder. The “Trust Estate” under the Indenture
consists of the following:

(A) The Bond Payment Fund (defined below) established under the Indenture, including
all accounts in such fund, and all of the monies in such fund and accounts and the investments, if any, thereof,
and all income and proceeds derived from such investments; and

(B) Subject to the application on the terms and conditions contained in the Indenture,
Revenues of the District.

Pledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues

Subject to the application of the Revenues on the terms and conditions provided in the Indenture,
Revenues have been irrevocably pledged to the payment when due of the principal, Purchase Price and
Redemption Price of, and interest on, the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds, which pledge will be on a parity
with any pledge of Revenues securing other Parity Obligations. Such pledge constitutes a pledge of and
charge and lien upon the Revenues for the payment of the principal, Purchase Price upon the Scheduled
Mandatory Tender and Redemption Price of, and interest on, the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds and all
other Parity Obligations in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and the Series 2011A-1 Bonds after
payment from the Revenues of the Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and the funding of contingency
reserves therefor, as provided in the Indenture.

THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OTHER THAN
THE DISTRICT AND THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE. NO
FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT OR THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN THE FUNDS
INCLUDED IN THE TRUST ESTATE, ARE LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL,
REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF, OR INTEREST ON, THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE WITH RESPECT TO THE TRUST ESTATE, NEITHER
THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE DISTRICT IS LIABLE FOR OR
PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL, REDEMPTION PRICE OR PURCHASE PRICE OF,
OR INTEREST ON, THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

Assessment Proceeds. Assessment Proceeds means, with respect to any Improvement District:
(i) ad valorem assessments on taxable land in such Improvement District levied pursuant to the Act; (ii) In
Lieu Charges, consisting of water or sewer charges, as applicable, which in the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the District are fixed and collected in an Improvement District in lieu of ad valorem assessments
pursuant to the Act; and (iii) proceeds from the sale of property in such Improvement District for the
enforcement of delinquent assessments pursuant to the Act.

The Included Amount for each Improvement District with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and
any other outstanding or future District general obligation bonds issued for such Improvement District are
equally secured by the ad valorem assessments and any charges for water or sewer service, as applicable,
imposed and collected in lieu of ad valorem assessments, collected within such Improvement District. The ad
valorem assessments are levied only on land and are based on the land value of parcels in the Improvement
District without regard to the value of any improvements thereon. See Appendix A—“IRVINE RANCH
WATER DISTRICT” under the captions “THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS—Improvement District Nos.
125 and 225” and “THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS—Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213.”



Net Revenues. Net Revenues for any period consist of the Revenues of the District less the Operation
and Maintenance Expenses of the District for such period. “Revenues” means:

1) The water, sewer and reclaimed water rates and charges imposed by the District in
connection with providing water, sewer and reclaimed water services to retail customers through the Operating
Systems (as such term is defined in the Indenture), including commodity, service, standby, material treatment
and connection charges, except: (i) such water, sewer and reclaimed water rates and charges levied in lieu of
ad valorem assessments pursuant to Sections 36425 and 35975 of the Act; and (ii) customer deposits (together,
the “Utility Rates and Charges™); and

(2) Other revenues of the District, including, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the proceeds of any stand-by or natural treatment, connection and water availability charges;
together with the District’s share of the Orange County, California 1% ad valorem property tax (to the extent
not applied by the District to pay principal of and interest on Secured Bonds) and Investment Income;

but excluding in all cases: (i) customer deposits or any other deposits or advances subject to refund until such
deposits or advances have become the property of the District; (ii) any proceeds of taxes or ad valorem
assessments restricted by law to be used by the District to pay bonds issued by the District, and the proceeds of
any actions to enforce delinquent ad valorem assessments so restricted; and (iii) water, sewer and reclaimed
water rates and charges levied in lieu of ad valorem assessments pursuant to Sections 36425 and 35975 of the
Act.

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” consist of the costs and expenses paid or incurred by the
District for operating and maintaining the Operating Systems (as such term is defined in the Indenture)
including, but not limited to: (a) all costs of water generated or purchased by the District for resale; (b) all costs
and expenses of providing services and commodities through or with the Operating Systems; (c) all costs and
expenses of management of the Operating Systems; (d) all costs and expenses of maintenance and repair of,
and other expenses necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the District to maintain and preserve, any of the
Operating Systems in good repair and working order; (e) all administrative and general expenses, such as
salaries and wages of employees, overhead, taxes (if any), insurance premiums, retirement benefits and health
care benefits; (f) all deposits to be made to a contingency reserve for Operation and Maintenance Expenses; (g)
all deposits to be made to a rebate fund established with respect to Parity Obligations to provide for any rebate
to the United States required to maintain the tax-exempt status of interest on such Parity Obligations; (h) any
cost or expense paid or incurred by the District to comply with requirements of law applicable to any of the
Operating Systems or the ownership or operation thereof or any activity in connection therewith; and (i) any
other cost or expense which, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, is to be treated as
an expense of operating or maintaining any of the Operating Systems; but excluding in all cases depreciation,
replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, and amortization of intangibles.

Net Revenues collected within any improvement district of the District, including the Improvement
Districts, are available to make debt service payments on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See the caption
“SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.”

Allocation of Monies Under the Indenture

Allocation of Revenues. In order to carry out and effectuate the pledge and lien on the Revenues
contained in the Indenture, the District has agreed and covenanted in the Indenture that all Revenues received
by it will be deposited when and as received in the Revenue Fund, which fund has been previously established
by the District and which fund the District has agreed and covenanted to maintain as a special fund, separate
and apart from other moneys of the District so long as any Series 2011A-1 Bond remains Outstanding. All
Revenues will be applied in the following order of priority:



First: to the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses (other than the funding of
contingency reserves for Operation and Maintenance Expenses) as they become due and payable.

Second: to the funding of contingency reserves for Operation and Maintenance Expenses.

Third: (i) two Business Days before each Interest Payment Date, to a deposit to the Bond
Payment Fund in an amount equal to the transfer to the Interest Account and Principal Account to be made on
such Interest Payment Date; and (ii) on each date, other than an Interest Payment Date, on which the principal
of an Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bond becomes due, whether by mandatory redemption, acceleration, or
otherwise, to a deposit to the Bond Payment Fund in an amount equal to the principal and Redemption Price
of, and interest on, the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds coming due on such date. Notwithstanding the
provisions of the immediately preceding sentence, no such deposit to the Bond Payment Fund need be made by
the District to the extent that the Trustee then holds, or is concurrently receiving from the District from
Assessment Proceeds or other sources that do not constitute Revenues, moneys for such purpose in the Bond
Payment Fund, or being deposited in the Bond Payment Fund, available to pay the principal and Redemption
Price of, and interest on, the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be paid with such deposit. The District will
also pay to the party entitled thereto or transfer or cause to be transferred to any applicable debt service or
other payment fund or account for any Parity Obligations (other than the principal and Redemption Price of,
and interest on, the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds), without preference or priority, and in the event of any
insufficiency of such moneys ratably without any discrimination or preference, on the dates specified in the
proceedings relating to such Parity Obligations, the sum or sums required to be paid or deposited in such debt
service or other payment fund or account with respect to principal, premium, if any, and interest (including
purchase price) on Parity Obligations (other than the principal and Redemption Price of, and interest on, the
Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds) in accordance with the terms of such Parity Obligations.

Fourth: the District will transfer or cause to be transferred to any applicable reserve fund or
account for any Parity Obligations for which a separate reserve has been funded, without preference or
priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such moneys ratably without any discrimination or preference,
the sum or sums, if any, equal to the amount required to be deposited therein in accordance with the terms of
such Parity Obligations.

Fifth: to any lawful purpose of the District, including the payment of any Subordinate
Obligations in accordance with the instruments authorizing such Subordinate Obligations, which application
will be free and clear of the pledge and lien on Revenues created by the Indenture.

Bond Payment Fund. There has been established and created a fund with the Trustee under the
Indenture designated the “Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District, Series 2011A-1 Bond Payment Fund” (the
“Bond Payment Fund”). The Trustee will transfer money contained in the Bond Payment Fund to the accounts
described below at the following times in the manner provided in the Indenture, which accounts the Trustee
has agreed to establish and maintain so long as the Indenture is not discharged in accordance with the
provisions thereof, and each such account constitutes a trust fund for the benefit of the Owners of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds, and the money in each such account will be disbursed only for the purposes and uses
authorized in the Indenture.

Interest Account. The Trustee, on each Interest Payment Date, will deposit in the Interest
Account from money in the Bond Payment Fund an amount which, together with amounts already on deposit
in the Interest Account, will be sufficient to pay interest on the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds due on such
Interest Payment Date. Money in the Interest Account will be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on each
Interest Payment Date solely for the payment of interest on the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds then due.

Principal Account. The Trustee, on each Principal Payment Date, will deposit in the
Principal Account from money in the Bond Payment Fund such amount as is sufficient to pay the principal of
the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds due on such Principal Payment Date. Money in the Principal Account



will be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on each Principal Payment Date solely for the payment of the
principal of Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds then due.

Redemption Account. The Trustee will deposit in the Redemption Account amounts received
from the District to pay the Redemption Price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be redeemed. Money in such
Redemption Account will be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on each Redemption Date solely for the
payment of the Redemption Price of Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds upon the redemption thereof.

Existing Parity Obligations

The District has entered into certain Parity Obligations described below. The reimbursement
agreements described below relate to outstanding ad valorem assessment bonds:

Q) the Fifth Amended and Restated Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of April 1,
2011, by and between the District and Bank of America, N.A.;

(i) the Reimbursement Agreement, dated May 7, 2015, by and between the District and
U.S. Bank National Association;

(iii) the two Reimbursement Agreements, each dated as of April 1, 2011, by and between
the District and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation;

(iv) the Amended and Restated Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2011, by
and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association;

(v) the State Revolving Loan Contract No. 6-817-550-0, dated June 26, 1997, by and
between the District and the State Water Resources Control Board, as amended and supplemented, currently
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $776,581;

(vi) the 2010 Installment Sale Agreement, securing the District’s Certificates of
Participation, Irvine Ranch Water District Refunding Series 2010 currently outstanding in the aggregate
principal amount of $61,280,000;

(vii)  the District’s Series 2010B Bonds currently outstanding in the aggregate principal
amount of $175,000,000; and

(viii)  the Series 2011A-2 Bonds currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$35,400,000.

The agreements described in clauses (i) through (iv) above are collectively referred to as the “Prior
Reimbursement Agreements.”

There are currently no reimbursement obligations outstanding under the Prior Reimbursement
Agreements, although the District may incur reimbursement obligations under the Prior Reimbursement
Agreements as provided therein.

For a summary of the stated amount of each letter of credit associated with the Prior Reimbursement
Agreements, see Appendix A—“IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Outstanding Indebtedness—Parity
Obligations.”



Limitations on Parity and Superior Obligations

Obligations Superior to Series 2011A-1 Bonds. The District has covenanted in the Indenture that it
will not create any pledge of, lien on or charge upon the Revenues with a priority prior to or senior to the
pledge of the Revenues securing the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and the Parity Obligations.

Obligations on a Parity with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Under the Indenture, the District may at any
time issue additional Parity Obligations; provided:

@ The Net Revenues, plus any ad valorem assessments available to pay Debt Service
on Parity Obligations which are not applied as a credit against Debt Service, for the Applicable Fiscal Year, as
evidenced by both a calculation prepared by the District and a special report on such calculation prepared by
an Independent Certified Public Accountant or an Independent Financial Consultant on file with the District,
are at least equal to 125% of the Aggregate Debt Service for the Applicable Fiscal Year; and

(b) Either of (1) or (2) below:

Q) The Net Revenues for the Applicable Fiscal Year, plus any adjustments to
Net Revenues to give effect as of the first day of the Applicable Fiscal Year to increases or decreases in rates
and charges of the District approved and in effect as of the date of calculation, plus any ad valorem
assessments available to pay Debt Service on Parity Obligations which are not applied as a credit against Debt
Service, produce an amount at least equal to 125% of the sum of: (i) the Aggregate Debt Service for such
Applicable Fiscal Year; plus (ii) the Debt Service which would have accrued on any Parity Obligations issued
since the end of the Applicable Fiscal Year assuming such Parity Obligations had been issued at the beginning
of the Applicable Fiscal Year; plus (iii) the Debt Service which would have accrued had the additional Parity
Obligations to be issued been issued at the beginning of the Applicable Fiscal Year; or

2 The estimated Net Revenues for each Fiscal Year in the Test Period, plus an
allowance for the estimated Net Revenues for each Fiscal Year in the Test Period arising from the completion
of any uncompleted projects during the Test Period, plus any ad valorem assessments available to pay Debt
Service on Parity Obligations which are not applied as a credit against Debt Service, plus any increase in the
income, rents, fees, rates and charges estimated to be received by the District and which are economically
feasible and reasonably considered necessary based on projected operations for the Test Period, produce an
amount in each Fiscal Year in the Test Period which is at least equal to 125% of the sum of: (i) Aggregate
Debt Service in each such Fiscal Year on all then Outstanding Parity Obligations; plus (ii) the Debt Service in
each such Fiscal Year on the additional Parity Obligations to be issued; plus (iii) the Debt Service in each such
Fiscal Year on any additional Parity Obligations estimated by the District to be required to complete all
uncompleted projects for which Parity Obligations have been or are being issued, assuming that all such
additional Parity Obligations to complete uncompleted projects (other than the Parity Obligations to be issued)
have maturities, interest rates and proportionate principal repayment provisions similar to the Parity
Obligations then being issued.

(©) Notwithstanding the provisions of clauses (a) and (b), the District may at any time
issue additional Parity Obligations to refund Outstanding Parity Obligations without satisfying any of the
conditions set forth in such subsections if Aggregate Debt Service after the issuance of such additional Parity
Obligations in each Fiscal Year in the Refunding Test Period is not greater than the Aggregate Debt Service in
each such Fiscal Year before the issuance of such additional Parity Obligations.

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of clauses (a) and (b), the District may at any time
issue a Parity Obligation constituting a Credit Support Agreement securing a Parity Obligation without
satisfying any of the conditions set forth in such subsections if such Credit Support Agreement: (i) replaces a
Prior Reimbursement Agreement (or a successor to a Prior Reimbursement Agreement) and does not increase
the principal of bonds secured by the letter of credit relating to such Prior Reimbursement Agreement; or (ii)



the Parity Obligations secured by the Credit Support Instrument relating to such Credit Support Agreement
have been issued in accordance with clauses (a) and (b).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the 2010 Instaliment Sale Agreement remains outstanding,
the District will need to comply with the requirements set therein for the issuance of Parity Obligations, which
are identical to those set forth in clauses (a), (b) and (c) above except that the Assessment Proceeds (and any
assessment proceeds related to other Parity Obligations) which are applied as a credit to Debt Service in
clauses (a) and (b) above are included as revenues for purposes of such calculation and the definition of
Aggregate Debt Service in the 2010 Installment Sale Agreement does not provide an offset for debt service
paid from Assessment Proceeds (and any assessment proceeds related to other Parity Obligations) associated
with Revenue Enhancement Agreements. In addition, certain of the Prior Reimbursement Agreements related
to outstanding ad valorem assessment bonds of the District, and certain swap agreements entered into by the
District, have conditions precedent to the issuance of Parity Obligations that are more stringent than those
listed above.

Obligations Subordinate to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Nothing in the Indenture prevents the District
from issuing Subordinate Obligations or granting a pledge of, lien on or charge upon the Revenues in all
respects junior and subordinate to the payment of amounts due with respect to Parity Obligations to secure any
such Subordinate Obligations. Nothing in the Indenture limits the District’s payment of the Operation and
Maintenance Expenses prior to the payment of the Parity Obligations as provided in the Indenture.

Investment of Monies in Funds and Accounts Under the Indenture

So long as the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are Outstanding and no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, monies on deposit to the credit of the funds held by the Trustee under the Indenture (except for the
Remarketing Proceeds Account in the Purchase Fund) will, at the written request of the District, be invested by
the Trustee in Permitted Investments. In the absence of written instruction from the District, the Trustee is
directed to hold available funds uninvested. The Trustee is entitled to rely conclusively on said instructions for
purposes of the Indenture and will have no duty to monitor the compliance thereof with the restrictions set
forth in the Indenture. Subject to the limitations contained in Government Code Section 53601, monies in the
funds held by the District will be invested by the District in Permitted Investments. All such investments will
have maturity dates, or will be subject to redemption, at the option of the holder, on or prior to the dates the
monies invested therein will be needed for the purposes of such funds. See Appendix C—*SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE” under the caption “DEFINITIONS” for the definition of
Permitted Investments under the Indenture.

The Trustee may commingle any of the moneys held by it under the Indenture. The Trustee may
present for redemption or sell any such deposit or investment whenever necessary in order to provide money to
meet any payment of the money so deposited or invested. Any interest or profits on deposits and investments
in the Bond Payment Fund received by the Trustee will be deposited in the Interest Account as a credit against
interest to come due on the Outstanding Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

See Appendix C—“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE” under the
caption “FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS—Investments.”

THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

For a description of the District and each of the Improvement Districts see Appendix A—“IRVINE
RANCH WATER DISTRICT.”



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The District has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated April 15, 2011 (the
“Continuing Disclosure Certificate”) for the benefit of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the District (each an
“Annual Report”) by not later than 270 days following the end of the District’s fiscal year (which fiscal year
ends on June 30), commencing with the Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2012, and to provide notices of the
occurrence of certain enumerated events. The Annual Reports will be filed by the District with EMMA for the
purpose of S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”). The notices of enumerated events will be filed by the
District with EMMA. The specific nature of the information to be made available and to be contained in the
notices of enumerated events is contained in Appendix F—“FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
CERTIFICATE” hereto. These covenants have been made in order to assist the Remarketing Agent, as
Participating Underwriter (as such term is defined in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate) in complying with
the Rule. For the last five years the District has complied in all material aspects with its filing obligations
pursuant to undertakings entered into pursuant to the Rule.

See the caption “INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and
225" for a discussion of the consolidation of Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250 into Improvement
District Nos. 125 and 225, respectively. As a result of such consolidations, Improvement District Nos. 125 and
225 are the legal successors to Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250, respectively, and Improvement District
Nos. 105 and 250 no longer exist. Accordingly, beginning in Fiscal Year 2014, the Annual Reports will
contain information relating to Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 rather than for Improvement District
Nos. 105 and 250.

LITIGATION

There is no action, suit or proceeding known to be pending, or to the knowledge of the District,
threatened, in any way contesting or affecting the validity of, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds or the Indenture.
There is no litigation known to be pending, or to the knowledge of the District, threatened, questioning the
existence of the District or the title of the officers of the District to their respective offices.

There exist lawsuits and claims against the District, which are incidental to the ordinary course of
operations of the District’s water and sewer systems and related activities. In the view of the District’s
management and General Counsel, there is no litigation, present or pending, or to the knowledge of the
District, threatened, which will individually or in the aggregate materially impair the District’s ability to
service its indebtedness or which will have a material adverse effect on the business operations of the District.

RATINGS

On April 12, 2011, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group (“S&P”), Moody’s Investors Service
(“Moody’s”) and Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) assigned the Series 2011A-1 Bonds the short-term ratings of “A-1+",
“VMIG 1” and “F1+”, respectively, and Moody’s and Fitch assigned the Series 2011A-1 Bonds the long-term
ratings of “Aal” and “AAA”, respectively. S&P affirmed the short-term rating of the 2011A-1 Bonds of “A-
1+” on December 18, 2014. Although S&P has not assigned a long-term rating to Series 2011A-1 Bonds, S&P
affirmed the long-term rating of “AAA” on the District’s Series 2010B Bonds, which are Parity Obligations,
on December 18, 2014. Fitch affirmed the short-term rating of “F1+” and the long-term rating of “AAA” for
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on February 26, 2015. The District has made no attempt to seek an update to or
affirmation of such ratings from the rating agencies in connection with the remarketing of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds on February 19, 2016. Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on information and material
furnished directly to them (which may include information and material from the District which is not included
in this Remarketing Statement) and on investigations, studies and assumptions made by them. The ratings
reflect only the views of such organizations and an explanation of the significance of such ratings may be
obtained from the applicable rating agency. There is no assurance that the ratings will continue for any given



period of time or that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agencies, if, in
the judgment of such rating agencies, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal
of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

TAX MATTERS
Original Opinions

On April 15, 2011, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP and Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone,
Co-Bond Counsel to the District (“Co-Bond Counsel”), in connection with the issuance of the Series 2011A-1
Bonds, delivered their respective opinions to the effect that, based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations,
rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™) and is
exempt from State of California personal income taxes. It was the further opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, as of
April 15, 2011, that such interest is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or
corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Co-Bond Counsel observed that such interest is included in
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. A complete copy
of the opinions of Co-Bond Counsel delivered at the original issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is set forth
in Appendix D hereto.

No Updated Co-Bond Counsel Opinions

Co-Bond Counsel have not taken, and do not intend to take, any action to update their respective
original opinions or to determine if interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is presently excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes or exempt from State of California personal income taxes.

General Considerations
Notwithstanding the foregoing, investors should be aware of the following information.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.
The District has made certain representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, conditions
and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will not be included in federal
gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these covenants may result in
interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly
from the date of original issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. The opinions of Co-Bond Counsel delivered
in connection with the initial issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds assumed the accuracy of these
representations and compliance with these covenants. Co-Bond Counsel have not undertaken to determine (or
to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events occurring (or not occurring), or any
other matters coming to Co-Bond Counsel’s attention after the date of issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Accordingly, the
opinions of Co-Bond Counsel delivered in connection with the initial issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
are not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or matters.

Although Co-Bond Counsel have rendered opinions that interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal
income taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds may otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal, state or local tax liability. The
nature and extent of these other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the Beneficial
Owner or the Beneficial Owner’s other items of income or deduction. Co-Bond Counsel express no opinion
regarding any such other tax consequences.



Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court
decisions may cause interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in
part, to federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise
prevent Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. For
example, the Obama Administration’s budget proposals in recent years have proposed legislation that would
limit the exclusion from gross income of interest on obligations like the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to some extent
for taxpayers who are individuals and whose income is subject to higher marginal income tax rates. The
introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or court decisions may
also affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Series 2011A-1
Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the remarketed Series 2011A-1 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors
regarding the potential impact of any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or
litigation, as to which Co-Bond Counsel express no opinion.

The opinions of Co-Bond Counsel delivered in connection with the initial issuance of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds were based on legal authority existing as of April 15, 2011, covered certain matters not
directly addressed by such authorities, and represented Co-Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment
of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for federal income tax purposes. They are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service (the “IRS”) or the courts. Furthermore, Co-Bond Counsel cannot give and have not given any opinion
or assurance about the past or future activities of the District, or about the effect of future changes in the Code,
the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS. The District has
covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the Code.

Co-Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds ended on April 15, 2011
with the original issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Unless separately engaged, Co-Bond Counsel are not
obligated to defend the District or the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other than
the District and their appointed counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would have little, if any, right to
participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with
an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with
which the District legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not
limited to selection of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of
bonds presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the Series 2011A-1

Bonds, and may cause the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.
REMARKETING AGENT

Goldman, Sachs & Co. has been appointed to serve as Remarketing Agent for the Series 2011A-1
Bonds. The Remarketing Agent will carry out the duties and obligations provided for the Remarketing Agent
under and in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement, dated as of
April 1, 2011, by and between the District and Goldman, Sachs & Co.

The Remarketing Agent and its affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various
activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory,
investment management, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. The Remarketing
Agent and certain of its affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various
investment banking services for the District, for which they received or will receive customary fees and
expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Remarketing Agent and its respective
affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or
related derivative securities) and financial instruments (which may include bank loans and/or credit default
swaps) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short



positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve securities
and instruments of the District.

APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the reoffering of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be passed
upon by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as Co-Bond Counsel to the District, by Bowie, Arneson, Wiles &
Giannone, as Co-Bond Counsel to the District and general counsel to the District, and for the Remarketing
Agent by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The financial statements of the District at June 30, 2015, included in Appendix B to this Remarketing
Statement, have been audited by Davis Farr LLP, independent accountants (the “Auditor”), as set forth in their
Independent Auditor’s Report, which also appears in Appendix B. The Auditor has not reviewed the contents
of this Remarketing Statement, and the District has not sought the Auditor’s consent to the inclusion of the
Auditor’s audit letter attached to the District’s financial statements in this Remarketing Statement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



MISCELLANEOUS

References made herein to certain documents and reports are brief summaries thereof and do not
purport to be complete or definitive and reference is hereby made to such documents and reports for a full and
complete statement of the contents thereof.

Any statements in this Remarketing Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly
so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Remarketing Statement is not to be
construed as a contract or agreement between the District and registered owners or beneficial owners of any of
the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. The delivery and distribution of this Remarketing Statement have been duly
authorized by the District.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

By: /s/ Robert Jacobson
Treasurer

S-1
A-40



APPENDIX A

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

A-41



APPENDIX B

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A-42



APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE

[TO COME FROM BOND COUNSEL]

C-1
A -43



APPENDIX D

CO-BOND COUNSEL OPINIONS

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP and Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Co-Bond Counsel to the
District, rendered the following final approving opinions dated April 15, 2011 (the *2011 Opinions™) in
connection with the initial issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. Co-Bond Counsel have made no attempt to
update or reaffirm the 2011 Opinions in connection with this Remarketing Statement or the remarketing of the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

[SEE ATTACHED]

D-1
A-44



APPENDIX E

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry only system has been obtained
from sources that the District believes to be reliable, but the District takes no responsibility for the
completeness or accuracy thereof. The following description of the procedures and record keeping with
respect to beneficial ownership interests in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, payment of principal, premium, if any,
accreted value, if any, and interest with respect to on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds to DTC Participants or
Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfers of beneficial ownership interests in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds
and other related transactions by and between DTC, the DTC Participants and the Beneficial Owners is based
solely on information provided by DTC.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, acts as securities depository for the Series
2011A-1 Bonds. The Series 2011A-1 Bonds are fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One
fully-registered bond was issued for each maturity of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal
amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to
its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be
found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Series 2011A-1 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of
each actual purchaser of each Series 2011A-1 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and
Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as
well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive bonds representing their ownership interests in Series 2011A-1 Bonds,
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2011A-1 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2011A-1 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the
name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no

E-1
A-45



knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of
the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2011A-1 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the
Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their
holding on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Series 2011A-1 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and
proposed amendments to the Series 2011A-1 Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Series 2011A-1
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 2011A-1 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their
names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds within a maturity
are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in
such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Series
2011A-1 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date. The
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts
Series 2011A-1 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will
be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s
practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information
from the District or the Trustee, on a payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street
name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, or the District, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds,
distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the District or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be
the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Series 2011A-1 Bonds purchased or tendered,
through its Participant, to the Tender Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Series 2011A-1 Bonds by causing the
Direct Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, on DTC’s records, to the Tender
Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Series 2011A-1 Bonds in connection with an optional tender or a
mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Series 2011A-1 Bonds are transferred
by Direct Participants or DTC’s records and followed by book-entry credit of tendered Series 2011A-1 Bonds to the
Tender Agent’s DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds at any
time by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, Series 2011A-1 Bonds are required to be printed and delivered.

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, Series 2011A-1 Bonds will be printed and delivered.

E-2
A -46



APPENDIX F

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

The District entered into a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the following form in connection with
the initial issuance of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds on April 15, 2011:

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and delivered by the
Irvine Ranch Water District (the “District”) in connection with the execution and delivery of $60,545,000 Bonds of
Irvine Ranch Water District, Refunding Series 2011A-1 (the “Series 2011A-1 Bonds™) and the $40,370,000 Bonds
of Irvine Ranch Water District, Refunding Series 2011A-2 (the “Series 2011A-2 Bonds,” and together with the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the “Series 2011A Bonds”) constituting the consolidated, several general obligations of
Improvement District Nos. 105, 113, 213 and 250 (collectively, the “Improvement Districts”). The Series 2011A-1
Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 2011 (the *“Series 2011A-1 Indenture
of Trust”), by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, and the
Series 2011A-2 Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 2011 (the *“Series
2011A-2 Indenture of Trust,” and together with the Series 2011A-1 Indenture of Trust, the “Indentures of Trust”),
by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. The District
covenants and agrees as follows:

1. Purpose of this Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and delivered
by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the
Participating Underwriter in complying with the Rule.

2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indentures of Trust, which apply to any
capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized
terms shall have the following meanings:

Annual Report. The term “Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to,
and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

Beneficial Owner. The term “Beneficial Owner” means any person which: (a) has the power, directly or
indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding
Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries); or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

EMMA. The term “EMMA” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal
Market Access System for municipal securities disclosures, maintained on the Internet at http://emma.msrb.org/.

Fiscal Year. The term “Fiscal Year” means the one-year period ending on the last day of June of each year.
Holder. The term “Holder” means a registered owner of the Bonds.

Listed Events. The term “Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Sections 5(a) and (b) of this
Disclosure Certificate.

Official Statement. The term “Official Statement” means the Official Statement of the District dated April
12, 2011 delivered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

Participating Underwriter. The term “Participating Underwriter” means the original underwriters of the
Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

Rule. The term “Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

F-1
A-47



3. Provision of Annual Reports.

@ The District shall provide not later than 270 days following the end of its Fiscal Year
(commencing with the Fiscal Year 2011) to EMMA an Annual Report relating to the immediately preceding Fiscal
Year which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate, which Annual Report may
be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

(b) If the District is unable to provide to EMMA an Annual Report by the date required in
subsection (a), the District shall send to EMMA a notice in substantially the manner prescribed by the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board.

4, Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by reference the
following:

(@) The audited financial statements of the District for the prior Fiscal Year, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from
time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the District’s audited financial statements are not
available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall
contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official
Statement, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they
become available.

(b) Principal amount of the Bonds outstanding.

(©) An update of the information in the following tables and/or captions in Appendix A—
“IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT” in the Official Statement:

1. “Qutstanding Indebtedness” on page A-7;
2. IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT Historic Water Supply In Acre Feet Per

Year” under the caption “WATER SUPPLY—Historic and Projected Water
Supply” on page A-19;

3. “THE WATER SYSTEM—Historic Water Connections” on page A-21;

4. “THE WATER SYSTEM—Historic Water Deliveries” on page A-22;

5. “THE WATER SYSTEM—Water System Rates and Charges” on page A-24;

6. “THE SEWER SYSTEM—Historic Sewer and Recycled Water Connections”
on page A-26;

7. “THE SEWER SYSTEM—Historic Sewer Daily Average Flow” on page A-27;

8. “THE SEWER SYSTEM—Sewer System Rates and Charges” on page A-30;

9. “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Historic
Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage” on page A-33; and

10. An update of the following tables for each Improvement District:
(M Assessed Valuations (Land Only); provided that only the total assessed

values shall be updated;

F-2
A-48



(i) Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use; and
(iii) Largest Local Secured Taxpayers.

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including
official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been submitted to EMMA or
the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided that if any document included by reference is a final official
statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; and provided further that the
District shall clearly identify each such document so included by reference.

5. Reporting of Significant Events.

@ Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be given,
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not more than
ten (10) Business Days after the event:

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

3. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

4. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

5. adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS
Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the
tax status of the Bonds;

6. defeasances;

7. tender offers;

8. ratings changes; and

9. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings.

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (9), the event is considered to occur when
any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an obligated person in a
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated
person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or officers
in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person.

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be given,
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

1. mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of the obligated persons or their termination;

2. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name of a
trustee;

F-3
A - 49



3. non-payment related defaults;

4. modifications to the rights of Bondholders;
5. notices of redemption; and
6. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds.
(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described

in subsection (b), the District shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable
federal securities laws.

(d) If the District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under
Section 5(b) would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall file a notice of such
occurrence with EMMA in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event.

6. Cash and Investments. Upon request, the District shall provide on a quarterly basis to any person
the most recently available Cash and Investment Summary as prepared for the Finance and Personnel Committee of
the Board of Directors of the District.

7. Customarily Prepared and Public Information. Upon request, the District shall provide to any
person financial information and operating data regarding the District which is customarily prepared by the District
and is publicly available.

8. Termination of Obligation. The District’s obligations under this Disclosure Certificate shall
terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination
occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in the same manner
as for a Listed Event under Section 5(b).

9. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the
District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived,
provided that, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, such amendment or waiver is permitted by the
Rule.

10. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the
District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure
Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any notice of occurrence of
a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include
any information in any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by
this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall not thereby have any obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to
update such information or include it in any future notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

11. Default. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, any Holders or Beneficial Owners of at least 50% aggregate principal amount of the Bonds may take
such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court
order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this
Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indentures of Trust, and the sole remedy
under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this Disclosure Certificate
shall be an action to compel performance.

No Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may institute such action, suit or proceeding to compel
performance unless they shall have first delivered to the District satisfactory written evidence of their status as such,
and a written notice of and request to cure such failure, and the District shall have refused to comply therewith
within a reasonable time.

F-4
A -50



12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the District, the
Participating Underwriter and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no
rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: April 15, 2011 IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
By:
Its: Treasurer
F-5

A-51



APPENDIX A

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-52



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION ...ttt ettt b bbbt b et e b £ e bt e b e e e b e e b e e b e b e R e e b e e bt e b e e e s e ebeabe b e e eseabe e 1
THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT ..ottt ettt bbb 1
GBINETALL ...ttt bbb e b b E R R E bR Rt h Rt R et h b n et b e r s 1
Board of Directors and General MANAGET .........ccuiiviviierieiiese e e seseeteste e e eseesaestesresseesaesaesreaseeseessesraasens 2
00101 [0TSRSO 4
PENSION BENETILS ....c.viiiictiiei ettt et et e e e st e e beese e b e s beebeebe et e sbeebeessebesbeebeeseesesreareas 4
Other PoSt-EMPIOYMENE BENETILS .....oiviieiiie it sttt sre e eneenreens 8
BUAGEE PrOCESS. ....c.eiviitietiete sttt ettt ettt s teete e st et e et e e teese e teabeeReess e beabeabeansesbeaseanseeesbeaseaneeeenreareas 9
Water and SEWEr SYSTEM INSUFANCE........c..eciiiiiieiteetieieste ettt ettt et et b e s besteeseestesbesbeessebeeraeseesresaeateas 9
COIIECTION PrOCEAUIES ...tttk b bbbt bbbt bbbttt b bbbt b 9
OUtStANdING INAEDIEANESS ......veveeeee et e st e re e b et e saeene e e e neesreaneas 10
Variable Rate Debt ManagemMENTt.........ccocviiiiiie ettt ettt s beete e e tesreeseeaesbeene e 13
CUITENT INVESTMENTS ...t r e r e s r e Rt e e er e er e nr e e e nnenreeneas 13
Historic Net Real EStAte INCOME ... .....oiiiiiiee ettt ettt be e 14
Projected Net Real EState INCOME........ccoiiiieiiie ittt te e te e beera e e e saesaeeneens 14
19 PrOPerty TAX REVENUES. .......oiiiiiiitieiiee ittt sttt sttt ettt be et e sbe e b e sb e sbe e sbe e s be e s b e e sb e e nbe e st e et e enbeebeenbeeees 14
Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment — “Teeter PIan”........c.ccco i iieeii i 15
Governmental REGUIBLIONS. .........cciii ittt et e st e e teese et e saeene e s e stesreaneas 16
WATER SUPPLY ettt sttt sttt ettt e bt st e e st et e st et es e e beebe et et ereerestenseneenennenees 16
L] oToT =To T 1 SR 17
GROUNGWELET ...ttt ettt ettt et h bt e b et e bt be e e e e s e e E e e b e £ e s e e R £ ek e e b e e eR £ e b e e b e e e s e ebe e b e ebe e eseebeebenbensaneabe e 17
Drought ProCIamMation ..........c.coiiiiiiie ettt e et e st et e e aeess et e sbeeraessesresreeneens 22
Water SUPPIY ReTIADIITY ...cvoieieee ettt st eaenaeeneens 24
RECYCIEA WALET ...ttt sttt e et e et e e st et e teeaeese e st e teeteese e s e steereenseeesteeneens 27
Historic and Projected WAter SUPPIY ......cooiiiioieiece ettt sttt sttt ra s saesbe s 28
THE WATER SYSTEM ...ttt bbb bbbt bbbt bbb 29
GBINETALL ...ttt b bbbt h £ E £ h bR R £ R R R SRR SR e bR e Rt bt e b st bt b b e ene s 29
HISTOIIC WALer CONMNEBCIIONS.......cviiiiitieieie ettt ettt ettt st e et b et e s beeteesb et e s beateessesbeeraessessesreeneens 30
Projected Water CONMNEBCTIONS. ........cveiiieeieieie sttt sttt see st e sbesteeneesbesbesseeseesaeseeseeanaeneeneenneenens 31
COMNECLION FEES......ctiiteieieet ettt bt bt bbb e bt e bt bt b e st e b £ e bt e b e e e bt eb e e b e nb e b e st et e eb et e e eseebe e 31
HISEORIC WALEr DEIIVETIES ...ttt et b et et b et e e et e bt et e sb e e eneene et 31
Projected WaAaLer DEIIVEIIES .........cviiiieeece ettt ettt ettt et e s beebe et e sbeeteessesbesbeeneens 32
Historic Water Sales and Service Charge REVENUES...........cccveiereierieiesese e st e e see e sra e sreeneens 32
Projected Water Sales and Service Charge REVENUES...........coevuiiiieeieie st sre e 33
LargeSt VWater CUSTOMEIS. .. e uieiiiie ettt sttt ettt et e et e st e et e e be e e s bt e e ssteeanteeenbeeebeeessaeeenteeanseeennneens 33
Water System RAeS aN0 CRAIGES .......ccvieeieiiieeiere ettt ste st re et e stesteaseeneesreeneeneenseenens 34
THE SEWER SYSTEM ...ttt b e bbb b et b e bt s b et et et e e be st e e aneere et 35
GBINEIAL.......ccuiieeeec et ettt b ettt et e b e te et et e beehe et e beeheehe et e ebeebeehe e e beeheerbenteebeene et e eteeaeenrers 35
Historic Sewer System and Recycled Water CONNECLIONS. .........cccviviieieneieseee e 36
Projected Sewer and Recycled Water CONNECLIONS .......ccveiiiiiieiere et ra e see e 36
COMNECEION FBES.... oottt ettt ettt ettt et e st e e teesb et e s beebe e st et e ebeeaeesbesbeebeessessesbeebeessebesbaensessentesreeneas 37
Historic Sewer Daily AVEIage FIOW ........ccoiioiiiiiiieeie sttt sttt esa s e neenaeeneens 37
Projected Sewer Daily AVEIage FIOW.......c.ccvoiiiiiiiieie sttt stesnaeneenaesneeneens 37
Historic Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge REVENUES..........ccccveveieieiierie e 38
Projected Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge REVENUES..........cccceveiiiiericie e, 38
Largest SEWEr SErVICE CUSLOMENS ......ccueiveieieiteeeesiesiesteeseeeeseesseeseeseestessaesseaesseaseeseessesseaseessessessaaseeseessensenns 39
Sewer System RAtES aN0 CRAITES .........oiuiiiiriieie ettt e st e te e e et e sbesreesaenaesreaneas 39
FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. ... .ottt sttt sne st ene e s 40
1T ] [0 N o T aTo | oSS SRS SRR 40
OCSD CORF ..ottt et bbbt bt b e s £ ek £ e H e e b e £ e R £ e bt e b e e e R e eE £ e b e e b e Rt e bt e bt e heebe e eseebeebe b enseneabeneas 40
A-i

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



Water SUPPIY REHADIITY ...oveieeiiee ettt re e e aesneeneens 41

Development-Related EXPANSION.........ccviiiiiiieieiiie e se e ee et sae et e e nee e e saesteesaeseesessessaesseneesseeseens 41
Replacement and RefUrDISNMENT ............oviiiii et 41
OperatioNal IMPIOVEMENTS. ........eiiiieiieie ettt et ste e etesbesteeseeseestesseeseesseseeseeeneeneensesreaneas 41
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....coiiiiiiiree ettt 41
FINANCIAL STALEIMENTS ..ottt b e bbbt b e s b e e et e bt et e e e se e bt et e sb e e eneene st 41
REAUCEION IN BAB CrEAITS .....eiviiiicie ettt sttt st et e et st e s beesa e b e st e sbeebeesseseesreeneens 41
Historic Operating Results and Debt SErvice COVEIAgE .......cveveriererireierierieseseesiesestesaesaeseeseesraeseesaeseeeneens 42
Projected Operating Results and Debt SErvice COVEIAgE ........ccveiviieriieierieriesie et se e ee e sre e e e sre s 44
THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS ...ocoiiciiiteteeee ettt sttt sa ettt ssene st ssase s s s 46
GBINETALL ...t bbb bt bbb h bR R R R R R R R Rt Rt b bt teh b r e ene 46
Improvement District N0S. 125 @Nd 225.........cccvoiiieiecieie ettt re s re e 47
Improvement District N0S. 113 aNd 213 .......c.ooiiiiiiieeice et b e st re e 56
CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES..........ccoiiiinieecie, 60
e 0] 001 1o A = PSSP 60
PIOPOSITION 26 ... cuiiiecieetieie sttt ettt e st e s teese e st et e e beese e s e e besbeese e st e aeeReese e st e beebeensententeareenseeenteeneens 61
ATEICIE XITTA ettt bbbt b st e e bt b et e e e bt e bt et et ber et et e et ne s 61
ATTICIE XITIB ... bbb bbbt b b h bbb s e e bt e bt et e b e st et e e bt e e r e b e 62
PIOPOSITION LA .ottt ettt e st e te e st et e et e e te e st et e s beeRe e s e e aeaReaReeseenteeteenee s e steereesseneesreeneens 62
FULUPE INIEIALIVES .. .eveccce ettt ettt e et e e be e st et e beebeess e st e beebeesse b e sbeeaaessebesreeneens 62
A-ii

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



INTRODUCTION

The following sets forth certain information relating to the Irvine Ranch Water District (the “District™)
and certain of its improvement districts.

The District’s projections in Tables 12, 15, 17, 19, 23, 25, 27, 30 and 32 of this Appendix A (the
“Projections”) are derived from historic trends and experience and an internal financial model known as the
“District Enterprise Model.” The District Enterprise Model is a capital planning and budgeting tool used by
the District to identify future infrastructure funding requirements, and to aid in setting water and sewer rates,
charges and connection fees. Key inputs utilized in the District Enterprise Model include assumptions based
on historical experience and other factors regarding the District’s cost of borrowing, the rate of return on
District investments, inflation, project costs, property tax receipts and the timing and amount of future bond
sales, but the primary input is the pace and scope of real estate development activity within the District’s
service area. The District is in regular contact with major Orange County (the “County”) real estate
development companies to assess and update this information for use in the District Enterprise Model.

The Projections constitute forward-looking statements. No assurance can be given that the future
results reflected in the Projections and otherwise discussed herein will be achieved, and actual results may
differ materially from the Projections. As noted above, the Projections rely heavily on certain assumptions
regarding the pace and scope of real estate development activity within the District’s service area. Such
activity may be affected by a variety of factors, such as tighter lending standards for real estate loans generally.
Real estate development activity also may be affected by general economic conditions, which currently reflect
higher energy and commodity costs and volatile financial markets. The District has attempted to reflect such
conditions in the Projections, but is unable to predict with certainty the level of future real estate development
activity or the other factors affecting the Projections.

In addition to the specific limitations on remedies contained in the applicable documents themselves,
the rights and obligations with respect to the Indenture are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of
equitable principles if equitable remedies are sought, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate
cases and to limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State of California (the “State”). The
various opinions of counsel that were delivered with respect to such documents, including the opinions of
Co-Bond Counsel (the forms of which are attached to the Remarketing Statement as Appendix E), were
similarly qualified.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all defined terms used herein shall have the same meanings set
forth in the Remarketing Statement, except that the term “Improvement Districts” as used in this Appendix A
refers to all seven water improvement districts and ten sewer improvement districts of the District.

THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
General

The District was established in 1961 as a California Water District under the provisions of
Section 34000 et seq. of the California Water Code (the “Act”). As a special district, the District focuses on
four primary services — providing potable water, collecting and treating wastewater, producing and distributing
recycled and other non-potable water, and implementing urban runoff treatment programs.

The District serves a 181-square-mile area, which includes all of the City of Irvine and portions of the
cities of Tustin, Newport Beach, Costa Mesa, Orange and Lake Forest, as well as certain unincorporated areas
of the County. Extending from the Pacific Coast to the foothills, the District’s region is semi-arid with a mild
climate and an average annual rainfall of approximately 12 inches. The District serves a total estimated
population of approximately 370,000 through approximately 104,994 potable water, 84 non-potable water and

A-1
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-55



99,397 sewer service and recycled water connections. The number of service connections has increased by
approximately 19% over the last decade.

The District builds and maintains significant capital infrastructure in order to serve its customers and
is organized into Improvement Districts in order to allocate funding responsibility for capital facilities to the
area which will benefit from such capital facilities and to separate areas on the basis of projected timing of
development. This allows capital facilities construction to be matched to the development approval decisions
of the respective local agencies that make them. Some of the Improvement Districts share in the funding of the
District’s regional facilities which such Improvement Districts use or will use in common, such as major water
importation facilities and water and wastewater treatment plants. The District previously undertook a process
to review its current capital funding plan, resulting in a master consolidation and combination of several
Improvement Districts in November 2013. As a result of such consolidation, the District now has a total of
seven water Improvement Districts and ten sewer Improvement Districts which cover specific areas within the
District’s boundaries, each of which is governed in accordance with the Act. See the Remarketing Statement
under the caption “INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225” for
a discussion of the effect on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds of the consolidation and combination of such
Improvement Districts.

See Table 3 under the caption “—Outstanding Indebtedness—Improvement District Indebtedness” for
information with respect to the amount of authorized and outstanding ad valorem assessment bonds for
Improvement District Nos. 113, 125 and 213 and 225.

The principal office of the District is located at 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California 92618.
Board of Directors and General Manager

The District’s Board of Directors consists of five Directors elected by resident voters for staggered
four-year terms. The policies of the Board of Directors are administered by the General Manager of the
District.

Board of Directors. The present Directors are:

Mary Aileen Matheis. Ms. Matheis was initially appointed to the District’s Board of Directors in
1988 to fill a vacancy and has since been elected to subsequent terms. Ms. Matheis currently serves as
President and previously served as President in 2001 and 2012 and as Vice President in 2005, 2011 and 2014.
She currently serves on the District’s Finance and Personnel Committee. Ms. Matheis is a practicing lawyer
and member of the California Bar and is also admitted to practice in the Supreme Court of the United States
and the United States Tax Court. Ms. Matheis holds a bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in
Communications and she received her Juris Doctorate from Western State University School of Law and was
admitted to the California Bar in 1982. Ms. Matheis’ activities in other water areas include service on the
Legal Affairs Committee of the Association of California Water Agencies and as a member of Independent
Special Districts of Orange County Executive Committee. Ms. Matheis is a member of the Colorado River
Water Users Association and the Colorado River Foundation. Ms. Matheis is also the District representative to
the Independent Special Districts of Orange County and a board member of the Water Education Foundation.
Ms. Matheis is active in the Orange County Bar Association, a member of the Real Estate Section Executive
Committee and the Probate and Estate Planning Section. Ms. Matheis is also on the Orange County
Assessment Appeals Panel for Property Tax Appeals. Ms. Matheis’ current term ends in November 2016.

Douglas J. Reinhart. Mr. Reinhart was appointed to the District’s Board of Directors in 2004 to fill a
vacancy and has since been elected to subsequent terms. Mr. Reinhart currently serves as Vice President and
previously served as President in 2007, 2009, 2010 and 2013. He currently serves on the District’s
Engineering and Operations Committee. Mr. Reinhart is a registered civil engineer with over 40 years of
experience in the private sector directing projects in water, wastewater and other infrastructure. Mr. Reinhart

A-2
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A - 56



was the president and an owner of ASL Consulting Engineers before its acquisition by Tetra Tech in 1999.
Mr. Reinhart then served as the Divisional Executive Vice President for Tetra Tech for the western United
States before starting a consulting business in 2004. Mr. Reinhart holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering from the Missouri School of Mines and Metallurgy. Mr. Reinhart has served on the Board of
Trustees of the Southern California Water Committee, the American Water Works Association Desalination
Committee and the Association of California Water Agencies Groundwater Committee and is a past member
of the Board of Directors of the National WateReuse Association. In addition, Mr. Reinhart is a member of the
American Society of Civil Engineers. Mr. Reinhart’s current term ends in November 2018.

Steven E. LaMar. Mr. LaMar was appointed to the District’s Board of Directors in 2009 and has been
elected to two subsequent terms. Mr. LaMar previously served as President in 2011, 2014 and 2015. Heis a
water policy and planning expert with more than 25 years of experience on statewide business and industry
committees and has directly participated in many major water policy forums. Mr. LaMar currently serves on
the District’s Engineering and Operations Committee and Water Resources Policy and Communications
Committee. Mr. LaMar has served on statewide task forces and advisory committees on drought planning,
desalination, the California Bay-Delta, the California Water Plan and on landscape water conservation issues.
Mr. LaMar is president and owner of LegiSight, LLC, located in Tustin, California. He has served as a water
policy leader in the California Building Industry Association for over 20 years. He represents the District on
the boards of the National Water Research Institute and the Nature Reserve of Orange County. Mr. LaMar
holds a bachelor’s degree in political science from Pittsburg State University (Kansas) and a certificate from
the Environmental Management Institute, a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency environmental training
program administered by the University of Southern California. Mr. LaMar’s current term ends in November
2018.

Peer Swan. Mr. Swan was elected to the District’s Board of Directors in 1979 and has since been
elected to subsequent terms. Mr. Swan currently serves on the District’s Asset Management Committee and as
chairman of the Finance and Personnel Committee. He previously served as President from December 1981
until December 1995 and again in 2006. Mr. Swan’s community and professional involvement includes
service as President of the Board of San Joaquin Wildlife Sanctuary and member of the Steering Committee of
the Southern California Water Dialogue Committee. Mr. Swan is active in the Association of California Water
Agencies, where he serves on the Board of Directors and on several committees. Mr. Swan has also been
active in the California Association of Sanitation Agencies and the Newport Chamber of Commerce. Mr.
Swan was the Treasurer of the Pacific Scientific Company prior to its acquisition in 1998 and a member of the
Board of Directors of the Southern California Bank and its parent SC Bancorp until its acquisition in 1997. He
has also served as a board member of the YMCA of Orange County and the Orange Coast College Foundation,
where he was the founding Treasurer of the Board. He served as a Director of the Orange County Sanitation
District for 15 years and was Vice Chairman for six years. Mr. Swan was also a Founding Director of the
Board of the National Water Research Institute and was Chairman for four years. He is a longtime member of
both the National Audubon Society and its local chapter (Sea & Sage). He was also the President of the Board
of the Water Advisory Committee of Orange County in 2007 and 2008. Mr. Swan’s current term ends in
November 2018.

John B. Withers. Mr. Withers was initially appointed to the District’s Board of Directors in 1989 to
fill a vacancy and has since been elected to subsequent terms. Mr. Withers previously served as Vice President
in 2012 and President in 2004. He also serves on the Asset Management Committee and the Water Resources
Policy and Communications Committee. Mr. Withers is a partner with California Strategies, a strategic
government relations firm in Irvine. In past positions, Mr. Withers has served as Vice President of Community
Development for Lewis Operating Corporation and as Director of Water Resources for Psomas & Associates, a
civil engineering and planning firm based in Costa Mesa. Mr. Withers has served as Director of Governmental
Affairs for the Orange County Region of the Building Industry Association of Southern California and as a
legislative advocate for Crocker Bank and a major trade association in Sacramento. Mr. Withers has served as
Commissioner on the Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission since 1994. Mr. Withers also
served as a member, including a term as chairman, of the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board,

A-3
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-57



having been appointed by the Governor in 1992. Mr. Withers was a board member of the National Water
Research Institute for six years and is the District’s current representative. A native Southern Californian, Mr.
Withers received his bachelor’s degree from UCLA in economics with a specialization in urban studies in
1979 and received a master’s degree in urban studies from Occidental College in 1988. Mr. Withers’ current
term ends in November 2016.

General Manager. Paul A. Cook, the General Manager of the District, heads a staff of approximately
350 employees. Mr. Cook was appointed General Manager in October 2011. Mr. Cook previously served as
Interim General Manager from July to October 2011 and held the position of Assistant General Manager from
2004 to July 2011. Mr. Cook is a registered civil engineer with over 21 years of experience with water and
wastewater systems in the public and private sectors. Prior to joining the District, he served as the Manager of
Engineering for Central and West Basin Municipal Water Districts in Carson, California. He also served as the
District Engineer for Los Alisos Water District in Lake Forest. In the private sector, Mr. Cook held
engineering and project management positions with BFI Constructors and Turner Construction Company. He
was elected to the Orange County Water District Board of Directors in 2002 and served for three years,
representing communities in Irvine, Tustin and Newport Beach. Mr. Cook received his bachelor of science
degree in Civil Engineering from the University of the Pacific, his master’s of science degree in Civil
Engineering from California State University of Long Beach and his master’s in business administration from
the University of California, Irvine.

Employees

The District currently employs approximately 350 persons, including full-time, part-time and
temporary employees. On April 1, 2015, the current Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”) between
the District and the Irvine Ranch Water District Employee Association (the “Association”) went into effect.
The MOU expires on June 30, 2018. The Association currently represents 225 general employees of the
District, of which 81 are voting members; supervisors and managers are unrepresented. The District has not
experienced any strike or other labor actions.

Pension Benefits

This caption contains certain information relating to the California Public Employees Retirement
System (““CalPERS”). The information is primarily derived from information produced by CalPERS, its
independent accountants and its actuaries. The District has not independently verified the information
provided by CalPERS and makes no representations nor expresses any opinion as to the accuracy of the
information provided by CalPERS.

The comprehensive annual financial reports of CalPERS are available on its Internet website at
www.calpers.ca.gov. The CalPERS website also contains CalPERS’ most recent actuarial valuation reports
and other information concerning benefits and other matters. The textual reference to such Internet website is
provided for convenience only. None of the information on such Internet website is incorporated by reference
herein. Such information is not incorporated by reference herein. The District cannot guarantee the accuracy
of such information. Actuarial assessments are “forward-looking” statements that reflect the judgment of the
fiduciaries of the pension plans, and are based upon a variety of assumptions, one or more of which may not
materialize or be changed in the future.

CalPERS Plan. The District contributes to CalPERS, an agent multiple-employer public employee
defined benefit pension plan for all of the District’s full-time and certain of its temporary employees that have
worked for the District for a total of over 1,000 hours. CalPERS provides retirement, disability and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent
for participating public entities within the State, including the District.

A-4
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A - 58



CalPERS plan benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and the
District’s Board of Directors. Starting July 1, 2008, participants in the District’s CalPERS plan have been
required to contribute up to 8% of their annual covered salary. In the fiscal year of the District ended June 30
(“Fiscal Year™), 2015, District employees contributed the entire 8% of their CalPERS plan contributions.

The District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate applied to annual covered
payroll. The District’s contribution rates for Fiscal Year 2015 and 2016 were 17.737% and 18.331%,
respectively. The District’s contribution rate for Fiscal Year 2017 has been established at 19.302%.

For Fiscal Years 2015 and 2014, the District’s annual pension contribution (the “ARC”), as
determined by an actuarial valuation, was $4,524,000 and $4,785,000, respectively. The District currently
expects its annual required contribution in Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017 to be approximately $4,900,000 and
$5,450,000, respectively (assuming that the District elects the lump sum payment option in each of the
respective years).

In June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) approved new standards
(GASB Statement No. 68, or “GASB 68”) with respect to pension accounting and financial reporting for state
and local governments and pension plans. The changes impact the accounting treatment of pension plans in
which state and local governments participate. Major changes include: (i) the inclusion of unfunded pension
liabilities on the government’s balance sheet (previously, such unfunded liabilities were typically included as
notes to the government’s financial statements); (ii) more components of full pension costs will be shown as
expenses regardless of actual contribution levels; (iii) lower actuarial discount rates will be required to be used
for underfunded plans in certain cases for purposes of the financial statements; (iv) closed amortization periods
for unfunded liabilities will be required to be used for certain purposes of the financial statements; and (v) the
difference between expected and actual investment returns will be recognized over a closed five-year
smoothing period. The reporting requirements for pension plans for government employers took effect in
Fiscal Year 2015. Based on the adoption of the new accounting standard, beginning with the Fiscal Year
2015 actuarial valuation, the ARC and the annual pension expense will be different. For additional
information relating to the District’s plan, see Note 13 to the District’s audited financial statements for Fiscal
Year 2015 attached to the Remarketing Statement as Appendix B.

Under GASB 68, which has been implemented beginning in Fiscal Year 2015, the District’s pension
plan was fully funded. The District had a net pension asset in the amount of $1.6 million as of June 30, 2015.
The net pension asset is the difference between total pension liability and the fair market value of pension
assets. The total pension liability for Fiscal Year 2015 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the
plan as of June 30, 2013.

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the total pension liability is
shown below.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB 68
Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes
inflation
Mortality Rate Table® Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds
Post Retirement Benefit Contract COLA up to 2.75% until purchasing power protection allowance
Increase floor on purchasing power applies, 2.75% thereafter
A-5

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -59



@ The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality
improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.
Source: The District.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. The experience study report can be obtained from CalPERS.

Pension Benefits Trust. The District recognizes that defined benefit plans and the related future
pension obligations pose significant issues for many government agencies. The District has taken a proactive
approach to address the issue by establishing a Pension Benefits Trust in Fiscal Year 2013 to fund its CalPERS
unfunded liability, providing the District with an alternative to CalPERS that allows for investment by a
professional fund management team selected and monitored by the District. The Pension Benefits Trust holds
the funding contributions from the District pending future remittance to the CalPERS pension trust fund, which
will pay all retiree benefit payments to employees associated with the District’s plan. Future contributions will
be transferred to CalPERS at the District’s discretion. The funds held in the Pension Benefits Trust are legally
protected from the claims of the general creditors of the District. Contributions to the Pension Benefits Trust
and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

In Fiscal Year 2013, the District made a $35.0 million contribution to the Pension Benefits Trust,
bringing the District (as shown in the table below) to a 94.6% funded ratio (including the amounts in the
Pension Benefits Trust and the District’s CalPERS plan) as of June 30, 2013. In Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015,
the District made additional contributions of $2.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively, to the Pension
Benefits Trust. As of June 30, 2015, the fair market value of the assets in the Pension Benefits Trust was
approximately $45.3 million, resulting in a net pension asset of approximately $1.6 million. The moneys in
the Pension Benefits Trust were invested in the Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, Fidelity Concord Spartan
International Fund, Metropolitan West Total Return Bond Fund and Federated Government Obligations
Money Market Fund. The District made an additional contribution of $1.9 million to the Pension Benefits
Trust in Fiscal Year 2016. Additional information on the Pension Benefits Trust’s investments can be found in
Note 2 to the District’s audited financial statements for Fiscal Year 2015 attached to the Remarketing
Statement as Appendix B.

Funding of CalPERS Plan. The Schedule of Funding Progress below shows the recent history of the
actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded
accrued liability to payroll.

TABLE 1
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Schedule of Funding Progress
(In Thousands)

Annual

Valuation Accrued Market Value Unfunded Funded Covered
Date Liability of Assets Liability Ratio Payroll
06/30/10 $158,904 $100,063 $34,351 63.0% $24,929
06/30/11 170,392 128,753 29,676 75.6 24,379
06/30/12 183,096 129,953 31,902 71.0 24,203
06/30/13® 197,685 186,955 10,730 94.6 25,499
06/30/14 219,940 220,687 (747) 100.3 26,792

(@ The Pension Benefits Trust was established in Fiscal Year 2013. Fiscal Year 2013 amount includes Pension Benefits Trust
assets of $35.0 million, significantly reducing the District’s unfunded liability to $10.7 million as of June 30, 2013. In
Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, the District made additional contributions of $2.2 million and $2.1 million to the Pension

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



Benefits Trust. As of June 30, 2015, the fair market value of the assets in the Pension Benefits Trust was approximately
$45.3 million, resulting in a net pension asset of approximately $1.6 million. See the caption “—Pension Benefits Trust.”
Source: Irvine Ranch Water District Fiscal Year 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

In the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2015, the District has a net pension asset of $1.6
million, computed in accordance with GASB 68. The District’s net pension asset, computed in accordance
with GASB 68 (as further discussed below), for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows (in thousands):

Net Pension Liability (Beginning of Year) $20,454
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (22,021)
Net Pension Liability (Asset) (End of Year) 1,567

Source: The District.

The following table summarizes the District’s pension contributions for Fiscal Years 2011 through

2015:
TABLE 2
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Annual Pension Cost (Employer Contributions)
(In Thousands)
Percentage of
District-Funded Annual Net
Employer Employee Employee Annual Pension Cost Pension
Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution”  Contribution Pension Cost  Contributed  Asset
2011 $ 9,480 $1,728 $ 249 $3,012 314.7% $11,283
2012 4,643 1,025 916 4,321 107.5 11,605
2013@ 42,840 609 1,365 4,297 997.0 50,148
2014@ 6,574 394 1,679 4,785 137.4 51,937
201536) 6,638 206 1,901 N/A N/A N/A

@ Beginning in the second half of Fiscal Year 2015, the District will no longer fund any portion of the employee contribution.
See the caption “—CalPERS Plan.”

@ These figures include contributions of $35 million, $2.2 million and $2.1 million to the Pension Benefits Trust in Fiscal
Years 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. See the caption “—Pension Benefits Trust.”

@  Differences from prior years reflect new GASB standards described above.

Source: The District.

Other Pension Benefits. The District enables all of its part-time and certain temporary employees to
participate in a defined contribution plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts
contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. For Fiscal Year 2015, the District’s payroll covered by the
plan was $139,220. The eligible employees contributed $10,442 (the required 7.5% of current covered
payroll). The District made no contributions to the defined contribution plan during such Fiscal Year.

All regular, full-time District employees are eligible to participate in the District’s deferred
compensation program pursuant to Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code whereby they can voluntarily
contribute a portion of their earnings into a tax-deferred fund administered by the District and invested through
a third party provider. Pursuant to the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001, effective
January 1, 2002, employees may contribute the lesser of 100% of includible compensation or the maximum
dollar amount allowable under Internal Revenue Code Section 457 in effect for the year. The dollar amount
currently in effect for calendar year 2016 is $18,000. Since 2008, the limit has been indexed to inflation in
$500 increments.

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



Effective January 1, 2008, for employees with one year or more of service, the District provides 100%
matching of employee Section 457 plan contributions up to an annual maximum of 3% of the employee’s base
salary. Such employer contribution amounts are deposited into a money purchase plan pursuant to
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. During Fiscal Year 2015, the District contributed $659,093 to
employee accounts under the 401(a) plan.

The assets in both plans are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries, and are therefore not reported in the financial statements of the District.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

GASB has issued two related pronouncements, known as GASB 43 and GASB 45, related to funding
and accounting for Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) liabilities. OPEB liabilities consist of health
care, insurance and all other retiree benefits that are not part of a pension plan. Under GASB 45, costs of
OPEB must be matched to the current period in which employees are performing services for the District. In
effect, there is an exchange between the employee and the District in which the employee renders services to
the District and in consideration therefor receives certain salaries and benefits, part of which are OPEB, which
they will not actually use until some point in the future. GASB accounting standards require the District to
recognize the cost of the benefits in the periods when the employees’ services are received by the District.
GASB 45 also requires the District to provide information about the accrued actuarial liabilities for the
promised benefits for past services, to what extent those have been funded, and to what extent there will be
demands from OPEB on the District’s future cash flows.

The District currently has three OPEB programs: the California Public Employees Medical and
Hospital Care Act (“PEMHCA”) premiums, a retiree health costs reimbursement plan, and a retiree death
benefit life insurance program. Under the first program, the District pays the required healthcare coverage
under PEMHCA, commonly referred to as “PERS Health.” To qualify, employees must retire from the
District and begin drawing CalPERS retirement benefits. Participation in PEMHCA is financed in part by the
District through a contribution of $122.00 per employee per month (at current rates). The contribution rate is
scheduled to be indexed with medical inflation in future years, although contributions could increase in greater
amounts at the direction of CalPERS Board. In addition, the District pays 0.34% of the PEMHCA premium to
cover administrative fees. In Fiscal Year 2015, the District contributed $105,761 on behalf of retirees
participating in the PEMHCA program.

As part of its retiree health costs reimbursement plan, the District provides retirees who have attained
age 55 and have completed at least 10 years of service with the District with reimbursement of eligible
healthcare costs of $300 per month for retirees with at least ten years of service up to a maximum of $600 per
month for retirees with at least 25 years of service, in each case for up to five years. In Fiscal Year 2015, the
District contributed $328,167 on behalf of retirees participating in the Retiree Health Costs Reimbursement
Plan.

Finally, the retiree death benefit life insurance program provides retirees who were hired on or before
December 31, 2008 with term life insurance benefits with a face amount equal to 100% of their annual salary
in effect at the time of retirement. Insured group-term life benefits end for all participants at age 70.
Thereafter, the District provides a self-insured $10,000 death benefit for all participants already retired as of
December 31, 2008 and for currently active Board members. To qualify, a retiree must have retired from the
District, be at least 55 years old, have completed at least ten continuous years of service with the District, and
must be drawing retirement benefits from CalPERS. In Fiscal Year 2015, the District contributed $14,241 on
behalf of retirees participating in this program.

OPEB costs have traditionally been accounted for and financed from the District’s annual operating
budget as part of its benefits expense on a pay-as-you-go basis. During Fiscal Year 2015, the District

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



contributed $448,169 on behalf of retirees participating in the OPEB programs. The budgeted amount for the
District’s OPEB in Fiscal Year 2016 is approximately $471,000.

The District has been required to comply with the accounting and reporting requirements of GASB 45
since Fiscal Year 2008. According to an actuarial valuation prepared for the District by Demsey, Filliger &
Associates, the unfunded liability for the District’s OPEB as of July 1, 2014 was approximately $7.3 million.
The Annual Required Contribution (the “OPEB ARC”) was $726,031 in Fiscal Year 2015, of which the
District contributed $448,169. The OPEB ARC is calculated assuming that the accrued, unfunded liability will
be amortized over the next 30 years, benefits will remain constant, and funding in excess of actual benefit costs
will be invested at a 4.00% annual return, and with other assumptions regarding medical cost inflation.

For additional information relating to the District’s OPEB obligations, see Note 14 to the District’s
audited financial statements for Fiscal Year 2015 attached to the Remarketing Statement as Appendix B.

Budget Process

Prior to July 1 of each year, the General Manager prepares a budget for the Fiscal Year commencing
July 1 and ending on the succeeding June 30. Following the adoption of the operating budget, the Board of
Directors approves a schedule of water, sewer and recycled water rates for such Fiscal Year based on the
budget approved by the Board of Directors. See the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITS AND
APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—Proposition 218.” The budget for Fiscal Year 2016 was approved on
May 26, 2015.

Water and Sewer System Insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters. The District utilizes a combination of self-insurance and
third-party liability insurance to minimize loss exposures from property, third-party liability claims and
workers compensation claims. The District self-insures the first $25,000 per occurrence for property losses,
$100,000 per occurrence for third-party liability claims and $125,000 per occurrence for workers
compensation claims.

Property, boiler and machinery insurance is provided through participation in the California State
Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (“CSAC-EIA”). Property insurance includes flood
insurance but does not include earthquake insurance. General and excess liability coverage of $35,000,000
and workers compensation insurance is provided through participation in CSAC-EIA. Pollution and legal
liability coverage for the Irvine Desalter Project is provided by a policy with Illinois Union Insurance
Company. Settlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the past three Fiscal Years.

Collection Procedures

All charges for water and recycled water service and almost all charges for sewer service are billed
monthly. If payment is not received 25 days after presentation, a one-time late charge of 10% of the unpaid
balance plus 1.5% interest will be assessed for each month until the unpaid balance has been paid in full. A
shut-off notice is mailed out in conjunction with an automated courtesy phone call when the unpaid balance
exceeds $150. If payment is not received within 15 days of the mailed shut-off notice, service is shut off as of
the date specified on the notice. Service is not restored until all charges, including a restoration charge, have
been paid in full. The District sends closed accounts to outside collection agencies and does not currently
transfer such accounts to the County tax roll. A small number of accounts located in Newport Beach for which
the District provides sewer service only are billed on the County tax rolls.

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



Outstanding Indebtedness

Improvement District Indebtedness. As of December 31, 2015, the District had $494,800,000
aggregate principal amount of outstanding ad valorem assessment bonds (the “Ad Valorem Assessment
Bonds”) on behalf of the Improvement Districts. The Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds are secured by ad
valorem assessments on land within the respective Improvement District, and are not by their terms payable
from Revenues, except for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the Bonds of the Irvine Ranch Water District,
Series 2010B (the “Series 2010B Bonds”) and the Bonds of Irvine Ranch Water District, Refunding Series
2011A-2 (the “Series 2011A-2 Bonds”), each of which is described below under the caption “—~Parity
Obligations.” The District’s practice has been to apply Net Revenues remaining after the payment of debt
service on Parity Obligations and subordinate obligations to the principal and interest on the Ad Valorem
Assessment Bonds. Pursuant to Section 35975 of the Act, the District also may levy certain rates and charges
in lieu of ad valorem assessments to pay the Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds. The District does not currently
levy in-lieu rates and charges. Any such in lieu rates and charges levied by the District in the future would not
constitute Revenues. The following table illustrates a breakdown of outstanding Ad Valorem Assessment
Bonds by Improvement District as of December 31, 2015.

TABLE 3
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Outstanding Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds By Improvement District

Remaining Amount
Amount Unissued Bonds Outstanding as of
Improvement District Authorized Amount Issued Authorized December 31, 2015
Waterworks Bonds
112 $ 28512,300 $ 5,740,000 $ 22,772,300 $ 5,379,000
1130 25,769,500 14,800,000 10,969,500 13,637,500
1250Q) 735,246,000 413,156,400 322,089,600 184,154,205
153 237,300,000 0 237,300,000 0
154 4,839,000 0 4,839,000 0
185 13,500,000 0 13,500,000 0
188 8,174,000 4,437,000 3,737,000 1,456,000

Total Waterworks Bonds

Sewer Bonds

$ 1,053,340,800

$ 438,133,400

$ 615,207,400

$ 204,626,705

14 $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 0 $ 0
212 108,712,000 15,700,000 93,012,000 14,731,000
2130 87,648,000 23,800,000 63,848,000 20,839,000
225W6) 856,643,000 449,748,000 406,895,000 231,726,235
240 117,273,000 48,476,500 68,796,500 22,617,060
252 0 0 0 0
253 122,283,000 0 122,283,000 0
256 0 0 0 0
2850 21,300,000 0 21,300,000 0
288 8,977,000 300,000 8,677,000 260,000

Total Sewer Bonds

Total District

@ The Series 2011A-1 Bonds represent the consolidated, several general obligations of these Improvement Districts. See the Remarketing
Statement under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—General—Assessment Proceeds and Pledge of

Revenues.”

@ Improvement District No. 125 was created on November 11, 2013. Reflects the consolidation of portions of former Improvement District

$ 1,324,836,000

$ 540,024,500

$ 784,811,500

$ 290,173,295

$ 2,378,176,800

$ 978,157,900

Nos. 105, 106, 102, 121, 130, 135, 140, 161, 182, 184 and 186.

®  On March 4, 2014, ad valorem assessment bonds for Improvement District No. 185 in the maximum authorized principal amount of

$13,500,000 were approved at a special election.
@ Also referred to as Improvement District No. 210.

®  Improvement District No. 225 was created on November 11, 2013. Reflects the consolidation of portions of former Improvement District
Nos. 2(202), 206, 221, 230, 235, 250, 261, 282, 284 and 286.

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

A-10

A-64

$ 1,400,018,900

$ 494,800,000



©®  On March 4, 2014, ad valorem assessment bonds for Improvement District No. 285 in the maximum authorized principal amount of
$21,300,000 were approved at a special election.
Source: The District.

Parity Obligations. In addition to the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, the District has the following
Outstanding Parity Obligations:

e 1997 State Loan #3. In 1997, the District entered into a loan contract with the State of California
(the 1997 State Loan”) to fund recycled water projects. The 1997 State Loan was outstanding as
of December 31, 2015 in an aggregate principal amount of $776,581 and matures in 2019.
Pursuant to the terms of the 1997 State Loan, the District’s obligation to pay debt service on the
1997 State Loan is payable from Net Revenues on a parity with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and
other Parity Obligations.

e Prior Reimbursement Agreements. In connection with the District’s prior issuances of
ad valorem assessment bonds, the District has entered into several reimbursement agreements (the
“Prior Reimbursement Agreements™) with various letter of credit banks (the “Prior Banks”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Prior Reimbursement Agreements, the District’s obligations to
reimburse the Prior Banks will be payable from Net Revenues on a parity with the Series 2011A-1
Bonds and other Parity Obligations. There are currently no reimbursement obligations
outstanding, although the District may incur reimbursement obligations under such Prior
Reimbursement Agreements as provided therein. The following table summarizes the stated
amount of each letter of credit associated with the Prior Reimbursement Agreements.

TABLE 4
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Summary of Prior Reimbursement Agreements
As of December 31, 2015

Reimbursement

General Outstanding Expiration LOC Stated Obligations
Obligation Bonds Principal Letter of Credit Bank Date Amount Outstanding
Series 1993 $ 34,600,000 U.S. Bank National 11/07/18 $ 35,066,389 $ 0
Association
Series 1995 14,200,000 Sumitomo Mitsui 07/14/17 14,410,082 0
Banking Corp.
Series 2008A 52,500,000 Sumitomo Mitsui 07/14/17 53,276,712 0
Banking Corp.
Series 2009A 65,000,000 U.S. Bank National 07/15/16 65,726,575 0
Association
Series 2009B 65,000,000  Bank of America, N.A.  07/15/16 65,726,575 0
TOTAL $ 231,300,000 $ 234,206,333 $ 0

Source: The District.

e 2010 Installment Sale Agreement. In 2010, the District entered into an Installment Sale
Agreement (the “2010 Installment Sale Agreement”) in connection with the execution and
delivery of the District’s $85,145,000 aggregate principal amount of Certificates of Participation
Irvine Ranch Water District Refunding Series 2010. The 2010 Installment Sale Agreement was
outstanding as of December 31, 2015 in the aggregate principal amount of $61,280,000 and
matures in 2032. The District’s obligation to make installment payments pursuant to the 2010
Installment Sale Agreement is on a parity with the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and other Parity
Obligations.

A-11
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-65



e Series 2010B Bonds. In 2010, the District issued $175,000,000 aggregate principal amount of
Series 2010B Bonds. The Series 2010B Bonds were outstanding as of December 31, 2015 in the
aggregate principal amount of $175,000,000 and mature in 2040. In addition to Assessment
Proceeds, the Series 2010B Bonds are payable from Net Revenues on a parity with the
Series 2011A-1 Bonds and other Parity Obligations. See the caption “WATER AND SEWER
SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Reduction in BAB Credits” for a discussion of the
effect of the federal sequester on the receipt of interest subsidy payments relating to the Series
2010B Bonds.

e Series 2011A-2 Bonds. In 2011, the District issued $40,370,000 aggregate principal amount of
Series 2011A-2 Bonds. The Series 2011A-2 Bonds were outstanding as of December 31, 2015 in
the aggregate principal amount of $35,400,000 and mature in 2037. In addition to Assessment
Proceeds, the Series 2011A-2 Bonds are payable from Net Revenues on a parity with the Series
2011A-1 Bonds and other Parity Obligations.

Subordinate Debt.

e Interest Rate Swap Transactions. As of December 31, 2015, the District was also obligated under
five interest rate swap transactions with a total notional amount of $130 million and termination
dates ranging from June 2019 to March 2029, pursuant to which the District is entitled to receive
variable rate payments based on a floating rate index in return for the District’s obligation to make
payments at a fixed interest rate (the “Swaps”™).

The Swaps generally are evenly distributed, as to notional amount on a particular transaction date,
between two swap counterparties — Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. (“Merrill”) and Citibank,
N.A. (“Citibank™) — except with respect to one Swap with a notional amount of $30 million and a
termination date of June 17, 2019, which was entered into only with Citibank. For additional
information with respect to the payment terms and other information relating to the Swaps, see
Note 3 to the District’s financial statements attached as Appendix B to the Remarketing
Statement. Regularly-scheduled and early termination payments with respect to the Swaps
constitute unsecured general obligations of the District payable from legally-available funds. The
Swaps are payable from certain Revenues, but are subordinate to the District’s obligation to pay
debt service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and other Parity Obligations. Any amounts received by
the District pursuant to the Swaps also constitute Revenues and, as such, are pledged for the
payment of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds and other Parity Obligations. As of December 31, 2015,
the mark-to-market value of the total interest rate swaps with Citibank and Merrill exceeded the
threshold amount ($15,000,000) for each counterparty, requiring the District to post collateral in
the amount of $9,200,226. The funds are held in a separate trust account and earn interest at the
Federal Funds Effective Rate.

All of the above-described interest rate swap transactions entail risk to the District. For example,
the swap counterparties may fail or be unable to perform, interest rates may vary from
assumptions, the District may be required to post collateral in certain circumstances, or the
District may be required to make significant payments in the event of an early termination of one
or more Swaps. The early termination of a Swap may not affect the obligations of the
counterparties with respect to the other Swaps. The District cannot predict if any such event will
occur with respect to one or more of the District’s existing or future interest rate swap agreements.
However, the District does not anticipate that any such event would have a material adverse effect
on the District’s ability to pay the debt service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

e Santiago County Water District Consolidation. The District and Santiago County Water District
(“SCWD”) consolidated effective July 1, 2006. As successor to SCWD, the District is obligated
to satisfy the following additional obligations: (i) a fiscal services agreement with the State of

A-12
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A - 66



California Department of Water Resources, with a loan balance of approximately $700,000 as of
December 31, 2015 and final payment due in 2025; and (ii) a promissory note payable to
Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency with a remaining balance of approximately
$545,000 and a final payment date in 2045.

Variable Rate Debt Management

The Board of Directors of the District has adopted a policy to maintain a target amount of investment
assets equal to 75% or more of the District’s outstanding unhedged variable rate indebtedness. No assurance
can be made that the Board of Directors of the District will not modify such policy in the future.

Current Investments

As of December 31, 2015, the District had investments (excluding the real estate investments
described below) of approximately $244.7 million as follows:

TABLE5
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Summary of Investments

Approximate Investment Percentage of Total
Investment Type Amount in Millions® Investments®
Federal Agency Securities $ 177.0 72.34%
Local Agency Investment Fund 50.0 20.43
Treasury Equivalents® 9.2 3.76
Municipal Bonds — Installment Sale Agreement 8.5 3.47
Total $ 2447 100.00%

M As of December 31, 2015. Rounded. Excludes real estate investments described below.

@ Includes collateral held with Citibank and Merrill pursuant to the Swaps. Although not held by the District, such collateral
constitutes District moneys. See the caption “—Outstanding Indebtedness—Subordinate Debt—Interest Rate Swap
Transactions.”

Source: The District.

In addition to the moneys invested in local agency municipal bonds and the Local Agency Investment
Fund, the District has invested approximately $72.6 million of its capital facilities replacement fund in real
property. The District’s real property investments include a limited partnership interest in a 230-unit
apartment complex (the “Wood Canyon Villas Apartments”), ownership of a 450-unit apartment complex (the
“Sycamore Canyon Apartments”) and ownership of three commercial office buildings (the “Irvine Market
Place,” the “Waterworks Business Park” and the “Sand Canyon Professional Center”), with market values well
in excess of the original investment. Wood Canyon Villas Apartments, Sycamore Canyon Apartments, the
Irvine Market Place, the Waterworks Business Park and the Sand Canyon Professional Center are all
income-producing properties, the earnings and projected earnings from which are reflected in Tables 6 and 7
below.

In February 2014, the District and El Toro Water District (“ETWD?”) entered into an Installment Sale
Agreement (the “ISA”) pursuant to which the District agreed to fund ETWD’s share of the costs of
construction of, and the acquisition of capacity rights in, the Baker Water Treatment Plant project (the “Baker
WTP”) in exchange for quarterly installment payments from ETWD. See the caption “THE WATER
SYSTEM—General” for a description of the Baker WTP. ETWD’s obligation to repay the District under the
ISA is payable from net revenues of ETWD’s water system over a period of twenty years. The principal
amount of ETWD’s obligations under the ISA will not exceed $12,500,000. The amount outstanding under
the ISA as of December 31, 2015 was $8,496,575 and the applicable interest rate is 4.57%.

A-13
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -67



Historic Net Real Estate Income

The following table shows the net real estate income after expenses of the District for the five most
recent Fiscal Years.

TABLE 6
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Net Real Estate Income
(in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Net Income
2011 $5,649
2012 6,736
2013 6,566
2014 7,760
2015 8,191

Source: The District.
Projected Net Real Estate Income

The following table projects the net real estate income after expenses of the District for the current and
next four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 7
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Net Real Estate Income
(in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Net Income®
2016 $8,609
2017 8,770
2018 8,935
2019 9,103
2020 9,274

@ Based on existing and expected leases. See the caption “—Current Investments.”
Source: The District.

1% Property Tax Revenues

Pursuant to the Act, the Board of Supervisors of the County is required to levy a “general assessment”
on assessable property within the boundaries of the District sufficient to raise the amounts determined each
year by the District’s Board of Directors to be necessary for the authorized purposes of the District. These
provisions, however, have largely been superseded by the passage by the California electorate in June of 1978
of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution (commonly known as “Proposition 13”), and by the legislation
subsequently enacted by the California Legislature to implement Article XIIIA. As a result of Article XI1IA
and its implementing legislation, the District receives as proceeds of the “general assessment” a share of the
one percent ad valorem property tax collected by the County from assessable property within the boundaries of
the District (the “1% Property Tax Revenues”).

From time to time legislation has been considered as part of the State budget to shift 1% Property Tax
Revenues collected by each county from local agencies, including special districts such as the District, to

A-14
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -68



school districts or other governmental entities. However, Proposition 1A (“Proposition 1A”), proposed by the
California Legislature in connection with the 2004-05 State Budget Act and approved by the voters in
November 2004, restricted State authority to reduce major local tax revenues such as the tax shifts permitted to
take place in legislation enacted in connection with the 2004-05 and 2005-06 State budgets, which shifted
approximately 35% of many special districts’ shares of the countywide one percent ad valorem tax.

Proposition 1A generally prohibits the State from shifting to schools or community colleges any share
of 1% Property Tax Revenues allocated to local governments for any fiscal year, as set forth under the laws in
effect as of November 3, 2004. Any change in the allocation of property tax revenues among local
governments within a county must be approved by two-thirds of both houses of the Legislature.
Proposition 1A provides, however, that, beginning in fiscal year 2008-09, the State may shift to schools and
community colleges up to 8% of local government property tax revenues, which amount must be repaid, with
interest, within three years, if the Governor proclaims that the shift is needed due to a severe State financial
hardship, the shift is approved by two-thirds of both houses and certain other conditions are met. The State
may also approve voluntary exchanges of local sales tax and property tax revenues among local governments
within a county.

A portion of the District’s 1% Property Tax Revenues was previously subject to borrowing by the
State under Proposition 1A and there can be no assurance that the 1% Property Tax Revenues that the District
currently expects to receive will not be temporarily shifted from the District pursuant to Proposition 1A in
future fiscal years or reduced pursuant to State legislation enacted in the future. If the property tax formula is
permanently changed in the future, it could have a material adverse effect on the receipt of 1% Property Tax
Revenues by the District. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS—PIledge of Assessment Proceeds and Revenues” for a discussion of the extent to
which 1% Property Tax Revenues are available to pay Debt Service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds.

The table below sets forth the amount of 1% Property Tax Revenues received by the District for the
five most recent Fiscal Years.

TABLE 8
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
1% Property Tax Revenues
(in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 1% Property Tax Revenues
2011 $26,989
2012 26,478
2013® 29,265
2014® 31,545
2015 33,128

@ Reflects shift of property tax revenues of approximately $2.1 million to Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund in Fiscal
Year 2010 as described above. Such moneys were received, with interest, in Fiscal Year 2013.

@ Beginning in Fiscal Year 2014, the District will receive 1% Property Tax Revenues from an area that was previously served
by Orange County Sanitation District.

Source: The District.

Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment — “Teeter Plan”

The Board of Supervisors of the County has approved the implementation of the Alternative Method
of Distribution of Tax Levies and Collections and of Tax Sale Proceeds (the “Teeter Plan™), as provided for in
Section 4701 et seq. of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Under the Teeter Plan, the County
apportions secured property assessments on an accrual basis when due (irrespective of actual collections) to its

A-15
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-69



local political subdivisions, including the District, for which the County acts as the assessment-levying or
assessment-collecting agency.

The Teeter Plan for the County is applicable to all assessment levies for which the County acts as the
assessment-levying or assessment-collecting agency, or for which the treasury of the County is the legal
depository of assessment collections.

The ad valorem property assessments to be levied to pay the interest on and principal of the Series
2011A-1 Bonds will be subject to the Teeter Plan. The District will receive 100% of the ad valorem property
assessment levied on secured property to pay the Series 2011A-1 Bonds irrespective of actual delinquencies in
the collection of the assessment by the County so long as the Teeter Plan remains in effect. The District’s
share of 1% Property Tax Revenues is also subject to the Teeter Plan.

The Teeter Plan is to remain in effect for the County unless the Board of Supervisors of the County
orders its discontinuance or unless, prior to the commencement of any fiscal year of the County (which
commences on July 1), the Board of Supervisors of the County receives a petition for its discontinuance joined
in by a resolution adopted by at least two-thirds of the participating revenue districts in the County. In the
event that the Board of Supervisors of the County discontinues the Teeter Plan for the County, only those
secured property assessments that are actually collected would be allocated to political subdivisions (including
the District) for which the County acts as the assessment-levying or assessment-collecting agency.

Governmental Regulations

The District’s operations are subject to numerous environmental regulations enforced by multiple
governmental entities. Programs are in place for compliance with drinking water regulations, water discharge
regulations, underground and aboveground fuel storage tank regulations, hazardous materials management
plans, hazardous waste regulations, air quality permitting requirements, wastewater discharge limitations, and
employee safety issues relating to hazardous materials and other conditions. Also, the District aggressively
pursues the investigation and, when appropriate, the implementation of alternative methods and technologies
for meeting increasingly strict environmental regulations.

The District expects environmental regulation to increase, resulting in higher capital and operating
costs in the future, which may have a material adverse effect on the finances of the District.

Although the District’s Board of Directors establishes the schedules of water, sewer and reclaimed
water rates for each Fiscal Year, such rates are subject to the requirements of Proposition 218, which are
described further under the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND
CHARGES—Proposition 218.”

WATER SUPPLY

The District was formed in 1961 for the purpose of obtaining a water supply for municipal and
irrigation uses. For the twelve month period ended June 30, 2015, of the water supplied by the District,
approximately 19% was imported water, approximately 58% was groundwater and native stream flows and
approximately 23% was recycled water.

The District operates a humber of wells and reservoirs that produce or store local water for both
potable and non-potable uses. Surface storage includes Irvine Lake, a 25,000 acre feet reservoir that is jointly
owned by the District and Serrano Water District. Irvine Lake receives stream flow (native water) coming
from the Santiago Creek watershed and is also used to store imported untreated water. The District’s share of
such water is used by the District primarily for agricultural and other irrigation purposes, and supplements the
recycled water system during peak demand periods. In addition, the District has approximately 5,400 acre feet

A-16
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-70



of recycled water storage capacity in its Sand Canyon, Rattlesnake, San Joaquin and Syphon Reservoirs and is
currently evaluating additional recycled water storage projects.

Imported Water

In Fiscal Year 2015, the District purchased 15,925 acre feet of water imported from the Colorado
River and northern California by The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“MWD”). MWD
supplies water through its member agencies, including the member agency in which the District is situated,
Municipal Water District of Orange County (“MWDOC”). The current cost of treated imported water from
MWDOC is $850.25 per acre foot. In addition, the District currently pays a fixed charge to MWDOC in the
form of readiness to serve, capacity reservation and service connection charges. The readiness to serve and
capacity reservation charges are paid monthly and currently total $111,309, while the service connection
charge is paid annually and is currently $800,050.

MWD faces various challenges in the continued supply of imported water to MWDOC. A description
of these challenges as well as a variety of other operating information with respect to MWD is included in
certain disclosure documents prepared by MWD. MWD periodically prepares official statements and other
disclosure documents in connection with its bonds and other obligations. MWD has also entered into certain
continuing disclosure agreements pursuant to which MWD is contractually obligated for the benefit of owners
of certain of its outstanding obligations to file certain annual reports, including audited financial statements
and notice of certain events, pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (“Rule 15¢2-12"). Such official statements, other disclosure documents, annual reports and
notices (collectively, the “MWD Information™) are filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s
Electronic Municipal Market Access system (“EMMA”) at http://emma.msrb.org. The MWD Information is
not incorporated herein by reference thereto, and the District makes no representation as to the accuracy or
completeness of such information. MWD HAS NOT ENTERED INTO ANY CONTRACTUAL
COMMITMENT WITH THE DISTRICT, THE TRUSTEE OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1
BONDS TO PROVIDE MWD INFORMATION TO THE DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS OF THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

MWD HAS NOT REVIEWED THIS REMARKETING STATEMENT AND HAS NOT MADE
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED HEREIN,
INCLUDING INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO MWD. MWD IS NOT CONTRACTUALLY
OBLIGATED, AND HAS NOT UNDERTAKEN, TO UPDATE SUCH INFORMATION FOR THE
BENEFIT OF THE DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS UNDER
RULE 15c¢2-12.

Groundwater

General. The District’s Water Resources Master Plan calls for a reliable water supply mix and
includes developing sufficient groundwater production capacity to pump up to the District’s basin production
percentage (the “BPP”) set by the Orange County Water District (“OCWD”), the agency responsible for
managing the Orange County groundwater basin. District groundwater pumping is affected by policies of
OCWD, including the setting of replenishment assessments, basin production percentages of total water
demand by agencies pumping basin groundwater and basin equity assessments.

OCWD establishes and collects replenishment assessments as a means of purchasing water and
funding projects for the purpose of replenishing the Orange County groundwater basin. The replenishment
assessment is established annually by OCWD and applies to every acre foot of groundwater produced from the
basin.

A-17
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-T71



In addition, each year, OCWD sets the BPP for water to be extracted from the Orange County
groundwater basin. The BPP is the amount of groundwater, as a percentage of the total water demands of the
District, that can be pumped from the Orange County groundwater basin during the year by a groundwater
pumping agency without incurring the additional assessment described in the following paragraph. The
amount of groundwater that an agency can pump without incurring the additional assessment is calculated by
multiplying the total water use of such agency by the BPP (the “BPP formula”). Between Fiscal Years 2012
and 2016, the BPP has varied from 62% to 72%. In connection with the annexation of certain land by OCWD
(as discussed in detail below), the District has agreed to a maximum BPP of 70% through 2023.

The additional assessment incurred by an agency that pumps non-exempt groundwater above the limit
established by the BPP formula is called the basin equity assessment (the “BEA”). The BEA is established
annually by OCWD for every acre foot of groundwater produced from the Orange County groundwater basin
above the BPP formula (with exemptions described further below for pumping determined by OCWD to
benefit water quality and other purposes) and is intended to increase the cost of producing groundwater in
amounts above the BPP formula so that it equals the cost of importing water, thereby encouraging groundwater
pumping agencies to supplement their groundwater production with imported water for the portion of their
water use that exceeds the BPP. The BEA is a surcharge to discourage, yet still allow for, the production of
groundwater in excess of the BPP formula. One of the District’s operating objectives is to produce the
maximum amount of groundwater within the BPP formula and to avoid producing groundwater in excess of
such maximum in order to avoid paying the BEA. In Fiscal Year 2015, the amount of groundwater that the
District pumped from the Orange County groundwater basin exceeded its BPP for non-exempt water by
approximately 300 acre feet and, accordingly, the District paid a BEA of approximately $182,000 to OCWD.

OCWD has sought to enable groundwater producers to derive a larger percentage of their water
supplies from local sources in times of Statewide drought so that such producers can reduce purchases of
imported water at increased rates. For these reasons, OCWD has gradually increased the BPP in recent years.
For Fiscal Years 2011, 2012 and 2013 the BPP was 62%, 65% and 68%, respectively. As a result of continued
recharge of the Orange County groundwater basin, the BPP for Fiscal Year 2014 was raised to 70%, which
allowed the District to pump approximately 54,000 acre feet from the Orange County groundwater basin
without incurring any BEA. The District has agreed to a maximum BPP of 70% through 2023. In accordance
with its 70% BPP, the District pumped approximately 50,495 acre feet of water from the Orange County
groundwater basin in Fiscal Year 2015. The District pays OCWD a replenishment assessment of $322 per acre
foot for all groundwater pumped and a BEA equal to an additional $524 per acre foot for groundwater pumped
in excess of the BPP formula.

For certain portions of the District’s groundwater production, the application of OCWD’s BPP and
BEA varies from the above general description. The District’s Dyer Road Well Field has a production amount
established by contract with OCWD as described in the below paragraph. The District also has several
projects through which groundwater is produced that are, by contract with OCWD, completely or partially
exempt from the BEA. While this “BEA-exempt” groundwater typically requires treatment, the District’s cost
to produce and treat this groundwater is effectively capped at the cost for imported water. Additionally, as
portions of the District currently lie outside of OCWD’s jurisdictional boundary, water demands in those areas
are not included by OCWD in the accounting of the basin production percentage for the District. In 2014, the
Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission approved the annexation of approximately 6,482 acres
of land within the District into OCWD. The majority of such land is open space and is not expected to be
subject to additional water demand at this time. Currently, approximately 20% of the District’s water demand
is from outside the OCWD jurisdictional boundary.

The BPP formula for the District’s Dyer Road Well Field is not adjusted annually by OCWD but is
fixed by contract with OCWND at 28,000 acre feet per year of clear groundwater, subject to the requirement that
the amount over 20,000 acre feet is matched by an equal amount of groundwater pumped from the District’s
Deep Aquifer Treatment System (the “DATS”), which treats water from a deep aquifer in order to remove
organic color. Like OCWD’s general BPP, the Dyer Road Well Field’s contractually fixed BPP formula

A-18
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-T72



discourages, but does not prohibit, production over such amount through the application of the BEA to any
excess amount.

As discussed above, effective October 2, 2013, the District entered into an agreement with OCWD
pursuant to which approximately 6,482 acres of the District’s territory was annexed to OCWD upon the
Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission’s approval in July 2014. Under the annexation
agreement, the District agreed to a specified termination date for its BEA exemption on the DATS, represented
that the DATS wells would be used to supply the groundwater used in the annexed territory, and agreed that
for a period of ten years from the effective date of the annexation agreement, the District will be deemed
subject to a BPP equal to the lesser of OCWD’s actual BPP or 70%.

The District also produces groundwater from its Irvine Desalter Project, which is described in greater
detail under the caption “—Irvine Desalter Project.” In Fiscal Year 2015, the Irvine Desalter Project provided
a combined total potable and non-potable water production of 8,100 acre feet per year that is exempt from the
BPP. A combined additional 1,685 acre feet per year of production is available from three other wells, the
Orange Park Acres well, Well 2 in Lake Forest and Well 115 in Irvine. Water from Well 115 is pumped and
treated at the Irvine Desalter Project. However, such water is not accounted for as Irvine Desalter Project
water because it was not part of the original Irvine Desalter Project. The Orange Park Acres well was taken
out of service in Fiscal Year 2011 and returned to service in spring 2015. Well 115 was taken out of service in
Fiscal Year 2011 and was returned to service in October 2014. Production from the Orange Park Acres well
and Well 115 is subject to the BPP and the BEA, while production from Well 2 is exempt from the BPP and
the BEA.

In addition, in April 2013, the District completed construction of the Wells 21 and 22 project, which is
expected to add, on average, an additional 6,400 acre feet per year of groundwater. In Fiscal Years 2014 and
2015, the Wells 21 and 22 facility produced approximately 6,935 acre feet and 3,550 acre feet, respectively, of
groundwater. These wells are exempt from the BPP and the BEA. The District plans to expand its
groundwater production facilities further, and is currently evaluating potential well sites. The District also has
rights to native water impounded in Irvine Lake and at the Harding Canyon Dam in the Santiago Canyon area.
Such native water does not produce firm annual yields.

Irvine Desalter Potable Water and EI Toro Groundwater Remediation Projects. The Irvine Desalter
Potable Water and El Toro Groundwater Remediation Projects are groundwater development projects that
were constructed by the District in cooperation with OCWD, the United States Departments of the Navy and
Justice, MWD and MWDOC. The two projects commenced operations in early 2007.

The Irvine Desalter Potable Water Project consists of a potable water wellfield, pipelines and a
purification plant. This project treats local groundwater to remove salts and nitrates caused by the natural
geology and past agricultural use. The water is treated to drinking water standards through reverse osmosis
and disinfection. The Irvine Desalter Potable Water Project was originally anticipated to pump approximately
5,100 acre feet of groundwater per year. However actual pumping may vary each year based on operational
conditions. In Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, the Irvine Desalter Potable Water Project produced 5,459 acre feet
and 4,629 acre feet of groundwater, respectively.

The EI Toro Groundwater Remediation Project is treating a plume of contaminated groundwater from
the main aquifer of the Irvine sub-basin of the Orange County groundwater basin. The plume originated from
the now-closed El Toro Marine Corps Air Station (the “MCAS”). The El Toro Groundwater Remediation
Project consists of a treatment system that removes volatile organic compounds in the groundwater from
solvent degreasers previously used at the MCAS. The treatment plant removes contaminants from the
groundwater using an air stripper and granular activated carbon absorption units. The treated water is used in
the District’s recycled water system and is designed to supply a minimum of 3,400 acre feet of recycled water
per year. In Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, the El Toro Groundwater Remediation Project produced 3,885 acre
feet and 2,885 acre feet, respectively, from non-potable wells. The United States Department of the Navy is

A-19
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-73



compensating the District for this component of the project as part of the Settlement Agreement for
Groundwater Remediation of the MCAS. The District expects that such compensation will cover the project
costs until the plume of contaminated groundwater is cleaned up.

In addition to the two components described above, the Department of the Navy operates a number of
wells on the former MCAS property. These wells pump contaminated groundwater from shallow basins
located below the former base. Such water is treated by a treatment plant owned and operated by the District
using an air stripper and granular activated carbon absorption units. These wells and the treatment plant,
which are referred to as the Shallow Groundwater Unit (the “SGU”), are designed to treat approximately 640
acre feet per year of contaminated groundwater. The treated SGU water is disposed of via an existing ocean
outfall. In Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, the SGU treated approximately 630 acre feet and 600 acre feet,
respectively, of water.

Historic Groundwater Supply. Set forth below is a summary of the District’s sources of groundwater
supply in acre feet per year for the last five Fiscal Years.

TABLE 9
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Groundwater Supply In Acre Feet Per Year

Deep
Aquifer Irvine
Dyer Road  Treatment Desalter Irvine Sub-

Fiscal Year ~ Well Field System Project® basin Other® Total
2011 22,4880 8,756 5,837 611 352 38,044
2012 19,9170 8,916 5,796 627 0 35,256
2013 27,763 8,858 7,1230) 2,866 281 46,891
2014 27,774 8,707 9,343 7,957 376 54,157
2015 28,304 8,600 8,661 4,731 536 50,832

@ Excludes 5,512 acre feet of water and 8,083 acre feet of water purchased at OCWD’s request in Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012,
respectively, in lieu of pumping groundwater. In-lieu water was not purchased in Fiscal Years 2013 or 2014.

@ Excludes water pumped from the SGU, but includes non-potable water used in the District’s recycled water system.

@ Increase from Fiscal Year 2012 amount reflects the fact that a groundwater well was returned to service in October 2012.
See the caption “—Irvine Desalter Project.”

@ Increase from Fiscal Year 2012 amount reflects completion of Wells 21 and 22. See the caption “—General.”

®) Includes Well 2 in Lake Forest. Also includes the Orange Park Acres well, which was returned to service in spring 2015.
See the caption “—General.”

Source: The District.

OCWD. OCWD faces various challenges in managing the Orange County groundwater basin. A
description of these challenges, as well as a variety of other operating information with respect to OCWD, is
included in certain disclosure documents prepared by OCWD. OCWD periodically prepares official
statements and other disclosure documents in connection with its bonds and other obligations. OCWD has
also entered into certain continuing disclosure agreements pursuant to which OCWD is contractually obligated
for the benefit of owners of certain of its outstanding obligations to file certain annual reports, including
audited financial statements and notice of certain events, pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12. Such official statements,
other disclosure documents, annual reports and notices (collectively, the “OCWD Information”) are filed with
EMMA at http://femma.msrb.org. The OCWD Information is not incorporated herein by reference thereto, and
the District makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of such information. OCWD HAS
NOT ENTERED INTO ANY CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENT WITH THE DISTRICT, THE TRUSTEE
OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS TO PROVIDE OCWD INFORMATION TO THE
DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

A-20
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-74



OCWD HAS NOT REVIEWED THIS REMARKETING STATEMENT AND HAS NOT
MADE REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED HEREIN,
INCLUDING INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO OCWD. OCWD IS NOT CONTRACTUALLY
OBLIGATED, AND HAS NOT UNDERTAKEN, TO UPDATE SUCH INFORMATION FOR THE
BENEFIT OF THE DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS UNDER
RULE 15c¢2-12.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. On September 16, 2014, the California Governor signed
Assembly Bill No. 1739 and Senate Bill Nos. 1168 and 1319 (collectively, the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act, or “SGMA”) into law. The SGMA constitutes a legislative effort to regulate groundwater
on a Statewide basis. Pursuant to the SGMA, the California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) has
designated the Orange County groundwater basin as a medium priority basin for purposes of groundwater
management. By January 31, 2017, local groundwater producers must establish or designate an entity
(referred to as a groundwater sustainability agency, or “GSA”), subject to DWR’s approval, to manage each
high and medium priority groundwater basin. Each GSA is tasked with submitting a groundwater
sustainability plan for DWR’s approval by January 31, 2020. Alternatively, groundwater producers can submit
a groundwater management plan under Part 2.75 of the California Water Code or an analysis for DWR’s
review demonstrating that a groundwater basin has operated within its sustainable yield for at least 10 years.
Such alternative plan must be submitted by January 31, 2017 and updated every five years thereafter.

If local groundwater producers do not create or nominate an entity to serve as a GSA, the SGMA
authorizes DWR to assume management of a groundwater basin until such time as a GSA can perform such
functions.

GSAs must consider the interests of all groundwater users in the basin and may require registration of
groundwater users, the installation of flow meters to measure groundwater extractions and annual reporting of
extractions. In addition, GSAs are authorized to impose spacing requirements on new wells, monitor, regulate
and limit or condition groundwater production and establish production allocations among groundwater
producers, among other powers. GSAs are authorized to impose fees to fund such activities and to fine or
issue cease and desist orders against producers that violate the GSA’s regulations. A local agency that
manages groundwater pursuant to its principal act (such as OCWD) may not exercise such authority in a
manner that is inconsistent with any prohibitions or limitations in its principal act unless the governing board
of such local agency makes a finding that such local agency is unable to sustainably manage the groundwater
basin without the prohibited authority. Groundwater sustainability plans must include sustainability goals and
a plan to implement such goals within 20 years.

The District’s wells in the Orange County groundwater basin are presently metered. The SGMA
specifically calls for OCWD, which regulates the Orange County groundwater basin, to serve as the GSA for
those portions of the basin that are within OCWD’s boundaries. See the caption “—General.” It has not yet
been determined whether OCWD or another entity will serve as GSA for areas that are hydrologically part of
the Orange County groundwater basin but located outside of OCWD’s jurisdictional boundaries; some of such
areas are within the District’s boundaries. The District does not currently expect its groundwater extraction
rights or costs in the Orange County groundwater basin to change significantly as a result of the enactment of
the SGMA, nor does the District currently expect the enactment of the SGMA to have a material adverse effect
on the District’s ability to make payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from Net
Revenues. The District notes that ad valorem property assessments constitute an additional source of moneys
available to pay the interest on and principal of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See the Remarketing Statement
under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.”

A-21
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-75



Drought Proclamation

State Orders. Precipitation in the Santa Ana River Watershed and the State as a whole has been
below average in recent years. On January 17, 2014, the California Governor declared a statewide drought
state of emergency through Proclamation 1-17-2014 (the “Proclamation”) with immediate effect. The
Proclamation includes the following orders, among others: (a) local urban water suppliers, including the
District, are encouraged to implement their local water shortage contingency plans; the District’s plan is
discussed under the caption “—District Response to Drought;” (b) local urban water suppliers, including the
District, are encouraged to update their urban water management plans to prepare for extended drought
conditions; (c) DWR and the State Water Resources Control Board (the “SWRCB”) are directed to expedite
the processing of water transfers; (d) the SWRCB is directed to put water rights holders on notice that they
may be required to cease or reduce water diversions in the future; (e) the SWRCB is directed to consider
modifying requirements for reservoir releases or diversion limitations; and (f) DWR is directed to take
necessary actions to protect water quality and supply in the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta/San
Francisco Bay Estuary (the “Bay-Delta”), including the installation of temporary barriers or temporary water
supply connections, while minimizing impacts to aquatic species. In addition, on July 15, 2014, the SWRCB
adopted emergency measures requiring water suppliers to implement mandatory Statewide water conservation
actions.

On March 17, 2015, the SWRCB adopted additional emergency regulations limiting outdoor irrigation
to two days per week, extending certain measures set forth in the July 15, 2014 action for an additional 270
days, prohibiting outdoor irrigation for 48 hours following rain and prohibiting restaurants from serving water
to customers unless requested. It is anticipated that the District will comply with the new regulations through
its water shortage contingency plan (the “WSCP”), as discussed under the caption “—District Response to
Drought.” MWD has also invoked its Water Supply Allocation Plan (the “WSAP”) in response to the March
17, 2015 regulations. The WSAP provides for the equitable distribution of available water supplies in case of
extreme water shortage within MWD’s service area. On April 14, 2015, MWD approved implementation of
WSAP Level 3 (Water Supply Allocation) effective July 1, 2015, which among other things will impose a
surcharge of between $1,480 and $2,960 per acre foot of water usage above MWD members’ water allocation.
To date, no surcharges have been imposed on the District; any such surcharges would be passed through to
customers.

On April 1, 2015, the California Governor issued an Executive Order extending the measures set forth
in the Proclamation and adopting the following additional orders, among others: (i) the SWRCB is directed to
impose restrictions to reduce potable urban water usage, including usage by commercial, industrial and
institutional properties and golf courses, by 25% from 2013 amounts through February 28, 2016; portions of a
water supplier’s service area with higher per capita use must achieve proportionally greater reductions than
areas with lower per capita use; (ii) DWR is directed to lead a statewide initiative to replace 50 million square
feet of lawns with drought tolerant landscaping; (iii) the California Energy Commission is directed to
implement a rebate program for replacement of inefficient appliances; (iv) urban water suppliers are required
to provide monthly water usage, conservation and enforcement information; (v) service providers are required
to monitor groundwater basin levels in accordance with California Water Code § 10933; (vi) permitting
agencies are required to prioritize approval of water infrastructure and supply projects; and (vii) DWR is
required to plan salinity barriers in the Bay-Delta. On May 6, 2015, the SWRCB adopted regulations in
response to the Governor’s executive order that require the District to effect a 16% reduction from 2013 water
usage. On November 13, 2015, the Governor issued Executive Order B-36-15, which calls for an extension of
urban water use restrictions until October 31, 2016 should drought conditions persist through January 2016.

District Response to Drought. Under the District’s water shortage contingency plan (the “WSCP”),
the District responds to a drought in stages based upon four levels of supply cutbacks: Level One (supply
reductions of up to 10%), Level Two (supply reductions of between 10% and 25%), Level Three (supply
reductions of between 25% and 40%) and Level Four (supply reductions of over 40%). Each shortage level
triggers a District response that is intended to reduce demand to the amount of available supply. Responses

A-22
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-76



include public outreach, education and awareness of water waste and water leaks, the implementation of an
allocation-based tiered rate structure and mandatory restrictions on water use (beginning with irrigation and
other outdoor uses), together with enforcement actions.

In response to the Proclamation and the SWRCB’s emergency measures, the District has taken the
following actions pursuant to the implementation of Level Two of the WSCP: (i) potable water irrigation of
ornamental turf on public street medians and in non-circulating decorative water features is prohibited; (ii)
outdoor irrigation during and 48 hours following measurable precipitation is prohibited; (iii) cars must be
washed with hoses that have shutoff nozzles; (iv) commercial conveyor and in-bay car wash systems must
reuse water if equipped to do so; (v) swimming pools must be filled to a lower level to minimize water loss
from splashing; (vi) potable water irrigation runoff is prohibited; (vii) using potable water to wash paved areas
is prohibited; (viii) potable water landscape irrigation must be reduced by up to 50%; (ix) recycled water is
required to be used for construction activities and street sweeping; and (x) homeowners associations may not
fine owners for reducing water usage. The District has also increased staff resources devoted to conservation
and water use efficiency programs; such programs include a conservation hotline, online customer interaction
forms, smart irrigation controller installations, a water-saving landscape contest, educational workshops,
expanded home survey programs and other customer outreach and assistance efforts.

In addition, in 2014, the District adjusted its existing allocation-based tiered rate structure to
encourage greater water conservation. Under the District’s allocation-based tiered rate structure, customers are
assigned a water allocation based on five residential tiers and four non-residential tiers. The water allocation
for each customer is designed to allow a reasonable amount of water use for the customer’s needs and provide
an economic incentive not to exceed such allocation. Customers that exceed the water allocation within their
tier are subject to progressively higher water rates. See the caption “THE WATER SYSTEM—Water System
Rates and Charges.” The District’s allocation-based tiered rate structure constitutes an alternative plan to the
mandatory actions adopted by the SWRCB on July 15, 2014. The District’s alternative plan was approved by
the SWRCB on August 29, 2014, making the District one of only two water agencies in the State that is
permitted to deviate from the SWRCB-mandated emergency conservation measures. As part of the
implementation of the WSCP, the District reduced the allocation for outdoor potable water use and reduced tier
percentages, which causes customers to ascend through the tiers more rapidly, increasing customers’ water
costs.

In some cases, actions taken pursuant to the Proclamation could result in additional water being made
available to the District, while in other cases, actions taken pursuant to the Proclamation could reduce water
supplies. The District believes that implementation of Level Two of the WSCP is likely to be revenue neutral
in Fiscal Year 2016 as users pay more for water in the first half of such Fiscal Year but reduce water
consumption in the second half of such Fiscal Year. While implementation of the WSCP in future years may
result in lower water sales revenues, it is also likely to result in lower operating costs, in particular water
purchase costs and energy costs for water deliveries. As discussed under the caption “THE WATER
SYSTEM—Water System Rates and Charges,” the District’s rate structure consists of variable and fixed rate
components. Decreased water consumption is largely offset by a decrease in related variable costs, while fixed
water charges largely cover the District’s fixed operating and maintenance costs. As a result, the District does
not currently anticipate a significant shortfall in Net Revenues of the water system as a result of the
implementation of Level Two of the WSCP.

The projected operating results set forth under the caption “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Projected Operating Results” reflect the implementation of Level Two of the
WSCP. The District does not believe that the implementation of Level Two of the WSCP will have a material
adverse effect on its ability to make payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from
Net Revenues. The District notes that 1% Property Tax Revenues constitute an additional source of moneys
available to pay the interest on and principal of the Series 2011A-1 Bonds. See the Remarketing Statement
under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.”

A-23
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-T7



If the statewide water shortage should persist or worsen, legal issues exist as to whether different
California Water Code provisions should be invoked to require reasonable regulations for the allocation of
water in time of shortage. Any curtailment pursuant to State orders that is accompanied by an increase in
MWD water charges (such as the surcharge under MWD’s WSAP discussed under the caption “—State
Orders™) to its member agencies could necessitate an increase in the District’s water rates to District
customers.  See the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND
CHARGES—Proposition 218 for a discussion of certain restrictions on the District’s ability to raise water
rates.

Water Supply Reliability

Water Banking. In addition to developing its local groundwater and recycled water systems, the
District is diversifying its water supply reliability by developing water banking projects in Kern County,
California. These projects are known as the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project and the Stockdale
Integrated Banking Project (collectively, the “Water Bank™). The District’s Strand Ranch and Stockdale West
properties are situated on groundwater recharge lands that overlie the regional Kern County groundwater basin.
The purpose of developing the Water Bank is to improve the District’s water supply reliability by capturing
lower cost water available during wet hydrologic periods for use during dry periods. The Water Bank will
enhance the District’s ability to respond to drought conditions and potential water supply interruptions and will
enable the District to reduce the cost of water delivered under such conditions.

In 2009, the District entered into a 30-year water banking partnership with the Rosedale-Rio Bravo
Water Storage District (“Rosedale”) in Kern County. This agreement provides for Rosedale to operate the
Strand Ranch portion of the Water Bank on behalf of the District and permits the District: (i) to store up to
50,000 acre feet of water in the aquifer; (ii) to recharge up to 17,500 acre feet of water in the aquifer; and (iii)
to recover up to 17,500 acre feet of water per year from the aquifer. The District has priority rights to use the
recharge ponds when Rosedale is not recharging Kern River floodwaters. All other uses of the recharge ponds
by Rosedale are on a second priority basis to the District’s use. The water that Rosedale stores on its own
behalf does not count against the District’s 50,000 acre feet storage rights.

The District’s Strand Ranch property has a major canal running through it that allows the movement
of water onto and off of the property. The District has completed construction of 502 acres of groundwater
recharge ponds and the facilities necessary to divert water from the canal and into ponds on the Strand Ranch
property. The recharge ponds allow available surface water to be infiltrated into the groundwater basin for
later use. Seven groundwater wells that provide the ability to recover water have been constructed. Associated
wellheads and pipelines have also been completed and the recovery facilities are available to recover banked
water as necessary during drought conditions and potential water supply interruptions. The Strand Ranch
Integrated Banking Project is now fully operational.

The District entered into an agreement in March 2015 with Rosedale and Castaic Lake Water Agency
(“CLWA”) that provides for cost-sharing among the participants in the construction of additional wells and
conveyance capacity. The District’s participation will consist of 50% of the recovery capacity of six wells and
associated conveyance facilities constructed on Rosedale property adjacent to Strand Ranch for joint use by the
District and CLWA. The 50% District share of the recovery capacity in the six offsite wells will fulfill the
District’s right under the 2009 agreement with Rosedale (discussed above) to construct up to three offsite
recovery wells, supplementing the onsite Strand Ranch recovery wells. The additional recovery capacity will
not increase the District’s storage or annual recovery amounts under the 2009 agreement, but is expected by
the District to allow increased peaking in its recoveries, thereby increasing flexibility in its delivery of
recovered water.

Currently, the District is expanding the Water Bank onto the Stockdale West property, which is
adjacent to the Strand Ranch. The Stockdale West property was purchased by the District in late 2010. These
additional lands will allow the District to increase the District’s water banking recharge, storage and recovery

A-24
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-78



capabilities by approximately 50%. The expansion of the Water Bank to the Stockdale West property will
further increase the District’s dry year water supply reliability.

In 2011, the District implemented a pilot project on the Stockdale West property and constructed 238
acres of recharge basins on the property. In addition, the District constructed water conveyance facilities to
deliver water to the property.

In 2015, the District executed an agreement with Rosedale for the operation of the joint banking
project facilities which will comprise the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project (comprised of the District’s
Stockdale West Property and Rosedale’s Stockdale East property). Both Rosedale and the District have
approved a final environmental impact report for the project.

The District has secured water from a number of sources for recharge at the Water Bank. Pursuant to
the District’s agreement with Rosedale, Rosedale will divert a portion of its entitlement to floodwater flows on
the Kern River to District-owned storage ponds for recovery in dry years. The District is entitled, at no cost, to
20% and 50% of all Kern River floodwaters recharged by the Strand Ranch and Stockdale West Property
recharge ponds, respectively.

The District has also secured access to State Water Project water that is stored in the Water Bank.
Such water is available as a result of the District’s acquisition of approximately 883 acres (the “Jackson
Ranch”) located within the Dudley Ridge Water District (“Dudley Ridge”), together with rights to use
approximately 1,749 acre feet of Table A State Water Project water allocated to Dudley Ridge. Under an
existing agreement, the District can store up to 8,700 acre feet of such water in the Water Bank between 2014
and 2017. The District’s ability to extract such water at any given time is dependent on annual State Water
Project allocation decisions made by the State. Additionally, the Jackson Ranch land acquisition included
certain participation rights in the Kern Water Bank to store approximately 9,495 acre feet of water.

In 2011, the District entered into a 28-year exchange program (the “BVWSD Exchange Program”)
with Buena Vista Water Storage District (“BVWSD”) that allows BVWSD to store a portion of its high-flow
Kern River water at the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project in exchange for allocating to the District 50%
of such stored water. BVWSD holds both State Water Project Table A water rights and pre-1914 rights to
Kern River water. The pre-1914 water rights give BVWSD an average annual entitlement of 158,000 acre feet
of Kern River water. Pursuant to the BVWSD Exchange Program, BVWSD is entitled to deliver up to 17,500
acre feet of water to the Water Bank in any given year with a maximum cumulative capacity of 40,000 acre
feet. The District and BVWSD are working together to expand the scope of the BVWSD Exchange Program
to provide for additional deliveries to the Stockdale West property.

According to the schedule set forth in the BVWSD Exchange Program, the District is entitled to keep
an additional 10% of the water stored by BVWSD each calendar year after the fourth calendar year following
the year of the recharge event, which amount increases by 10% each calendar year until nine calendar years
after the year of the recharge event, at which time the District is entitled to keep all water transferred by
BVWSD to the Water Bank. Pursuant to the terms of the BVWSD Exchange Program, the District and
BVWSD share equally in any water losses resulting from the exchange. BVWSD is responsible for all costs of
delivering water to the Water Bank and the District is responsible for all costs of returning the water to
BVWSD. The District is required to return water that BVWSD determines it will recover from the Water
Bank at a maximum rate of 6,667 acre feet per year. The District is obligated to pay BVWSD for any water
kept by the District in excess of 50% of the water transferred by BVWSD to the Water Bank at BVWSD'’s then
current State Water Project Table A Variable Operations, Maintenance, Power and Replacement unit cost rate
for water. The 28-year term of the BVWSD Exchange Program coincides with the District’s agreements with
Rosedale relating to the Water Bank.

In 2012, the District entered into separate Pilot Exchange Agreements with the Central Coast Water
Authority and the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (the “Pilot Exchange Agreements”) that provided

A-25
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-T79



for such agencies to store portions of their 2012 allocation of State Water Project water at the Water Bank in
exchange for the District’s receipt of half of such water for its own use. At the end of calendar year 2015, a
total of 6,385 acre feet of water was stored at the Water Bank through the Pilot Exchange Agreements.

The District has entered into a Coordinated Operating, Water Storage, Exchange and Delivery
Agreement with MWD which allows the District to cause State Water Project water that is recovered from the
Water Bank to be delivered to the District’s service area. Through this agreement, the District can cause the
delivery of State Water Project water from the Water Bank to the District’s service area at any time. The
District has also developed an additional agreement with MWD to have other waters recovered and delivered
into the District’s service area. Such additional agreement is expected to be used on an on-call basis when the
District desires to the move non-State Water Project water into southern California for use in the District’s
service area. The District recovered and delivered approximately 1,000 acre feet from the Strand Ranch
Integrated Banking Project in 2015 pursuant to this additional agreement.

Since 2010, the District has delivered a total of approximately 37,000 acre feet of water to the Water
Bank, including the Stockdale West property. The District returned 2,500 acre feet of water to BVWSD in
2012 from BVWSD’s share of the water stored in the Water Bank pursuant to the BVWSD Exchange
Program. In 2013, the District returned 281 acre feet of water to the Central Coast Water Authority in
accordance with the applicable Pilot Exchange Agreement and 6,667 acre feet of water and to BVWSD in
accordance with the BVWSD Exchange Program. In 2014, the District returned 208 acre feet of water to the
Central Coast Water Authority and 2,229 acre-feet of water to the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency in
accordance with the Pilot Exchange Agreements. In 2014, the District also returned 1,000 acre feet of water to
a local farming entity to which the District had an obligation arising from the purchase of the Stockdale West
property. In 2015, the District returned 4,341 acre feet of water to BVWSD and 413 acre feet of water to the
Central Coast Water Authority. To date, all of the water stored for others per these agreements has been
returned to the respective banking partners.

The cost of the Strand Ranch water banking facilities (including the land acquisition costs) was
approximately $21,820,000. Such facilities are now fully operational. The cost of expansion of the water
banking facilities onto the Stockdale West property (including the costs of acquisition of these lands) is
expected to be approximately $18,400,000, of which the District has spent approximately $9,700,000 as of
December 2015.

The District is currently pursuing additional opportunities for water banking and contractual rights to
other surface waters for diversion into the Water Bank for later use by the District. These other sources
include long-term programs for the exchange of State Water Project water from MWD, the Central Coast
Water Authority, the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency, Dudley Ridge and CLWA.

A summary of water held in storage pursuant to the District’s water banking program as of December
31, 2015 (after water losses) is set forth below.

A-26
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-80



TABLE 10
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Summary of Water Banking Programs
As of December 31, 2015 (Acre Feet)

Total Water in District Share of Total

Facility Total Capacity Storage Water in Storage
Strand Ranch Integrated Banking® 50,000 17,674 17,025
Stockdale West® 26,000 1,401 1,401
Kern Water Bank 9,495 4,188 4,188
Total 85,495 23,263 22,614

@ The District’s ability to extract water from Strand Ranch and the Stockdale West Property is subject to certain contractual
and operational constraints as described above. Extractions from Strand Ranch are currently limited to approximately
17,500 acre feet per year.

Source: The District.

Other Water Supply Reliability Programs. In January 2016, the Board of Directors approved the
purchase of approximately 616 acres of agricultural land (the “Eaton Property”) in Riverside County,
California. The Eaton Property is within the water service area of Palo Verde Irrigation District, which has
first priority rights on the Colorado River. Approximately 248 acres of the land is subject to an MWD
fallowing program under which MWD makes payments to landowners in exchange for letting land lie fallow.
Water that is conserved through fallowing is available for use within MWD’s service area (which includes the
District’s service area). In the near term, the District expects to lease the Eaton Property to tenant farmers for
agricultural uses. The District plans to work with MWD and MWDOC in the future to develop mutually
beneficial arrangements through which the District would receive increased water supply reliability during
periods of drought or supply interruptions in consideration for the water conserved on the Eaton Property.
[UPDATE] [The purchase is currently in escrow and expected to close in the first or second quarter of 2016.]
There can be no assurance that the District will ultimately purchase the land. Additionally, due to the
preliminary nature of its discussions with MWD and MWDOC, the District can make no assurance as to the
amount of water, if any, it would receive from MWD through conservation of water on the Eaton Property.
However, if the purchase is completed, the District expects to pay approximately $10,240,000 from District
capital reserves for the Eaton Property.

Recycled Water

During Fiscal Year 2015, the District produced 22,866 acre feet of recycled water and supplied an
additional 9,275 acre feet of non-potable water to District customers via the recycled water system. The
District processes and treats secondary effluent from its customers to produce recycled water for sale to
customers for non-potable utilization. Recycled water is currently sold to approximately 5,400 customers
within the District. As of December 31, 2015, the District had approximately 509 miles of recycled water
mains and recycled water storage capacity of approximately 5,400 acre feet. Revenues from the sale of
recycled water are accounted for as part of the District’s sewer system.

A-27
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-81



Historic and Projected Water Supply

Set forth below is a summary of the District’s sources of total water supply in acre feet per year for the

last five Fiscal Years.

TABLE 11
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Water Supply In Acre Feet Per Year

Fiscal Year Local Water® Imported Water Recycled Water Total
2011 39,563 30,549@® 20,284 90,396
2012 39,409 26,155¢) 20,602 86,166
20134 49,967 20,151 22,983 93,101
2014®) 55,015 22,508 21,038 98,561
2015 54,057 18,628 22,866 95,551

(6]

@

®

@

®

Includes groundwater, native water in Irvine Lake and non-potable Irvine Desalter Project water used in the District’s
recycled water system. See the caption “—Groundwater—Irvine Desalter Project.” Excludes water pumped from the SGU,
which is disposed of via an existing ocean outfall following treatment.

Imported water supply for Fiscal Year 2011 included approximately 5,900 acre feet of stored imported water spilled from
Irvine Lake during a December 2010 rain event. Such water was replaced with new native water (storm flows) stored at
Irvine Lake.

Includes 5,512 acre feet of water and 8,083 acre feet of water purchased at OCWD’s request in Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012,
respectively, in lieu of pumping groundwater. In-lieu water was not purchased in Fiscal Years 2013, 2014 or 2015.

Increase from Fiscal Year 2012 reflects growth and the economic recovery within the District’s service area as well as
increased irrigation requirements. OCWND did not request that the District purchase in-lieu water in Fiscal Year 2013.
Reflects completion of Wells 21 and 22. See the caption “—Groundwater—General.” Also reflects expansion of
Michelson Water Reclamation Plant (“MWRP”), increasing total recycled water production capacity from 18 million
gallons per day (“mgd”) to 28 mgd in Fiscal Year 2014. See the caption “THE SEWER SYSTEM—General.”

Source: The District.

Set forth below is a summary of the District’s projection of total water sources for the current and next

four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 12
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Water Supply In Acre Feet Per Year

Percentage
Fiscal Year Local Water® Imported Water ~ Recycled Water?® Total Change
2016 54,598 19,932 21,354 95,883 0.35%
2017 55,144 20,131 21,674 96,949 111
2018 55,695 20,333 21,999 98,027 111
2019 56,252 20,536 22,329 99,117 111
2020 56,814 20,741 22,664 100,220 1.11

(6]

@

Includes groundwater, native water in Irvine Lake and non-potable Irvine Desalter Project water used in the District’s
recycled water system. See the caption “—Groundwater—Irvine Desalter Project.” Excludes water pumped from the SGU,
which is disposed of via an existing ocean outfall following treatment. Reflects completion of Wells 21 and 22. See the
caption “—Groundwater—General.”

Recycled water production projected to increase approximately 1.5% per annum.

Source: The District.

A-28

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

A-82



Set forth below is a comparison of the District’s sources of supply for Fiscal Year 2015 as compared
to other neighboring agencies supplying water for Fiscal Year 2014.

TABLE 13
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Water Supply Comparison by Source

Imported Surface Recycled

Water Groundwater Water Water
Irvine Ranch Water District® 19% 55% 3% 23%
City of Anaheim 46 54 0 0
South Coast Water District® 77 13 0 10
City of Orange 50 45 5 0
Santa Margarita Water District® 83 0 0 17
City of Tustin® 37 63 0 0

@ Approximately 20% of the District’s water demand is from areas outside of OCWD’s jurisdictional boundaries.

@ These agencies are not located within OCWD’s jurisdictional boundaries.

@ The City of Tustin owns several groundwater projects that are exempt from the BEA.

Source: Municipal Water District of Orange County Water System Operations and Financial Information (August 2013); the
District.

THE WATER SYSTEM
General

Through the issuance of general obligation waterworks bonds and other indebtedness, the District has
constructed, purchased or acquired capacity in, or connections to, various transmission, pumping, storage and
distribution facilities to convey water into the District, including several major facilities built in cooperation
with other water districts and cities.

The development of water supplies and the construction and acquisition of facilities are being carried
out under a master plan formulated by the District in 1972 and most recently updated in 2009. Existing uses
and planned development within the District will necessitate a projected combined total annual water supply of
approximately 124,800 acre feet by 2035.

The District anticipates meeting all of its water supply needs using the above-mentioned water
importation and storage facilities, groundwater production facilities and recycled water facilities. The
combination of the District’s facilities and sources of supply is expected to provide the District with a reliable
water supply sufficient to permit the ultimate development as presently planned. Reliability of water supply is
further enhanced by the District’s storage facilities, which currently provide more than a seven-day supply.

At June 30, 2015, the District had approximately 2,131 miles of water mains in its potable and
recycled water systems and storage capacity of approximately 30,200 acre feet, including the District’s share
of Irvine Lake, a 25,000 acre feet untreated water reservoir, and the District’s Sand Canyon, Rattlesnake
Canyon, Syphon and San Joaquin Reservoirs, which are recycled water reservoirs with capacities of 750 acre
feet, 1,100 acre feet, 450 acre feet and 2,900 acre feet respectively. See the caption “WATER SUPPLY.”

In 2013, the District completed a study of the feasibility of increasing storage capacity in Syphon
Reservoir from 450 acre feet up to 5,000 acre feet. Additional storage capacity, if constructed, would allow
the District to recycle 100% of the sewage flows tributary to MWRP and reduce the District’s need to
supplement the recycled water system with imported water in dry years. The District is currently evaluating

A-29
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -83



funding alternatives for the Syphon Reservoir expansion. See the caption “FUTURE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS—Water Supply Reliability.”

See the caption “WATER SUPPLY—Water Supply Reliability—Water Banking” for information
with respect to the District’s water banking programs, which constitute additional sources of water that are not
reflected in the discussion of the District’s storage facilities above.

In Fiscal Year 2009, the District commenced the engineering design for the Baker WTP. Construction
began in January 2014 and is anticipated to be completed in July 2016.

When constructed, the Baker WTP is expected to treat to drinking water standards approximately
28 mgd of raw imported water purchased from MWD. During emergencies and planned raw imported water
outages, water from Irvine Lake is expected to be supplied to the Baker WTP for treatment to drinking water
standards. The Baker WTP will utilize microfiltration and ultraviolet disinfection as the primary treatment
processes. Although the plant will be owned and operated by the District, approximately 76% of capacity in
the Baker WTP is expected to be held by other participating water agencies located in southern Orange
County. The facility will provide an operational source of supply to the District and participating agencies
and, in the event of a short-term water shortage emergency, provide regional water reliability to other
neighboring water agencies. The project construction cost is estimated at approximately $107.2 million, which
is to be borne by the District and the other participating water agencies in proportion to their participation in
the project. The District expects to finance its 24% share of the costs from the proceeds of bonds.

See the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Current Investments” for a description
of an investment made by the District relating to the Baker WTP.

Historic Water Connections

The following table shows the number of water connections in the District for the five most recent
Fiscal Years.

TABLE 14
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Water Connections®

Fiscal Year Connections Percentage Change
2011 98,637 1.66%
2012 99,465 0.84
2013 101,020 1.56
2014 102,990 1.95
2015 104,994 1.95

@ Excludes recycled water and non-potable water connections.
Source: The District.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-30
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-84



Projected Water Connections

The following table shows the number of water connections projected by the District for the current
and next four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 15
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Water Connections®

Fiscal Year Connections Percentage Change
2016 107,795 2.67%
2017 110,125 2.16
2018 113,676 3.22
2019 116,904 2.84
2020 120,387 2.98

@ Excludes recycled water and non-potable water connections. Increases in connections reflect District estimates of increased
development activity.
Source: The District.

Connection Fees

The District collects a water connection fee for each new connection to finance District facilities.
Connection fees vary by Improvement District and range from $1,360 to $3,637 for each residential unit and
$5,735 to $30,739 for each acre of commercial or industrial property. The connection fee is designed to
recover the cost of each additional connection and allocate among all Improvement Districts the costs of
master planned facilities such as water sources and production facilities, transmission mains, pumping stations,
reservoirs and appurtenances and capacity necessary for each Improvement District.

Historic Water Deliveries

The following table presents a summary of historic water deliveries by the District in acre feet per
year for the five most recent Fiscal Years. Historic water deliveries vary from historic water supply as a result
of losses in the water system and the timing of billing. Revenues from the sale of recycled water are accounted
for as part of the District’s sewer system.

TABLE 16
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Water Deliveries in Acre Feet Per Year

Potable and Percentage
Fiscal Year Non-Potable Recycled Total Change
2011® 70,112 20,284 90,396 (0.61)%
20120 65,564 20,602 86,166 (4.68)
2013@ 70,118 22,983 93,101 8.05
2014 77,523 21,038 98,561 5.86
2015®) 72,685 22,866 95,551 (3.05)

@ Reduced deliveries resulted from customer conservation in response to drought conditions and economic factors affecting
the District’s service area.

@ Increase in water deliveries reflects new development and the economic recovery within the District’s service area.

@  Reduced deliveries resulted from effects of Statewide drought and State orders with respect thereto. See the caption
“WATER SUPPLY—Drought Proclamation.”

Source: The District.

A-31
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -85



Projected Water Deliveries

The District estimates that water system deliveries for the current and next four Fiscal Years will be as
set forth in the following table. The District currently projects that water deliveries will increase at a slower
pace than the increase in connections, as set forth in the table under the caption “—~Projected Water
Connections,” as a result of increased conservation efforts and a return to long-term historical average
hydrological conditions in the State. The District notes that recycled water use is not subject to the mandatory
conservation orders imposed by the State in connection with the Statewide drought. See the caption “WATER
SUPPLY—Drought Proclamation.” Revenues from the sale of recycled water are accounted for as part of the
District’s sewer system.

TABLE 17
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Water Deliveries in Acre Feet Per Year

Potable and Percentage
Fiscal Year Non-Potable Recycled Total Change
2016 74,530 21,354 95,883 0.35%
2017 75,275 21,674 96,949 1.11
2018 76,028 21,999 98,027 1.11
2019 76,788 22,329 99,117 1.11
2020 77,556 22,664 100,220 1.11

Source: The District.
Historic Water Sales and Service Charge Revenues

The following table shows annual water sales and service charge revenues for the five most recent
Fiscal Years. The following table does not include revenues from the sale of recycled water, which is
accounted for as part of the District’s sewer system.

TABLE 18
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Water Sales and Service Charge Revenues
(Dollars in Thousands)

Sales and Service Percentage
Fiscal Year Charge Revenues® Change
2011 $54,796 6.88%
2012 57,558 5.04
2013 62,565 8.70
2014 66,321 6.00
2015 70,110 571

@ Includes late payment charges and other penalty revenues.
Source: The District.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-32
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -86



Projected Water Sales and Service Charge Revenues

The following table projects annual water sales and service charge revenues for the current and next
four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 19
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Water Sales and Service Charge Revenues
(Dollars in Thousands)

Sales and Service Charge Percentage
Fiscal Year Revenues® Change
2016 $74,317 6.00%
2017 78,776 6.00
2018 81,139 3.00
2019 83,573 3.00
2020 86,080 3.00

(@ Reflects projected increases in water connections and deliveries described under the captions “—Projected Water
Connections” and “—~Projected Water Deliveries,” respectively, as well as projected increases in rates described under the
caption “—Water System Rates and Charges.” Such rate increases are subject to the notice, hearing and protest provisions
of Proposition 218 and there can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will adopt such rate increases as currently
projected. See the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—Proposition
218."

Source: The District.

Largest Water Customers

The following table sets forth the ten largest water customers of the District for Fiscal Year 2015, as
determined by annual payments.

TABLE 20
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Ten Largest Water Customers
Fiscal Year 2015

Fiscal Year 2015  Percentage of Total

Customer Payment Water Sales Revenues

1. The Irvine Company-Irvine Apartment Communities $ 4,683,448 6.68%
2. City of Irvine 1,926,487 2.75
3. University of California, Irvine 1,644,733 2.35
4, Jazz Semiconductor 728,473 1.04
5. B. Braun Medical Inc. 596,032 0.85
6. Woodbridge Village Association 584,581 0.83
7. Irvine Unified School District 565,095 0.81
8. Crystal Cove Community Association 299,655 0.43
9. California Department of Transportation, District 12 296,579 0.42
10.  Los Olivos Apartments 296,165 0.42

TOTAL $11,621,248 16.58%
Source: The District.

A-33

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -87



These ten largest customers accounted for approximately 16.58% of water sales revenues in Fiscal
Year 2015.

Water System Rates and Charges

Water system rates and charges (other than connection fees) are generally uniform throughout the
District. Pumping surcharges apply in higher elevations, and different rates and charges apply in certain areas
added to the District by consolidation and annexation. The average monthly service charge for residential
water meters is $10.30. The monthly service charges for commercial and industrial water meters range from
$10.30 to $2,935.50 based on meter size. Quantity charges are set according to a water conservation oriented
allocation-based ascending block rate structure with rates ranging from $1.11 to $14.53 per 100 cubic feet
(“ccf”). See the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—
Proposition 218—Article XI1ID” for a discussion of a 2015 California Court of Appeal decision with respect
to allocation-based rates similar to those of the District. Recycled water rates for irrigation are set at 90% of
the potable rate. Set forth below is a comparison of the District’s water bill for a typical residential customer
as compared to neighboring communities. Since Fiscal Year 2006, the District has increased its water system
rates and charges by an average of approximately 6.5% each year for an average residential customer using
approximately 11 ccf of water per month.

The projected water system revenues set forth under the captions “—~Projected Water Sales and
Service Charge Revenues” and “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
Projected Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage” reflect the implementation of Level Two of the
District’s WSCP (as discussed under the caption “WATER SUPPLY—Drought Proclamation”), as well as
projected water rate increases of between 2% and 6% in Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020, including a projected
rate increase of 3% beginning July 1, 2016 that is expected to be brought before the Board of Directors in
spring 2016. Such water rate increases are subject to the notice, hearing and protest provisions of Proposition
218 described under the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND
CHARGES—Proposition 218.” There can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will adopt such rate
increases as currently projected.

TABLE 21
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Typical Residential Customer Water Bills®

Water Service Provider Charge®
City of Newport Beach $72.71
City of Costa Mesa 67.33
City of Santa Ana 55.25
City of Huntington Beach 43.76
City of Tustin 43.76
City of Anaheim 44.62
City of Orange 40.71
District 30.94

(@ Based on the average residential usage for each water service provider in ccf. For the District, the first 5 ccf is billed at the
low volume rate of $1.11 and next 6 ccf is billed at $1.62.

@ Asof July 1, 2015. Excludes ad valorem assessments levied by the District.

Source: The District.

A-34
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -88



THE SEWER SYSTEM
General

The District, following voter approval in 1965, is authorized by law to acquire, construct, operate and
furnish facilities and services for the collection, treatment, reclamation and disposal of wastewater, and the
District may contract with others for such purposes. The District has an extensive network of gravity sewers,
force mains, wastewater lift stations and siphons that convey wastewater to two District-owned treatment
plants. At June 30, 2015, the District had approximately 1,019 miles of sewer mains and treatment plant
capacity of approximately 35.5 mgd at the MWRP and the Los Alisos Water Reclamation Plant (“LAWRP”).
More than 10.4 billion gallons of sewage were treated by the District during Fiscal Year 2015.

During Fiscal Year 1986, the District cooperated with Orange County Sanitation District (“OCSD”) to
form Sanitation District 14 (functionally replaced by “Revenue Area 14” of OCSD, upon the consolidation of
the several sanitation districts comprising OCSD’s predecessor, the County Sanitation Districts of Orange
County, in 1998), which overlays a substantial portion of the District’s territory. Under an agreement entered
into between the District and OCSD in connection with such formation, the District paid approximately $34
million for an approximately 6% interest in OCSD’s sewage processing facilities (such percentage of interest
will vary over time pursuant to a formula set forth in the agreement between OCSD and the District). This
agreement currently provides treatment capacity (in addition to the capacity at District-owned facilities (the
MWRP and the LAWRP)) of up to 15 mgd. The agreement also provides for the purchase by the District of
certain additional capacity in OCSD sewage processing facilities determined from annual flows. In Fiscal
Years 2014 and 2015, the District utilized approximately 2.1 billion gallons and 1.9 billion gallons,
respectively, of capacity pursuant to its agreement with OCSD. Currently, approximately 81% of the District’s
wastewater is treated by the MWRP and LAWRP operated by the District, and approximately 19% is treated
by OCSD. A small portion of the wastewater (less than 1%) from the District’s service area that is adjacent to
the Santa Margarita Water District is treated by the Santa Margarita Water District pursuant to contract.

Currently, approximately 71% of all wastewater collected by the District is treated by the District and
recycled or stored in seasonal storage reservoirs for later treatment and recycling. The remainder of the
wastewater collected by the District is diverted to OCSD for treatment and ultimate disposal into the Pacific
Ocean through OCSD’s two ocean outfall pipelines or recharge into the Orange County groundwater basin
through OCWD’s Groundwater Replenishment System.

Ultimately, the District plans to expand capacity for its treatment facilities to approximately 40.5 mgd
in order to: (i) increase recycled water production and utilization; (ii) decrease exposure to external treatment
costs and operational constraints; and (iii) decrease dependencies on imported water supplies. See the caption
“FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS.”

The District has evaluated alternative approaches to handling its wastewater solids. In May 2013, the
District began construction of a facility for handling MWRP solids, which are currently conveyed to OCSD, as
well as solids from the District’s LAWRP and other potential participating agencies. New capital facilities
constructed at the MWRP to dewater and dispose of solids from this facility are estimated to cost $210 million.
Construction of the solids handling facility at the MWRP is anticipated to be completed in Fiscal Year 2018.

OCSD faces various challenges in the continued treatment of sewage. A description of these
challenges, as well as a variety of other operating information with respect to OCSD, is included in certain
disclosure documents prepared by OCSD. OCSD periodically prepares official statements and other disclosure
documents in connection with its bonds and other obligations. OCSD has also entered into certain continuing
disclosure agreements pursuant to which OCSD is contractually obligated for the benefit of owners of certain
of its outstanding obligations to file certain annual reports, including audited financial statements and notice of
certain events, pursuant to Rule 15c2-12. Such official statements, other disclosure documents, annual reports
and notices (collectively, the “OCSD Information”) are filed with EMMA at http://emma.msrb.org. The

A-35
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -89



OCSD Information is not incorporated herein by reference thereto, and the District makes no representation as
to the accuracy or completeness of such information. OCSD HAS NOT ENTERED INTO ANY
CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENT WITH THE DISTRICT, THE TRUSTEE OR THE OWNERS OF THE
SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS TO PROVIDE OCSD INFORMATION TO THE DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS
OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS.

OCSD HAS NOT REVIEWED THIS REMARKETING STATEMENT AND HAS NOT MADE
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED HEREIN,
INCLUDING INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO OCSD. OCSD IS NOT CONTRACTUALLY
OBLIGATED, AND HAS NOT UNDERTAKEN, TO UPDATE SUCH INFORMATION FOR THE
BENEFIT OF THE DISTRICT OR THE OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2011A-1 BONDS UNDER
RULE 15c¢2-12.

Historic Sewer System and Recycled Water Connections

The following table shows the number of sewer and recycled water connections in the District for the
five most recent Fiscal Years.

TABLE 22
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Sewer and Recycled Water Connections

Percentage
Fiscal Year Connections Change
2011 93,992 1.72%
2012 94,983 1.05
2013 96,643 1.75
2014 97,482 0.87
2015 99,397 1.96

Source: The District.
Projected Sewer and Recycled Water Connections

The following table shows the projected number of sewer and recycled water connections for the
current and next four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 23
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Sewer and Recycled Water Connections

Percentage
Fiscal Year Connections Change
2016 102,198 2.82%
2017 104,528 2.28
2018 108,079 3.40
2019 111,307 2.99
2020 114,790 3.13

@ Increases in connections beginning in Fiscal Year 2016 reflect District estimates of increased development activity.
Source: The District.

A-36
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-90



Connection Fees

The District collects a sewer connection fee for each new connection to finance District sewer
facilities. Connection fees vary by Improvement District and range from $2,215 to $25,427 for each
residential unit and $5,765 to $63,147 for each acre of commercial or industrial property. The connection fee
is designed to recover the cost of each additional connection and allocate among all Improvement Districts the
costs of master planned facilities such as transmission mains, pumping stations, treatment facilities and
appurtenances and capacity necessary to serve each Improvement District.

Historic Sewer Daily Average Flow

The following table shows the daily average sewer flow in millions of gallons per day for the five
most recent Fiscal Years.

TABLE 24
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Sewer Daily Average Flow

Daily Average Percentage
Fiscal Year Flow (mgd)® Change
2011 27.8 0.36%
2012 28.3 1.80
2013 28.1 (0.71)@
2014 29.5 4,980
2015 28.6 (3.05)®@

@ Includes District flow treated by OCSD.

@ Reduction in flows reflects reduced water use, including as a result of conservation efforts.

@ Increase in flows reflects changes to flows in the Irvine Business Complex in accordance with a flow study and an
agreement with OCSD.

Source: The District.

Projected Sewer Daily Average Flow

The following table shows the projected daily average sewer flow in millions of gallons per day for
the current and next four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 25
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Sewer Daily Average Flow

Daily Average Flow Percentage

Fiscal Year (mgd)® Change
2016 29.2 2.10%
2017 29.8 2.05
2018 30.4 2.01
2019 31.0 1.97
2020 31.6 1.94

@ Includes flow treated by OCSD.
Source: The District.

A-37
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-91



Historic Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge Revenues

The following table shows the recycled water sales and sewer service charge revenues for the five
most recent Fiscal Years. Increases reflect increases in connections as well as rate increases adopted by the
Board of Directors.

TABLE 26
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge Revenues
(Dollars in Thousands)

Recycled Water Sales
and Sewer Service

Fiscal Year Charge Revenues Percentage Change
2011 $45,375 0.07%
2012 49,234 8.50
2013 53,085 7.82
2014 58,109 9.46
2015 62,808 8.09

Source: The District.
Projected Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge Revenues

The following table shows the projected recycled water sales and sewer service charge revenues for
the current and next four Fiscal Years.

TABLE 27
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge Revenues
(Dollars in Thousands)

Recycled Water Sales

and Sewer Service Percentage
Fiscal Year Charge Revenues® Change
2016 $66,576 6.00%
2017 70,571 6.00
2018 72,688 3.00
2019 74,869 3.00
2020 77,115 3.00

@ Reflects increases in projected sewer connections and daily average sewer flow described under the captions “—Projected
Sewer and Recycled Water Connections” and “—~Projected Sewer Daily Average Flow,” respectively, as well as projected
increases in recycled water and sewer rates described under the captions “THE WATER SYSTEM—Water System Rates
and Charges” and “THE SEWER SYSTEM—Sewer System Rates and Charges.” Such rate increases are subject to the
notice, hearing and protest provisions of Proposition 218 and there can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will
adopt such rate increases as currently projected. See the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON
APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—Proposition 218.”

Source: The District.

A-38
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-92



Largest Sewer Service Customers

The following table sets forth the ten largest sewer service customers of the District for Fiscal Year
2015, as determined by annual payments.

TABLE 28
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Ten Largest Sewer Service Customers
Fiscal Year 2015

Fiscal Year 2015 Percentage of Total

Customer Payment Sewer Service Revenues

1. The Irvine Company-Irvine Apartment Communities $ 3,210,461 5.11%
2. City of Irvine 2,352,525 3.75
3. University of California, Irvine 1,845,757 2.94
4. Westpark Maintenance District 1,150,337 1.83
5. California Department of Transportation, District 12 864,338 1.38
6. B. Braun Medical Inc. 629,363 1.00
7. Irvine Unified School District 556,324 0.89
8. Heritage Fields 376,753 0.60
9. Royal Carpet Mills 356,983 0.57
10.  Allergan Sales, LLC 292,679 _0.47

TOTAL $11,635,520 18.54%

Source: The District.

These ten largest customers accounted for approximately 18.54% of total sewer service revenues in
Fiscal Year 2015.

Sewer System Rates and Charges

Residential users pay a fixed monthly service charge which ranges from $18.55 to $24.05.
Commercial and industrial users pay $24.05 for the first ten ccf of water use and from $2.56 to $2.685 per ccf
thereafter. Set forth below is a comparison of the District’s sewer bills for a typical residential customer as
compared to other neighboring communities. Since Fiscal Year 2006, the District has increased its fixed
monthly service charge by an average of approximately 10.0% each year.

The projected sewer system and recycled water sales revenues set forth under the captions “
Projected Recycled Water Sales and Sewer Service Charge Revenues” and “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Projected Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage” reflect projected
sewer rate increases of between 3.5% to 6% in Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020 and projected recycled water
rate increases of between 2% and 5% in Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020, including projected increases in
sewer rates and recycled water rates effective July 1, 2016 that are expected to be brought before the Board of
Directors in spring 2016. Such rate increases are subject to the notice, hearing and protest provisions of
Proposition 218 described under the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS
AND CHARGES—Proposition 218.” There can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will adopt such
rate increases as currently projected.

A-39
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-93



TABLE 29
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Typical Residential Customer Sewer Bill

Sewer Service Provider Charge®
City of Tustin $44.29
City of Newport Beach 37.49
City of Huntington Beach 37.38
City of Santa Ana 32.92
City of Orange 26.69
City of Costa Mesa 26.69
City of Anaheim 26.69
District 18.55 - 24.05

@ Asof July 1, 2015. Excludes ad valorem assessments levied by District.
Source: The District.

FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

The District anticipates spending approximately $375,648,394 on future water, recycled water and
sewer system improvements during the current and the next four Fiscal Years. The District anticipates
financing such improvements through a combination of bonds, District revenues and fund balances in Fiscal
Years 2016 through 2020. The District anticipates that approximately $300,000,000 of such improvements
will be financed from proceeds of bonds, some of which have already been issued, and that approximately
$75,648,394 of such improvements will be financed from funds on hand and District revenues. The following
table sets forth the District’s projected capital improvement projects for the current and next four Fiscal Years:

TABLE 30
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Projected Water, Recycled Water and Sewer Systems Capital Improvements
For Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020

Project 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
Solids Handling $ 46,726,598 $ 49,117,009 $ 5468996 $ 845059 $ 4,071,304 $106,228,966
OCSD / CORF 10,634,285 15,103,865 9,438,540 5,411,413 4,402,417 44,990,520
Water Supply Reliability 17,805,003 17,090,874 12,104,644 8,639,851 17,730,294 73,370,666
Development-Related Expansion 8,227,181 16,896,100 28,470,494 20,866,107 7,685,683 82,145,565
Replacement and Refurbishment 13,243,588 21,178,972 13,378,435 2,303,248 247,733 50,351,976
Operational Improvements 6,860,863 8,906,210 1,472,900 244,795 1,075,933 18,560,701
Total $103,497,518  $ 128,293,030 $ 70,334,009 $38,310,473  $ 35,213,364 $375,648,394

Solids Handling

The solids handling capital project includes the design and construction of facilities for thickening,
acid-phase anaerobic digestion, dewatering, drying and pelletization, energy generation, and use of pellets as a
fertilizer or e-fuel. It also includes a solids receiving station to allow processing of dewatered sludge from the
LAWRP for drying and pelletization. In addition, facilities for the receipt and transfer of fats, oil and grease to
the digesters is being designed and will be constructed to increase methane and energy production capabilities.
The solids handling capital project is anticipated to be completed in Fiscal Year 2018.

OCSD CORF

OCSD’s Capital Outlay Revolving Fund (“CORF”) funds OCSD projects such as plant upgrades for
secondary treatment and the Groundwater Replenishment System. The District funds its share of the CORF

A-40
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-94



based on the District’s percentage share of OCSD’s total wastewater flow. Wastewater flows from the District
presently comprise approximately 2% — 3% of OCSD flows and are expected to comprise approximately 4% —
5% in future years. See the caption “THE SEWER SYSTEM—General—OCSD” above.

Water Supply Reliability

Water supply reliability projects include the acquisition and construction of water banking facilities in
Kern County and the Baker WTP, expansion of Syphon Reservoir and other projects, including, but not limited
to, booster pump stations and interagency pipeline construction. See the captions “WATER SUPPLY” and
“THE WATER SYSTEM—General.”

Development-Related Expansion

Development-related expansion improvements include construction of new water, recycled water and
sewer improvements to serve new developments.

Replacement and Refurbishment

Replacement and refurbishment improvements consist of repairs and restoration to existing water,
recycled water and sewer system facilities.

Operational Improvements

Operational improvements consist of optimizing District facilities and include improvements to the
District’s water and wastewater Operations Center, adding water quality mixing systems to existing reservoirs,
expanding the reliability of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system, and relocating District
facilities as required by interagency projects.

WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial Statements

A copy of the most recent financial statements of the District audited by Davis Farr LLP, Certified
Public Accountants (the “Auditor”), are included as Appendix B (the “Financial Statements”) and should be
read in their entirety. The Auditor’s letter concludes that the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the District, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Auditor has not reviewed the contents of this Remarketing Statement, and the
District has not sought the Auditor’s consent to the inclusion of the Auditor’s report in the Financial
Statements in this Remarketing Statement.

Reduction in BAB Credits

On March 1, 2013, the federal government announced the implementation of certain automatic budget
cuts known as the sequester, including reductions in Build America Bond (“BAB”) interest subsidy payments
(“BAB Credits”). The originally scheduled BAB Credit was reduced by 8.7% in federal fiscal year 2013
(which ended September 30, 2013) and by 7.2%, 7.3% and 6.8% in federal fiscal years 2014, 2015 and 2016.
Under a federal budget bill enacted in December 2013, the reduction of BAB Credits will continue through
federal fiscal year 2023.

The District’s Series 2010B Bonds are BABs and the historic and projected operating results shown
under the captions “—Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage” and “—~Projected Operating

A-41
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-95



Results and Debt Service Coverage” reflect the announced reduction in BAB Credits. While the District
continues to monitor the effects of the reduction in BAB Credits on District finances, the District does not
currently expect such reduction to have a material adverse effect on the ability of the District to make
payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2010B Bonds or the Series 2011A-1 Bonds from Net
Revenues.

Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage

The following summary of operating results of the District for the last five Fiscal Years is derived
from the Financial Statements and audited financial statements of the District for prior Fiscal Years and
excludes certain non-cash items and includes certain other adjustments. Such summary operating results are
qualified in their entirety by reference to such statements, including the notes thereto.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-42
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -96



TABLE 31

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage
Fiscal Years 2011 through 2015

(in Thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

REVENUES
Water sales and service charges $ 54,796 $ 57,558 $ 62,565 $ 66,321 $ 70,110
Recycled water sales and sewer service charges 45,375 49,234 53,085 58,109 62,808
Connection fees 10,572 9,030 17,314 22,429 29,183
Net real estate income 5,649 6,736 6,566 7,760 8,191
Interest income 2,599 1,738 1,549 1,671 1,515
Net earnings on JPA® 12,44449 11,927 20,294 12,356 -
Available 1% Property Tax Revenues® 22,396 25,858 25,719 26,432 29,770
Other® 7,987 6,141 8,323 10,974 7,899

Total Revenues $ 161,818 $ 168,222 $ 195415 $ 206,052 $ 209,476
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

EXPENSES
Water services $ 42,383 $ 40,593 $ 48,911 $ 57,624 $ 57,978
Sewer services 30,787 26,817 36,6884 37,715 54,575(16)
Administrative and general 21,332 27,18212 22,66744 22,272 15,14507
Customer accounts® 3,737 3,737 3,753 0 0
Other 989 10,713 6,11049 7,163 9,752

Total Operation & Maintenance Expenses $ 99,228 $ 109,042 $ 118,129 $ 124774 $ 137,450
NET REVENUES $ 62,590 $ 59,180 $ 77,286 $ 81,278 $ 72,026
ASSESSMENT PROCEEDS®) $ 0 $ 5,816 $ 5,877 $ 8,509 $ 4,839
TOTAL NET REVENUES AND

ASSESSMENT PROCEEDS $ 62,590 $ 64,996 $ 83,163 $ 89,787 $ 76,865
PARITY OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE

Series 2011A-1/A-2 Bonds $ 35 $ 2,284 $ 2,306 $ 2360 $ 2,455

Series 2010B Bonds® 4,080 7,533 7,519 7,825 7,829

2010 Installment Sale Agreement(®) 7,680 7,977 8,300 8,665 9,098

1997 State Loan #3 226 226 226 227 227

Prior Reimbursement Agreements 0 0 0 0 0

Total Parity Obligation Debt Service $ 12,021 $ 18,020 $ 18,351 $ 19,077 $ 19,609
PARITY OBLIGATION COVERAGE® 5.2x 3.6x 4.5x 4.7x 3.9x
Revenues Available For Subordinate Debt

Service $ 50,569 $ 46,976 $ 64,812 $ 70,710 $ 57,256
SUBORDINATE OBLIGATION DEBT

SERVICE

Swap Payments® $ 7,734 $ 7,734 $ 7,452 $ 7,555 $ 7,734

State Loans and SCWD Debt® 308 308 308 308 308

Total Subordinate Obligation Debt Service — $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 7,760 $ 7,863 $ 8,042
Sources of Payment for Ad Valorem

Assessment Bonds:

Remaining Revenues $ 42,527 $ 38,934 $ 57,052 $ 62,847 $ 49,214

1% Pledged Property Tax Revenues®? 4,593 3,292 3,546 3,013 3,358

Ad valorem Assessments 11,875 6,060 5,940 4,797 4,463
Total Funds Available for Ad Valorem

Assessment Bonds $ 58,995 $ 48,286 $ 66,538 $ 70,657 $ 57,035
Ad Valorem Assessment Bond Debt Service (16,899) (16,899) (17,129) (10,501) (12,840)
NET REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR

OTHER PURPOSES $ 42,096 $ 31,387 $ 49,409 $ 60,156 $ 44,195

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

(FOOTNOTES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

A-43

A-97



(6]

@

@®)

@

®)

(]

W]

®)

©

(10)

(1)

12

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

@an

Reflects earnings from investment of proceeds of taxable bonds issued by Irvine Ranch Water District Joint Powers Agency in
excess of payments of principal of and interest on such obligations. Such obligations matured in Fiscal Year 2014 and the Irvine
Ranch Water District Joint Powers Agency was thereupon terminated in accordance with its joint powers agreement.

Represents 1% Property Tax Revenues available to pay debt service on Parity Obligations after payment of debt service on bonds of
the District secured by a pledge of the District’s share of the Orange County 1% general ad valorem property tax pursuant to
Resolution 2002-10, adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on April 8, 2002 (the “Secured Bonds”) from 1% Property
Tax Revenues and ad valorem assessments.

Other Revenues includes golf course lease, cell site leases, conservation revenue, penalty revenue, grants and Allen-McColloch
pipeline income.

In Fiscal Year 2014, the District began recording Customer Accounts expenses in the Water Services and Sewer Services line
items.

Debt Service net of BAB Credit on Series 2010B Bonds. Reflects announced reductions in BAB Credits. See the caption “—
Reduction in BAB Credits.”

Entered into in February 2010 in connection with the prepayment of the 2008 Certificates of Participation and the 1986 Certificates
of Participation.

Total Net Revenues and Assessment Proceeds divided by Total Parity Debt Service.

Net swap payments made.

Santiago County Water District was consolidated into the District as of July 1, 2006.

Represents District’s share of 1% Property Tax Revenues which, together with the ad valorem assessments, is sufficient to pay debt
service on the Secured Bonds. Decreases reflect scheduled mandatory sinking fund payments and redemption of approximately
$3.1 million in Secured Bonds.

Refunding of Irvine Ranch Water District Joint Powers Agency bonds described in Footnote 1 in Fiscal Year 2010 resulted in a
savings of approximately $32.0 million, of which a portion was realized in each of Fiscal Years 2011, 2013 and 2014.

Increase from Fiscal Year 2011 reflects expenses related to increased solids handling capacity at OCSD, which is expected to
continue until December 2016, when the District expects to complete construction of its own facility to treat and dispose of solids.
See the caption “THE SEWER SYSTEM—General.”

Increase from Fiscal Year 2011 reflects capital improvement project writeoffs in accordance with GASB Statement 51 (Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets) in the total amount of approximately $10.3 million.

Increase from Fiscal Year 2012 reflects recording of OCSD expenses, which were previously treated as an administrative and
general line item, in the sewer services line item. See the caption “THE SEWER SYSTEM—General.”

Decrease from Fiscal Year 2012 reflects significant reduction in capital improvement project reclassifications and writeoffs. See
Footnote 13.

Increase from Fiscal Year 2014 reflects approximately $10 million in projects that were financed from capital funds but not
capitalized for accounting purposes and approximately $7 million in OCSD-related expenses.

Decrease from Fiscal Year 2014 reflects the effect of the new GASB 68 reporting standards. See the caption “THE IRVINE
RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Pension Benefits.”

Source: The District.

Projected Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage

The District’s estimated projected operating results for the current and next four Fiscal Years are set

forth below, reflecting certain significant assumptions concerning future events and circumstances. The
financial forecast represents the District’s estimate of projected financial results based on the District’s
assumptions, including the assumptions in the footnotes to the chart set forth below. Such assumptions are
material in the development of the District’s financial projections, and variations in the assumptions may
produce substantially different financial results. Actual operating results achieved during the projection period
may vary from those presented in the forecast and such variations may be material.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-44

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

A-98



TABLE 32
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Five-Year Debt Service Coverage Forecast
Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020
(in Thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

REVENUES
Water sales and service charges® $ 74,317 $ 78,776 $ 81,139 $ 83,573 $ 86,080
Recycled water sales and sewer service charges® 66,576 70,571 72,688 74,869 77,115
Connection fees® 22,000 20,000 20,000 19,500 18,500
Net real estate income® 8,609 8,770 8,935 9,103 9,274
Interest income® 1,788 3,782 5,054 7,189 6,333
Available 1% Property Tax Revenues® 31,555 32,885 34,069 35,273 36,505
Other® 5,915 5,974 6,034 6,094 6,155

Total Revenues $ 210,760 $ 220,758 $ 227,919 $ 235,601 $ 239,962
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

EXPENSES
Water services® $ 61,457 $ 65,144 $ 67,098 $ 69,111 $ 71,185
Sewer services® 57,850 61,320 63,160 65,055 67,007
Administrative and general® 16,054 17,017 17,527 18,053 18,595
Other® 5,761 5,876 5,994 6,114 6,236

Total Operation & Maintenance Expenses $ 141121 $ 149,358 $ 153,780 $ 158,333 $ 163,022
NET REVENUES $ 69,639 $ 71,400 $ 74,139 $ 77,268 $ 76,940
ASSESSMENT PROCEEDS®? $ 3,865 $ 3,679 $ 3,895 $ 4,115 $ 4,340
TOTAL NET REVENUES AND

ASSESSMENT PROCEEDS $ 73504 $ 75,079 $ 78,034 $ 81,383 $ 81,280
PARITY OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE®Y

Series 2011A-1/A-2 Bonds®*? $ 3,292 $ 3,748 $ 4,219 $ 4,269 $ 4,152

Series 2010B Bonds®*® 7,808 7,808 7,808 7,808 7,808

2010 Installment Sale Agreement® 9,487 9,812 3,995 4,094 4,190

1997 State Loan #3149 227 227 227 227 227

Prior Reimbursement Agreements 0 0 0 0 0

Total Parity Obligation Debt Service $ 20814 $ 21,596 $ 16,250 $ 16,399 $ 16,377
PARITY OBLIGATION COVERAGE® 3.5x 3.5x 3.8x 5.0x 5.0x
Revenues Available For Subordinate Debt
Service $ 52,690 $ 53,484 $ 61,785 $ 64,985 $ 64,904
SUBORDINATE OBLIGATION DEBT

SERVICE®)

Swap Payments(® $ 7,150 $ 6435 $ 6,110 $ 5,395 $ 2,292

State Loans and SCWD Debt®¥ 308 308 308 308 308

Total Subordinate Obligation Debt Service $ 7,458 $ 6,743 $ 6418 $ 5703 $ 2,600
Sources of Payment for Ad Valorem

Assessment Bonds:

Remaining Revenues $ 45,232 $ 46,741 $ 55,367 $ 59,282 $ 62,303

1% Pledged Property Tax Revenues®” 2,545 2,215 2,131 2,027 1,895

Ad valorem Assessments®) 5,635 6,321 6,605 6,885 7,160
Total Funds Available for Ad Valorem

Assessment Bonds $ 53,412 $ 55,277 $ 64,103 $ 68,193 $ 71,358
Ad Valorem Assessment Bond Debt Servicet® (11,985) (14,854) (16,684) (19,595) (19,570)
NET REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR

OTHER PURPOSES $ 41,427 $ 40,422 $ 47,419 $ 48,599 $ 51,788

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

(FOOTNOTES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

A-45

A-99



@ Projected to increase approximately 6% from Fiscal Year 2015 amount in Fiscal Year 2016, 6% from Fiscal Year 2016 amount in
Fiscal Year 2017 and 3% per annum thereafter. See the caption “THE WATER SYSTEM—Projected Water Sales and Service
Charge Revenues.”

@ Projected to increase approximately 6% from Fiscal Year 2015 amount in Fiscal Year 2016, 6% from Fiscal Year 2016 amount in
Fiscal Year 2017 and 3% per annum thereafter. See the caption “THE SEWER SYSTEM—Projected Recycled Water Sales and
Sewer Service Charge Revenues.”

®  Based on District projections of development.

@) Based on existing and expected leases. See the captions “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Current Investments” and
“THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Projected Net Real Estate Income.”

® Assumes interest rates increasing from 0.75% in Fiscal Year 2015 to 2.00% in Fiscal Year 2020.

®  Represents 1% Property Tax Revenues available to pay Debt Service on Parity Obligations after payment of debt service on
Secured Bonds from 1% Property Tax Revenues and applicable ad valorem assessments. Projected fluctuation in 1% Property Tax
Revenues is a result of uneven debt service on Secured Bonds. See the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—1%
Property Tax Revenues.”

™ Includes, golf course lease, cell site leases, conservation revenue, penalty revenue, grants and Allen-McColloch pipeline income.
Projected to increase 1% per annum from Fiscal Year 2014 amount.

®  Projected to increase approximately 6% from Fiscal Year 2015 amount in Fiscal Year 2016, 6% from Fiscal Year 2016 amount in
Fiscal Year 2017 and 3% per annum thereafter.

) Projected to increase 2% from Fiscal Year 2016 budgeted amount.

(0 Pro rata share of ad valorem assessments based on outstanding par amount of all Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds. Assessment
Proceeds are only available to pay debt service on Series 2010B Bonds, Series 2011A-1 Bonds and Series 2011A-2 Bonds and are
not available to pay other Parity Obligations which are not general obligation bonds secured by ad valorem assessments.

(1 Does not reflect the issuance of additional debt to finance future capital improvements. See the caption “FUTURE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS.”

(2 Pprojected at SIFMA rates increasing from 0.45% in Fiscal Year 2016 to 1.75% in Fiscal Year 2020. Assumes that the purchase
price of Series 2011A-1 Bonds and Series 2011A-2 Bonds is paid from remarketing proceeds.

(3) " Debt Service net of BAB Credit on Series 2010B Bonds. Reflects announced reductions in BAB Credits. See the caption “—
Reduction in BAB Credits.”

(4 Reflects scheduled Debt Service, including scheduled reductions in principal payments on 2010 Installment Sale Agreement
beginning in Fiscal Year 2018.

(5 Total Net Revenues and Assessment Proceeds divided by Total Parity Debt Service.

(8 Net swap payments. Assumes 5-year average of LIBOR rate with respect to swaps of 1.33%, increasing from 0.45% in Fiscal Year
2016 to 2.15% in Fiscal Year 2020. See the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—Outstanding Indebtedness—
Subordinate Debt—Interest Rate Swap Transactions.”

(7 Represents District’s share of 1% Property Tax Revenues which, together with the applicable ad valorem assessments, is sufficient
to pay debt service on the Secured Bonds.

(8 Pro rata share of ad valorem assessments based on outstanding par amount of all ad valorem assessment bonds and Series 2010B
Bonds, Series 2011A-1 Bonds and Series 2011A-2 Bonds.

(19 Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds debt projection assumes annual sinking fund payments, SIFMA rates ranging from 0.45% in Fiscal
Year 2016 to 1.75% in Fiscal Year 2020 and letter of credit fees equal to 0.36% of principal. Does not include Series 2010B
Bonds, Series 2011A-1 Bonds or Series 2011A-2 Bonds, which are Parity Obligations. Assumes $225 million of new variable rate
ad valorem assessment bonds issued in Fiscal Years 2017 and 2019.

Source: The District.

THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
General

The District contains seven water Improvement Districts and ten sewer Improvement Districts
covering specific areas within the District’s boundaries, some of them overlapping and each of which is
governed by the Act. The District formed the Improvement Districts in order to allocate funding responsibility
for capital facilities to the areas that will benefit from such capital facilities and to separate areas on the basis
of projected timing of development so that capital facilities construction can be matched to the development
approval decisions of the respective local agency that makes them. Some of the Improvement Districts share
in the funding of the District’s regional facilities which the Improvement Districts will use in common, such as
major water importation facilities or sewer treatment plants.

Each Improvement District has a respective plan of works and a certain amount of authorized general
obligation bonded indebtedness. See Table 3 under the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT—Outstanding Indebtedness—Improvement District Indebtedness.” The Ad Valorem Assessment
Bonds issued pursuant to such authorization are sold in each instance by the District on the respective

A-46
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -100



Improvement District’s behalf. The obligation to repay bonds issued on behalf of an Improvement District is
secured in each instance by the power of the District to levy and collect within such Improvement District
ad valorem assessments without limitation as to rate or amount on land only (enforceable by customary rights
to foreclose and sell property for delinquent assessments) or, in lieu of assessments, in the District’s discretion,
charges for water or sewer service, as applicable, all within the subject Improvement District. These powers
and functions are exercised for each Improvement District by the Board of Directors of the District. Although
the respective funding obligations of each Improvement District are separate and independent, the
Improvement Districts are not operated as separate or independent governmental entities, nor do they have
governing boards or any staff. The Improvement Districts are geographical subdivisions of the District
through which the District funds capital improvements.

As a result of the District’s discretionary election to use other sources of payment for debt service on
ad valorem assessment bonds, the annual tax rates set by the District vary from year to year and generally do
not result in revenues that correspond with debt service requirements on the Ad Valorem Assessment Bonds.
The annual tax rates set by the District may vary from year to year for other reasons as well. The District has
covenanted under the Indenture that, to the extent necessary to pay debt service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds,
it will impose and collect Bond Assessments and Charges. See the caption “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES
2011A-1 BONDS—General—Covenant to Collect Bond Assessments and Charges” in the forepart of this
Remarketing Statement.

The California Water Code allows the Board of Directors, in a noticed hearing process, to reorganize
its improvement district boundaries and to consolidate coterminous improvement districts. As development
progresses to completion in improvement districts and the need for having separate improvement districts to
match capital facilities construction timing for different geographic areas diminishes, consolidation of various
improvement districts can produce efficiencies for the District. Under the California Water Code provisions,
certain improvement districts of the District are the consolidated successors to previously separate water
improvement districts or previously separate sewer improvement districts, respectively. In 2013, following
studies carried out by the District to identify further opportunities to implement such consolidations and
reorganizations of its improvement districts, the District implemented improvement district consolidation that
reduced the number of its improvement districts from 33 to 17. The statutory provisions for the consolidation
of improvement districts specify that a consolidated improvement district may levy and collect the assessments
and charges necessary to satisfy the obligations of its predecessor improvement districts, and that the
authorized and unissued bonds of the predecessor improvement districts may be issued and sold as the bonds
of the consolidated improvement district. The District believes that its actions to reorganize and/or consolidate
improvement districts will not impair the District’s obligation to pay debt service on the outstanding bonds of
such improvement districts or the security therefor. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption
“INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225" for a discussion of the
consolidation of Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250 into Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225,
respectively.

The following is a general description of each of the Improvement Districts as to which the Series
2011A-1 Bonds constitute consolidated, several general obligations:

Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225

General. At the time of their initial issuance on April 15, 2011, the Series 2011A-1 Bonds constituted
the consolidated, several general obligations of Improvement District Nos. 105, 113, 213 and 250.
Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 are the legal successors to Improvement District Nos. 105 and 250,
respectively.  See the Remarketing Statement under the caption “INTRODUCTION—Improvement
Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 for a discussion of the consolidation of Improvement
District Nos. 105 and 250 into Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225, respectively.

A-47
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A-101



Improvement District No. 125 (water) covers approximately 35,438 acres of the District, including
several contiguous and non-contiguous areas in the central and coastal parts of the District. Improvement
District No. 225 (sewer) covers approximately 32,862 acres of the District, including several contiguous and
non-contiguous areas in the central part of the District. Currently, the majority of the land within Improvement
District Nos. 125 and 225 consists of developed residential and commercial properties. The District expects
certain areas within Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 to be subject to infill development and
redevelopment in the future. The District expects such additional development in Improvement District
Nos. 125 and 225 to continue through at least 2020. The Fiscal Year 2016 assessed value of the land in
Improvement District No. 125 is $32,752,414,757, while the Fiscal Year 2014 assessed value of the land in
Improvement District No. 105 before its consolidation into Improvement District No. 125 was $7,099,866,552.
The Fiscal Year 2016 assessed value of the land in Improvement District No. 225 is $27,557,606,802, while
the Fiscal Year 2014 assessed value of the land in Improvement District No. 250 before its consolidation into
Improvement District No. 225 was $6,776,400,622.

Set forth below is information with respect to Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 for Fiscal Years
2014 through 2016 and their respective predecessor Improvement Districts for prior Fiscal Years.

The ad valorem assessments levied by the District in Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 to pay
such Improvement Districts’ respective Included Amounts of debt service on the Series 2011A-1 Bonds will
be levied on land only. See Table 3 under the caption “THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT—
Outstanding Indebtedness—Improvement District Indebtedness” for a description of the authorized, issued,
authorized and unissued, and the amount of outstanding Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225 Ad Valorem
Assessment Bonds.

The following table presents the assessed valuations of land in Improvement District No. 105 for the
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013 and the assessed valuations of land in Improvement District No.
125 for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2015 and the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016. Assessed
valuations of land in Improvement District No. 125 are not available for Fiscal Years prior to Fiscal Year 2014
because Improvement District No. 125 did not exist prior to November 11, 2013.

TABLE 33
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 105/125
Assessed Valuations (Land Only)

Fiscal Year Local Secured Unsecured® Total
2012@ $ 6,309,579,342 $ 6,491,171 $ 6,316,070,513
2013@ 6,602,927,949 5,728,927 6,608,656,876
2014 27,277,013,090 404,065* 27,277,417,155
2015® 29,578,234,550 404,065 29,578,638,615
2016©) 32,702,471,690 49,943,067 32,752,414,757

@ Assessed value of unsecured land only, reflecting possessory interests in tax exempt utility property and gas and oil leases.

@  Reflects assessed valuations for Improvement District No. 105. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption
“INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225" for a discussion of the
consolidation of Improvement District No. 105 into Improvement District No. 125.

@  Reflects assessed valuations for Improvement District No. 125. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption
“INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225” for a discussion of the
consolidation of Improvement District No. 105 into Improvement District No. 125.

@ Certain secured values that were omitted from the secured tax roll and allocated to the unsecured tax roll by the County
Assessor in Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 have been omitted from the table.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

A-48
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -102



The following table presents the assessed valuations of land in Improvement District No. 250 for the

Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013 and the assessed valuations of land in Improvement District No.
225 for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2015 and the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016. Assessed
valuations of land in Improvement District No. 225 are not available for Fiscal Years prior to Fiscal Year 2014
because Improvement District No. 225 did not exist prior to November 11, 2013.

TABLE 34
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 250/225
Assessed Valuations (Land Only)

Fiscal Year Local Secured Unsecured® Total
2012@ $ 5,997,217,214 $ 6,210,415 $ 6,003,427,629
2013@ 6,288,670,201 5,529,610 6,294,199,811
2014®) 22,829,136,845 404,065 22,829,540,910
2015® 24,757,084,884 404,065 24,757,488,949
2016®) 27,510,931,539 46,675,263 27,557,606,802

(6]
@

®

@

Assessed value of unsecured land only, reflecting possessory interests in tax exempt utility property and gas and oil leases.
Reflects assessed valuations for Improvement District No. 250. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption
“INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225” for a discussion of the
consolidation of Improvement District No. 250 into Improvement District No. 225.

Reflects assessed valuations for Improvement District No. 225. See the Remarketing Statement under the caption
“INTRODUCTION—Improvement Districts—Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225" for a discussion of the
consolidation of Improvement District No. 250 into Improvement District No. 225.

Certain secured values that were omitted from the secured tax roll and allocated to the unsecured tax roll by the County
Assessor in Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 have been omitted from the table.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-49

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017

A -103



The following table sets forth information with respect to land only local secured assessed valuation in
Improvement District No. 125 (excluding tax exempt utility property and gas and oil leases) by land use for the
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016:

TABLE 35
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 125
Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use

Fiscal Year 2016 No. of
Assessed Valuation® % of Total Parcels % of Total
Non-Residential:
Rural/Undeveloped $ 173,490,512 0.53% 187 0.18%
Commercial/Office 3,008,781,732 9.20 1,437 1.36
Industrial 1,605,919,061 4.91 1,129 1.07
Government/Social/Institutional 7,742,093 0.02 297 0.28
Miscellaneous 15,562,383 _0.05 10 0.01
Subtotal Non-Residential $ 4,811,495,781 14.71% 3,060 2.89%
Residential:
Single Family Residence $18,994,890,422 58.08% 35,870 33.88%
Condominium 8,294,685,868 25.36 28,869 27.27
2+ Residential Units/Apartments 521,541,832 1.59 225 0.21
Timeshare Interests 79,857,787 _0.24 37,847 35.75
Subtotal Residential $27,890,975,909 85.29% 102,811 97.11%
Total $32,702,471,690 100.00% 105,871 100.00%

@ Land Only Local Secured Assessed Valuation; excludes assessed value of unsecured land (possessory interests in tax
exempt utility property and gas and oil leases).
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017



The following table sets forth information with respect to land only local secured assessed valuation in
Improvement District No. 225 (excluding tax exempt utility property and gas and oil leases) by land use for the
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016:

TABLE 36
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 225
Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use

Fiscal Year 2016 No. of
Assessed Valuation® % of Total Parcels % of Total
Non-Residential:
Rural/Undeveloped $ 152,285,830 0.55% 165 0.25%
Commercial/Office 2,938,679,309 10.68 1,389 2.08
Industrial 1,593,696,108 5.79 1,106 1.65
Government/Social/Institutional 7,397,890 0.03 284 0.42
Miscellaneous 15,319,968 _0.06 10 0.01
Subtotal Non-Residential $ 4,707,379,105 17.11% 2,954 4.41%
Residential:
Single Family Residence $ 14,390,372,044 52.31% 35,125 52.48%
Condominium 7,855,847,728 28.56 28,626 42,77
2+ Residential Units/Apartments 557,332,662 _2.03 229 ~0.34
Subtotal Residential $ 22,803,552,434 82.89% 63,980 95.59%
Total $ 27,510,931,539 100.00% 66,934 100.00%

@ Land Only Local Secured Assessed Valuation; excludes assessed value of unsecured land (possessory interests in tax
exempt utility property and gas and oil leases).
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-51
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -105



Principal Taxpayers. The following table lists the major taxpayers in Improvement District No. 125
based on land only local secured assessed valuations for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016:

TABLE 37
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 125
Largest Local Secured Taxpayers

Fiscal Year 2016 % of
Property Owner Primary Land Use Assessed Valuation Total®
1. The Irvine Company Commercial $ 966,865,770 2.96%
2. Irvine Apartment Communities LP Apartments 121,562,365 0.37
3. Heritage Fields El Toro LLC Commercial 105,243,885 0.32
4. Olen Property Corp. Industrial 66,289,205 0.20
5. ABS CA-ODCI LLC Commercial 57,398,636 0.18
6. PPC Irvine Center Investment LLC Commercial 33,579,157 0.10
7. Kia Motors America Inc. Commercial 33,514,293 0.10
8. Avalon Baker Ranch LP Undeveloped 32,589,871 0.10
9. Oakley Inc. Industrial 31,866,025 0.10
10. 52 Discovery LLC Commercial 30,599,400 0.09
TOTAL $ 1,479,508,607 4.52%

@ Fiscal Year 2016 Local Secured Assessed Valuation (Land Only): $32,702,471,690.
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

The following table lists the major taxpayers in Improvement District No. 225 based on land only
local secured assessed valuations for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016:

TABLE 38
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 225
Largest Local Secured Taxpayers

Fiscal Year 2016 % of
Property Owner Primary Land Use Assessed Valuation Total®
1. The Irvine Company Commercial $ 918,972,451 3.34%
2. Irvine Apartment Communities LP Apartments 129,502,530 0.47
3. Heritage Fields El Toro LLC Commercial 105,243,885 0.38
4. Olen Property Corp. Industrial 66,289,205 0.24
5. ABS CA-ODCI LLC Commercial 52,579,741 0.19
6. PPC Irvine Center Investment LLC Commercial 33,579,157 0.12
7. Kia Motors America Inc. Commercial 33,514,293 0.12
8. Avalon Baker Ranch LP Undeveloped 32,589,871 0.12
9. Oakley Inc. Industrial 31,866,025 0.12
10. 52 Discovery LLC Commercial 30,599,400 0.01
TOTAL $ 1,434,736,558 5.11%

@ Fiscal Year 2016 Local Secured Assessed Valuation (Land Only): $27,510,931,539.
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Statement of Direct and Overlapping Debt. Set forth in the table below is a direct and overlapping
debt report (the “Debt Reports—I1.D. 125/225”) for Improvement District Nos. 125 and 225, respectively,
prepared by California Municipal Statistics, Inc. and effective December 31, 2015. The Debt Reports—I.D.

A-52
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A - 106



125/225 were prepared by California Municipal Statistics, Inc., and the District expresses no opinion on the
completeness or accuracy of such reports and makes no representation in connection therewith.

California Municipal Statistics, Inc. reports that the Debt Reports—I.D. 125/225 generally include
long-term obligations sold in the public credit markets by public agencies whose boundaries overlap the
boundaries of Improvement District No. 125 and No. 225 in whole or in part. Such long-term obligations
generally are not payable from revenues of the District or Improvement District No. 125 and No. 225 (except
as indicated) nor are they necessarily obligations secured by land within Improvement District No. 125 and
No. 225. In many cases long-term obligations issued by a public agency are payable only from the general
fund or other revenues of such public agency.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

A-53
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A - 107



TABLE 39
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 125
Direct and Overlapping Debt Statement

Fiscal Year 2016 Land Only Assessed Valuation: $32,752,414,757

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable®  Debt 12/31/15
Metropolitan Water District 2.549% $ 2,814,145
Coast Community College District 5.088 25,382,262
Rancho Santiago Community College District 0.976 2,616,196
Laguna Beach Unified School District 14.910 3,890,019
Newport Mesa Unified School District 14.210 31,952,485
Saddleback Valley Unified School District 33.855 39,701,759
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 4.087 2,002,590
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2008-1 4,221 2,930,851
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2012-1 33.194 9,901,770
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement District No. 125 100.000 184,154,205@
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement District No. 225 95.804 222,003,002
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement District No. 240 99.995 22,615,929
Community Facilities Districts 0.737-100.000 842,015,915
County 1915 Act Bonds 100.000 68,430,000
City 1915 Act Bonds Various 636,522,829
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $2,096,933,957
OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
Orange County General Fund Obligations 12.518% $ 9,653,381
Orange County Pension Obligations 12.518 31,766,660
Orange County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 12.518 1,901,484
Orange Unified School District Certificates of Participation and Benefit Obligations 2.039 2,328,352
City of Lake Forest Certificates of Participation 83.336 7,112,728
City of Newport Beach Certificates of Participation 23.199 26,366,823
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Facilities Corporation 14.826 410,680
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 79,540,108
Less: MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation (100% supported) 410,680
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 79,129,428
OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agencies) $ 6,138,884
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $2,182,612,949®
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $2,182,202,269

Ratios to Fiscal Year 2016 Land Only Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt ($184,154,205) .......cccccuevieierieieieieieeeeeeeaaanans 0.56%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt........ 6.40%

Ratios to Adjusted All Property Assessed Valuation:
Gross Combined Total Debt.........ccccoceevieeiiiiiiicec e, 3.49%
Net Combined Total Debt .........ccouieviiiiiiiicie e 3.49%

Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation $(357,495,447):
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt..........cccoovevevievieiinnnnne. 1.72%

(@ Based on all property assessed valuation of $62,465,858,066.

@ Improvement District No. 125 was formed by consolidating former Improvement District Nos. 105, 106, 102, 121, 130, 135,
140, 161, 182, 184 and 186.

@  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded
capital lease obligations.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

A-54
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -108



TABLE 40
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Improvement District No. 225
Direct and Overlapping Debt Statement

Fiscal Year 2016 Land Only Assessed Valuation: $27,557,606,802

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable®  Debt 12/31/15
Metropolitan Water District 2.207% $ 2,436,637
Coast Community College District 0.311 1,552,842
Rancho Santiago Community College District 0.020 53,611
Newport Mesa Unified School District 3.200 7,195,493
Saddleback Valley Unified School District 33.167 38,894,941
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 5.813 2,848,313
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2008-1 6.004 4,168,877
Tustin Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2012-1 34.386 10,257,344
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement District No. 125 82.952 152,759,596
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement District No. 225 100.000 231,726,235@
Community Facilities Districts 0.737-100.000 821,808,340
County 1915 Act Bonds 2.729 131,947
City 1915 Act Bonds Various 629,615,293
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $1,903,449,469
OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
Orange County General Fund Obligations 10.838% $ 8,357,832
Orange County Pension Obligations 10.838 27,503,360
Orange County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 10.838 1,646,292
Orange Unified School District Certificates of Participation and Benefit Obligations 0.041 46,819
City of Lake Forest Certificates of Participation 81.455 6,952,184
City of Newport Beach Certificates of Participation 3.986 4,530,288
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Facilities Corporation 12.938 358,383
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 49,395,158
Less: MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation (100% supported) 358,383
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 49,036,775
OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agencies) $ 6,138,884
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $1,958,983,511®
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $1,958,625,128

Ratios to Fiscal Year 2016 Land Only Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt ($231,726,235) .....ccccovvereeerieenieiesieeseseere e 0.84%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt........ 6.91%

Ratios to Adjusted All Property Assessed Valuation:
Gross Combined Total Debt.........ccccocvevieiiiiiiiicee e, 3.62%
Net Combined Total Debt .........cocveeviiiiiiiicce e 3.62%

Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation $(357,495,447):
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt..........cccooveverieiieivnnnne. 1.72%

@ Based on all property assessed valuation of $54,086,274,785.

@ Improvement District No. 225 was formed by consolidating former Improvement District Nos. 2(202), 206, 221, 230, 235,
250, 261, 282, 284 and 286.

@  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded
capital lease obligations.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

A-55
DOCSOC/1730294v7/024575-0017
A -109



Improvement District Nos. 113 and 213

General. Improvement District No. 113 (water) and Improvement District No. 213 (sewer) are
coterminous and are located in portions of the Cities of Tustin and Irvine, California. Improvement District
No. 113 and Improvement District No. 213 are comprised of approximately 1,629 acres of the land formerly
known as Marine Corps Air Station Tustin. The boundaries of Improvement District No. 113 and
Improvement District No. 213 are Harvard Avenue on the southeast, Barranca Parkway on the southwest, Red
Hill Avenue on the northwest and Edinger Avenue on the northeast. The former helicopter base, now known
as Tustin Legacy, is currently being redeveloped with residential, commercial, institutional and recreational
uses. The District expects development in Improvement District No. 113 and Improvement District No. 213 to
continue through at least approximately 2020. [UPDATES?] [The Distric